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Dear Shareholders,

the year 2017 confirmed, once again, Moncler’s strength and solidity. The Group achieved revenues above internal and external 
expectations including those of the financial community, confirming Moncler’s successful strategy. The Group posted revenues 
of 1.2 billion euros (+17% at constant exchange rates). Our operating profitability (EBITDA) improved further to 34.5% of reve-
nues, net profit was up by 27%, and we also have more than 300 million euros in net cash. But that’s not all. The year 2017 was also 
an exceptional year in terms of high-quality results achieved.  The Group is continuously committed to consolidate its customer 
centric culture and a 360-degree approach significantly improving customer interaction and loyalty. We have also worked on our 
store concept, opening major f lagship stores including Milan Montenapoleone and Hong Kong Canton Road. We have improved 
the quality of our wholesale network worldwide and further developed Moncler’s global digital presence. All has been done while 
remaining faithful to our unique heritage and maintaining a high level of control of the business.
But my, our, commitment is to keep looking ahead being able to think of the company of tomorrow, and continue to make Mon-
cler stronger and stronger. 

Today the market is changing profoundly and even more quickly than in the past. This is the reason why my team and I re-
cently began to think ‘out-of-the-box’ in order to face these important changes proactively, while strengthening more and more 
the Brand. This period of careful reflection has resulted in the genesis of a new project, which is not only a new creative path, 
but also a brand new communication and organisation project: Moncler Genius. 

Creativity is our energy, multiplicity is our strength, truthfulness is our credo, change is what drives us forward. Moncler 
is continuing to explore the surrounding spirit of its uniqueness, and it aims to do so by engaging with an increasingly wider 
customer base. After fifteen years since I took charge of Moncler, we decided to close a fundamental and important chapter of 
our recent history, to be able to start a new one, even more exciting and challenging. 

None of this would have been possible without the advice and support of an exceptional and unique team of people here 
at Moncler. I would like to take the opportunity to thank each of our 3500 employees who devote their profound dedication, 
humility, talent, energy and passion to Moncler every day. And I thank our stakeholders, who support us in delivering on our 
commitments. 

A new climb has just begun, and I believe that over the years we have built a determined and passionate Group that is now 
ready to reach even higher summits. 

REMO RUFFINI

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CHAIRMAN’S 
LETTER
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1. EBITDA Adjusted: operating income before depreciation, 
amortisation and non-recurring costs.

REVENUES
Million euros

EBIT
Million euros
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2. Net of assets disposal.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE2

Million euros

FREE CASH FLOW
Million euros

NET WORKING CAPITAL
Million euros
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CORPORATE BODIES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Remo Ruffini Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Virginie Sarah Sandrine Morgon Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nerio Alessandri  Independent Director

Sergio Buongiovanni Executive Director

Marco De Benedetti  Lead Independent Director

 Control, Risk and Sustainability Committee

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 Related Parties Committee

Gabriele Galateri di Genola  Independent Director

 Control, Risk and Sustainability Committee

Diva Moriani  Independent Director

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 Related Parties Committee

Stephanie Phair  Independent Director

Guido Pianaroli  Independent Director

 Control, Risk and Sustainability Committee

 Related Parties Committee

Luciano Santel Executive Director

Juan Carlos Torres Carretero Director

BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Riccardo Losi Chairman 

Antonella Suffriti Standing Statutory Auditor 

Mario Valenti Standing Statutory Auditor

Federica Albizzati Substitute Statutory Auditor

Lorenzo Mauro Banfi Substitute Statutory Auditor

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

KPMG S.p.A.
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GROUP CHART 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

Moncler Shanghai  
Commercial Co Ltd

100%

Moncler Asia Pacific Ltd 99.99%

Moncler Japan Corporation 51%

Moncler UK Ltd 100%

Moncler Sweden AB 100%

Moncler Denmark ApS 100%

Moncler Ireland Limited 100%

Moncler Hungary KFT 100%

Moncler Norway AS 100%

Moncler Taiwan Limited 100%

Moncler Prague s.r.o. 100%

Moncler Middle East FZ-LLC. 100%

Moncler Singapore Pte. Limited 100%

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. 51%

Moncler Istanbul Giyim  
ve Tekstil Ticaret Ltd. Sti.

51%

Moncler UAE LLC.

49%

100%

Industries S.p.A.

Moncler S.p.A.
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5%

95%

Moncler USA Retail LLC100%

Moncler Sylt GmbH51%

Ciolina Moncler AG51%

Moncler USA Inc.100%

Moncler France S.à.r.l.100%

100%

Moncler Belgium S.p.r.l.100%

Moncler Holland B.V.100%

Moncler Canada Ltd100%

100%

Moncler Australia PTY LTD100%

White Tech S.p.zo.o.70%

Moncler España SL100%

99%

1%

99%

1%

99%

1%

99.99%

0.01%

99%

1%

Moncler Kazakhstan LLP

Moncler Rus LLC

Moncler Suisse SA

Moncler Mexico Services,  
S. de R.L. de C. V.

Industried Yield S.r.l.

Moncler Deutschland GmbH

Moncler Mexico,  
S. de R.L. de C. V.

Moncler Brasil Comércio  
de moda e acessòrios Ltda.
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GROUP  
STRUCTURE

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Moncler 
Group as at December 31, 2017 include Moncler S.p.A. 
(Parent Company), Industries S.p.A., a sub-holding 
company directly controlled by Moncler S.p.A.,  
and 35 consolidated subsidiaries in which the Parent 
Company holds indirectly a majority of the voting rights, 
or over which it exercises control or from which it is able 
to derive benefits by virtue of its power to govern both  
on a financial and an operating aspects.
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Moncler S.p.A. Parent company which holds the Moncler brand

Industries S.p.A. Sub-holding company, directly involved in the management of foreign 
companies and distribution channels (retail, wholesale) in Italy and licensee  
of the Moncler brand

Industries Yield S.r.l. Company that manufactures apparel products

White Tech Sp.zo.o. Company that manages quality control of down

Moncler Deutschland GmbH Company that manages DOS and promotes goods in Germany and Austria

Moncler Belgium S.p.r.l. Company that manages DOS in Belgium

Moncler Denmark ApS Company that manages DOS in Denmark

Moncler España SL Company that manages DOS in Spain

Moncler France S.à.r.l. Company that manages DOS and distributes and promotes goods in France

Moncler Istanbul Giyim ve Tekstil Ticaret Ltd. Sti. Company that manages DOS in Turkey

Moncler Holland B.V. Company that manages DOS in the Netherlands

Moncler Hungary KFT Company that manages DOS in Hungary

Moncler Kazakhstan LLP Company that manages DOS in Kazakhstan

Moncler Norway AS Company that manages DOS in Norway

Moncler Prague s.r.o. Company that manages DOS in the Czech Republic

Moncler Rus LLC Company that manages DOS in Russia

Moncler Suisse SA Company that manages DOS in Switzerland

Ciolina Moncler AG Company that manages DOS in Gstaad (Switzerland)

Moncler Sylt Gmbh Company that manages DOS in Sylt (Germany)

Moncler UK Ltd Company that manages DOS in the United Kingdom

Moncler Ireland Limited Company that manages DOS in Ireland

Moncler Middle East FZ-LLC Holding Company for the Middle East

Moncler Sweden AB Company that manages DOS in Sweden

Moncler UAE LLC Company that will manage DOS in United Arab Emirates

Moncler Brasil Comércio de moda  
e acessòrios Ltda

Company that manages DOS in Brazil

Moncler Canada Ltd Company that manages DOS in Canada

Moncler Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. Company that will manage DOS in Mexico

Moncler Mexico Services, S. de R.L. de C.V. Company that will provide services to Moncler Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Moncler USA Inc Company that promotes and distributes goods in North America

Moncler USA Retail LLC Company that manages DOS in North America

Moncler Asia Pacific Ltd Company that manages DOS in Hong Kong and in Macau

Moncler Japan Corporation Company that manages DOS and distributes and promotes goods in Japan

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Co. Ltd Company that manages DOS in China

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. Company that manages DOS and distributes and promotes goods  
in South Korea

Moncler Singapore Pte. Limited Company that manages DOS in Singapore

Moncler Taiwan Limited Company that manages DOS in Taiwan

Moncler Australia PTY LTD Company that manages DOS in Australia
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In 1954, Moncler made the first ever nylon down jacket. In 
the same year, the Moncler products were chosen by the Ital-
ian expedition to K2 and in 1955 by the French expedition to 
Makalu. 

In 1968, the Brand gained additional visibility as Moncler 
became the official supplier of the French Alpine skiing team 
at the Winter Olympics in Grenoble. 

In the 80s, Moncler products started to be used on a daily 
basis also in the cities and became a true fashion phenomenon 
among younger clients.

Beginning in 2003, when Remo Ruffini invested in the 
Group, a process of repositioning of the Brand was initiated 
through which Moncler products take on an ever more dis-
tinctive and exclusive aspect.

Under the leadership of Remo Ruffini, Moncler has pur-
sued a clear but simple philosophy: to create unique products 
of the highest quality, “timeless”, versatile and innovative. 

The motto “born in the mountains, living in the city” 
shows how the Moncler brand has evolved from a line of prod-
ucts used purely for sport purposes to versatile lines that cli-
ents of all gender, age, identity and culture can wear on any 
occasion.

The range of Moncler products has expanded over the 
years and now spans the following areas: Moncler Main col-
lection, combining high quality for various uses; high fashion 
and couture collections; streetwear products; Moncler Gre-
noble, where the technical and innovative aspect is greater. 
The selection also offers shoes and leather goods (bags, back-
packs and luggage), a line of eyewear and sunglasses (Moncler 
Lunettes) and the line Moncler Enfant dedicated to the child 
segment (0-14 years).

In 2013, Moncler listed on the Italian Stock Exchange on the 
MTA segment at 10.20 euros per share.

In 2015, the Group obtained direct control on all the mar-
kets where it operates, establishing a joint venture in South 
Korea controlled by Moncler with Shinsegae International, 
formerly a distributor for the Group. 

In the same year, a strategy of further reinforcement of 
the proprietary know-how was implemented, through the ac-
quisition of a first production unit in Romania with the aims 
of creating an industrial-technological research and develop-
ment hub for down jackets and to verticalise a portion of the 
production. This project was finalised in 2016, through the 
recruitment of about 600 additional employees. 

In 2016, Moncler’s turnover exceeded one billion euros.
In November 2017, Moncler announced that its partner-

ships with designers Thom Browne and Giambattista Valli, 
longtime creative directors of the Group’s Moncler Gamme Bleu 
and Moncler Gamme Rouge collections will draw to an end with 
the Spring/Summer 2018 season. In February 2018, Moncler 
presented a new creative and communication project, Moncler 
Genius, where eight creative minds are devoted to a singular 
Moncler project and cultivate their singularity while being 
able to reinterpret the Brand.  

The Moncler brand was created in 1952 in Monestier-de-
Clermont, a small village in the mountains near Grenoble, 
with a focus on sports clothing for the mountain. 

THE MONCLER 
BRAND
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’80

KEY EVENTS  
IN MONCLER’S 
HISTORY

19541952 1968

René Ramillon and André 
Vincent found the Moncler 
brand in the mountains near 
Grenoble.

Moncler makes its first nylon 
down jacket and supplies 
products for the Italian 
expedition to K2. 

One year later, it also 
sponsors the French 
expedition to Macau.

Moncler becomes official 
supplier of the French Alpine 
skiing team at the Winter 
Olympics in Grenoble.

Moncler products start to 
become popular in towns 
and cities, becoming a true 
fashion phenomenon.
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2003 2006

Remo Ruffini becomes a shareholder in 
the Group. 

Moncler launches its Gamme Rouge 
women’s collection. 

Moncler opens in Paris – on the central 
Rue du Faubourg Saint-Honoré – its first 
urban store.

2007
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2013

Moncler lists on the Italian Stock 
Exchange.

2009 2010

Moncler launches its Gamme Bleu men’s 
collection.

Moncler’s Grenoble collection debuts in 
New York.
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201720152014 2016

Moncler provides the technical 
equipment for the “K2 – 60 
Years Later” expedition team. 

Moncler produces its first 
Sustainability Report  
and Sustainability Plan.

A joint-venture controlled  
by Moncler is established  
in Korea. 

Moncler acquires a production 
site in Romania.

Moncler finalises the 
establishment of its 
production site in Romania, 
through the recruitment 
of about 600 additional 
employees, later integrated  
in the hub previously acquired 
and now operating with 900 
employees. 

Moncler’s revenues surpass 
one billion euros.

Moncler announces the end  
of the collaboration with 
Thom Browne for Gamme 
Bleu and Giambattista Valli  
for Gamme Rouge.  

Starting from Fall/Winter 
2018, Moncler has  
a new creative project: 
Moncler Genius.
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VALUES

Moncler has always stood for authenticity, excellence, 
and talent, for seeking challenges, and for pursuing shared 
and sustainable goals. These are the values at the heart 
of the Group. 
In everything it does, Moncler is driven by the desire 
to innovate while remaining true to itself and its heritage, 
to strive for continuous and uncompromising quality, 
and to grow through change and the pursuit of new 
challenging standards. 
The client is the cornerstone of Moncler’s business 
and the central focus of all decisions, while the talent 
of people is its most important asset.
Nurturing individual talent has always been a core value 
of the Group, which considers its people a strategic 
resource, the architects of the Brand’s past success, 
and the key to its future growth. For this reason,
the Company is always mindful that, to create 
long-term value, it needs to act responsibly and inclusively.
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AUTHENTICITY
There is only one Moncler, and our task is to protect its uniqueness while always evolving

EXCELLENCE
Quality is at the heart of everything Moncler does

COMMITMENT 
TO PEOPLE
People are Moncler’s greatest asset: their future is Moncler’s future, and we are committed to their development

RESPONSIBILITY
Long-term value creation can only be driven by respect and responsible behaviour

AMBITION
Moncler never stops innovating and seeking to set new challenging standards 
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PHILOSOPHY

Moncler’s philosophy is inherently rooted in the Group’s 
values and intrinsically tied to its unique history. 
Over the years, the Brand has been at the centre of 
remarkable climbing expeditions and pioneering initiatives. 
Long associated with sports, mountains, outdoor activities, 
and nature at its purest, Moncler has consistently and 
faithfully based its philosophy on simple yet solid principles, 
summarised in the words of the Company’s Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer, Remo Ruffini.

“THERE IS NO PRESENT 
OR FUTURE WITHOUT 
A PAST. MONCLER 
IS A UNIQUE BRAND, 
AND ITS PRODUCTS 
ARE SYNONYMOUS 
WITH CREATIVITY, 
QUALITY EXCELLENCE, 
AND CONSTANT 
EVOLUTION WITHOUT 
EVER LOSING SIGHT 
OF THE BRAND’S TRUE 
ESSENCE”

Moncler has a unique heritage and positioning. With over 60 
years of history, the Brand conveys its DNA through innovative 
and versatile products that withstand fashion trends, and are 
therefore timeless. Products are inspired by values stemming 
from the love for sports and nature, and deliver renowned 
elegance and quality excellence. Moncler adopts an integrated 
business model that focuses on quality control, and directly 
manages and coordinates the higher value-added activities 
within its value chain. Promoting responsibility across the 
supply chain is an integral part of this process.
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“CLIENTS ARE 
OUR MAIN 
STAKEHOLDERS” 

“A UNIQUE PRODUCT 
DESERVES A UNIQUE 
COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY”

“I ALWAYS WANT 
TO BE AMAZED 
BY THE TALENT 
OF OTHERS”

Moncler has always considered its people as a strategic asset. 
Motivation, determination, and innovation are qualities that 
the Company supports and nurtures constantly. Developing 
this asset, helping its people to grow, is a fundamental part 
of the Group’s philosophy. Moreover, it is a clear objective 
for senior management that, led by Remo Ruffini, has built a 
cohesive, motivated, highly experienced team with a proven 
track record of delivering significant results. 

“THERE IS NO 
GROWTH WITHOUT 
RESPONSIBILITY 
AND RESPECT”

Moncler judges the value of its results also by how it achieved 
them, believing there can be no long-term growth without 
responsibility and respect. Which is why, a few years ago, the 
Company started to integrate sustainability issues into its 
business model and decisions.

Clients have always been pivotal in every strategic decision 
made by Moncler, as further confirmed in 2016 with the 
launch of the Retail Excellence project. The uniqueness of 
the Brand is reflected in every Moncler store. Its presence 
in the most important multi-brand and luxury department 
stores, the selected location of its retail stores across the 
most prestigious shopping streets and holiday resorts, and a 
distinctive store concept always consistent with its DNA yet in 
constant evolution, are clear expressions of the Brand’s values 
and philosophy.

“MONCLER IS 
A GLOBOPHONIC 
COMPANY: WHILE 
ITS VISION IS GLOBAL, 
ITS STRATEGY 
IS LOCAL”

Moncler’s policy is to have a direct presence in the regions in 
which it operates, with local management and organisational 
structures acting in close coordination with the Parent 
Company. The Company operates through its headquarters 
and five regional organisations (Regions): EMEA, Asia Pacific, 
Japan, the Americas, and Korea. Moncler firmly believes in the 
importance of strengthening and consolidating its presence 
in each of these areas, and has always promoted the hiring 
of local employees and managers who understand and can 
better analyse trends in each market.

Moncler’s communication strategy is both innovative and 
non-conventional. It always conveys the product’s uniqueness 
and the Brand’s values in a highly distinctive and unequivocal 
way, using all available channels. 
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A GLOBAL BRAND 
WITH NO FILTERS 
WITH THE MARKET

Moncler’s goal is to pursue sustainable and responsible 
growth within the global luxury goods segment, 
while remaining faithful to its unique heritage.
Creativity, multiplicity, and consistency have always been 
the creed of the Group, which leverages change 
to grow stronger as it continues to explore both known 
and new avenues, seeking constant dialogue with 
an ever-broader client base. 
Moncler’s strategy is closely related to the Group’s 
philosophy and values, and is based on six pillars.

In recent years, Moncler’s growth strategy has been inspired 
by two key principles, clearly devised and strongly endorsed 
by the Company’s Chairman and CEO, Remo Ruffini: to become 
a global brand and to have no filters with the market. Today, 
87% of Moncler’s revenues are generated outside of Italy. This 
result was achieved by exercising significant control over the 
business, and by maintaining direct contact with wholesale, 
retail, and digital clients.

STRATEGY

IDENTITY 
AND UNIQUE 
POSITIONING

Moncler’s unique heritage represents its main asset and 
permeates its entire strategy. Heritage, quality, uniqueness, 
creativity, and consistency define and characterise all Moncler 
products, making them timeless.
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DIRECT 
RELATIONSHIP 
WITH CLIENTS, 
TO ALWAYS 
SURPRISE THEM

SUSTAINABLE 
GROWTH TO CREATE 
VALUE FOR ALL 
STAKEHOLDERS

SELECTIVE 
PRODUCT RANGE 
EXPANSION

DIGITAL CHANNEL 
DEVELOPMENT

Thanks to its strong tradition and credibility built over the 
years, Moncler has consolidated its position as a worldwide 
leader in the premium down jacket segment. The Group is 
now selectively expanding beyond its core business, into 
complementary product and market segments in which it has, 
or can surely achieve, high recognition and in-depth know-
how. “To create special products with a specialist’s approach” 
is the motto that drives and steers Moncler’s present and 
future.

Moncler considers digital channels as a crucial and indispen-
sable tool for brand communications and business growth at 
global level, in an omni-channel perspective.
For some years now, the Group has created a digital division 
that reports to Moncler’s Chief Marketing & Operating Officer, 
and is responsible for both e-commerce and digital market-
ing to develop online business and boost the presence of the 
Moncler brand across all major social media.

Engaging directly with clients through every channel and 
touchpoint, involving them, and understanding their ex-
pectations – even when unspoken – is a cornerstone of the 
relationship that Moncler strives to develop with its clients 
to never stop surprising them. 

The Brand has been progressively strengthening its commit-
ment to long-term sustainable and responsible growth, as a 
mean to further meet stakeholder expectations and create 
shared value.
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BUSINESS  
MODEL

Moncler’s integrated and flexible business model is geared 
towards having direct control of the phases of production 
that add the greatest value, putting the pursuit of ever 
increasing quality at the heart of all its work.

MONCLER COLLECTIONS

Moncler’s success is based on a unique and consistent brand 
strategy, which also depends on the ability to develop inno-
vative products that are strongly “anchored” to the history of 
the Brand. Heritage, uniqueness, quality, creativity and inno-
vation are the terms used in Moncler to define the concept of 
“luxury”. 

The journey, which began in 2003 when Remo Ruffini 
acquired the Group, has always been coherent and pursued 
without compromise.

The Moncler Main collection is central to Moncler, always 
combining high quality with frequent-wear items.

The beating heart of the Moncler Main collection is the Ar-
chive, the inspiration behind the brand’s first collections and 
today still very much a key player. 

All iconic products inspired by the Archive have always 
had and continue to have the classic Moncler logo.

Over the years 2006-2017, the Moncler collections have 
been enriched by the energy of a number of designers, both 
with some important collaborations and, above all, with the 
Gammes.

In 2006 the Moncler Gamme Rouge was launched, tied to 
the Haute Couture tradition. In 2009 the Moncler Gamme Bleu 
was introduced, representing a perfect combination of a tai-
lored approach and the sporting aspect of the Brand.

Finally in 2010 the Moncler Grenoble collection was cre-
ated, inspired by few ski products, in order to reiterate even 
more strongly the link between Moncler and its roots.

In 2017 Moncler announced the Brand will no longer be 
showing its Moncler Gamme Rouge and Moncler Gamme Blue col-
lections in Milan and Paris, starting from Fall/Winter 2018. 

“Consumers are changing, the industry is evolving at a far 
greater pace than the past and we need to be ready to tackle 
these changes, so we can consolidate our Brand” commented 
Remo Ruffini, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the 
Group.

In February 2018, Moncler presented a new creative pro-
ject Moncler Genius which – under the banner of Moncler Genius 
building – brings together different interpretations and visions 
of the Brand to continue to synergically generate new creative 
energy, while staying true to the Brand’s unique character. 

Moncler’s team of designers is subdivided by collection 
and works under the close supervision of Remo Ruffini, who 
sets design guidelines and ensures that they are implemented 
uniformly across all collections and product categories. The 
design department is assisted and supported by the merchan-
dising and product development teams, who support the cre-
ation of the collections and generate creative ideas.

DOWN

Throughout its history, down has been at the heart of Moncler 
outerwear, and has gradually come to be identified with the 
Brand itself. 

A combination of lengthy experience and continuous re-
search and development has enabled the company to gain unique 
expertise in this area, both in terms of knowledge of down as a 
raw material and of the garment manufacturing process.

Moncler ensures that all its suppliers comply with the 
highest quality standards. Over the years, these standards 
have been – and indeed remain – a key point of product 
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differentiation: only the best fine white goose down is used 
in the Brand’s garments. 

Fine down content and “fill power” are the main indica-
tors of down quality. Moncler down contains at least 90% fine 
down and boasts a fill power equal to or greater than 710 
(cubic inches per 30 grams of down), resulting in a warm, soft, 
light and uniquely comfortable garment. 

Each batch of down is subjected to a two-step checking 
procedure to assess its compliance with 11 key parameters, 
set in accordance with the strictest international standards 
and the stringent quality requirements imposed by the com-
pany. In 2017, a total of around 720 tests were performed. 

But for the company, “quality” is more than this: the or-
igin of its down and the respect for animal welfare are also 
fundamental for Moncler. When sourcing and purchasing raw 
materials, Moncler considers these aspects as important as 
the quality of the material itself.

ANIMAL WELFARE AND TRACEABILITY: 
THE DIST PROTOCOL

As part of its commitment to ensuring animal welfare, Mon-
cler requires and ensures that all its down suppliers comply 
with the strict standards of the Down Integrity System & Tracea-
bility (DIST) Protocol. Applied by the Group since 2015, the DIST 
Protocol sets out standards for farming and animal welfare, 
traceability and the technical quality of down. Moncler only 
purchases down that is DIST-certified.
Key requirements that must be met at all levels of the supply 
chain include:
• down must be derived exclusively from farmed geese and 

as a by-product of the food chain;
• no live-plucking or force-feeding of animals is permitted.
Moncler’s down supply chain is particularly vertically inte-
grated, and includes various types of entities: geese farms, 
slaughterhouses where the animals are slaughtered for meat 
production and from which the down is subsequently taken, 
and the companies responsible for washing, cleaning, sorting 
and processing the raw materials. Moreover, the supply chain 
includes façonists, which, using the down, manufacture fin-
ished products. All suppliers must comply scrupulously with 
the Protocol, to ensure the traceability of the raw material, 
respect for animal welfare and the highest possible quality 
throughout the supply chain.

The DIST Protocol was the outcome of open, construc-
tive engagement with a multi-stakeholder forum established 
in 2014. The forum considered the expectations of all the var-
ious stakeholders and ensured a comprehensive approach to 
the issue of animal welfare and product traceability.

The Protocol assesses animal welfare in an innovative 
way. Alongside a traditional approach that focuses on the 
farming environment and follows the latest European Union 
guidelines, the DIST also evaluates animal welfare through 
careful observation of “Animal-Based Measures” (ABM3), mak-
ing for a more reliable assessment. 

Moncler is constantly involved in the on-site auditing process 
to certify compliance with the DIST Protocol. To ensure maxi-
mum audit impartiality:
• audits are commissioned directly by Moncler and not by 

the supplier;
• certification is conducted by a qualified third-party or-

ganisation whose auditors are trained by veterinarians 
and animal husbandry experts from the Department of 
Veterinary Medicine at the University of Milan;

• the certification body’s work is in turn audited by an ac-
credited external organisation.

Starting from Fall/Winter 2017, Moncler achieved a relevant 
milestone within all its garments, with the inclusion of the 
“DIST down certified” label.  This result has been achieved 
thanks to an extension of the down traceability supply chain 
downstream, according to the principles defined by the DIST 
Protocol. This commitment has been accomplished by a rele-
vant audit activity on down jacket façonists. 

In 2017, 85 audits were conducted by third-parties along 
the entire supply chain.

PRODUCTION

Moncler’s products are designed, manufactured and distribut-
ed according to a business model featuring direct control of 
all phases where the greatest value is added.

Moncler directly manages the creative phase, the pur-
chase of raw materials, as well as the development of pro-
totypes, while the “cut-make-trim” phase ( façon) of the pro-
duction stage is partly assigned to third party manufacturers 
( façonists) and partly managed internally.

The purchase of raw materials is one of the main areas of 
the value chain. In fact, in light of its market position and its 
values, Moncler focuses both on the quality of the down used 
in its garments, which must comply with the highest stand-
ards in the industry, and the use of fabrics that must not only 
be of extremely high quality but also able to offer advanced 
functional and aesthetic features. Textiles and garment acces-
sories (buttons, zips, etc.) are purchased from countries able 
to meet the highest quality standards, mainly Italy and Japan. 
Down is purchased from Europe and Asia. 

The “cut-make-trim” phase ( façon) is conducted both by 
third party manufacturers and in the Moncler manufacturing 
plant, established in 2016 in Romania.

The third-party suppliers working for Moncler are mainly 
located in Eastern European countries, which are currently 
able to ensure quality standards that are among the highest in 
the world for the production of down jackets. Moncler super-
vises these suppliers directly by conducting audits designed 
to check aspects regarding product quality, brand protection 
and compliance with current laws and Moncler Code of Ethics 
and Supplier Code of Conduct (approved in November 2016).

Moncler currently uses around 410 suppliers, divided into 
four categories: raw materials, façon, finished products and 
services. Moncler’s top 50 suppliers account for 70% of the 
value of all supplies4.

3. The “Animal-Based Measures” are indicators of the real welfare 
of an animal, determined through the direct observation of its 
capacity to adapt to specific farming environments. The measures 
include physiological, pathological and behavioural indicators.
4. Order Value.
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DISTRIBUTION

Moncler is present in all major markets both through the retail 
channel, consisting of directly operated stores (DOS5) and the 
online store, and through the wholesale channel, represented 
by multi-brand doors, shop-in-shops in department stores and 
luxury online multi-brand retailers (e-tailers).

Moncler’s strategy is aimed at the control of the distri-
bution channel, not only retail but also wholesale, where it 
operates through a direct organisation.

In recent years, the business has grown mainly through 
the development of the retail channel, which in 2017 account-
ed for 75% of consolidated revenues, achieved thanks to or-
ganic growth, the opening of new stores and, in recent years, 
the expansion of existing stores’ surface. 

The online store moncler.com, now active in all the 
Group’s main markets, is also becoming more and more im-
portant.

The wholesale channel remains strategically fundamental 
for Moncler. Over the years the Group has introduced a highly 
selective distribution policy, gradually reducing the number 
of doors and tightly controlling client order quantities, so 
that the Brand is now only present in the leading luxury mul-
ti-brand shops and department stores around the world. The 
recent opening of mono-brand stores (shop-in-shops) mainly 
within important department stores and in some important 
international airports, has also contributed to the recent 
growth of this distribution channel.
As at December 31, 2017, Moncler’s mono-brand distribution 
network consisted of 201 retail directly operated stores (DOS) 
and 59 wholesale shop-in-shops (SiS), 12 of which are dedicat-
ed to the Moncler Enfant product lines.

December
31, 2017

December
31, 2016

Net Openings
2017

Retail Mono-brand 201 190 11

Italy 21 19 2

EMEA (excl. Italy) 59 55 4

Asia and Rest of the World 96 93 3

Americas 25 23 2

Wholesale Mono-brand 59 42 17

During 2017 the company opened 11 directly operated stores 
(DOS), in the most prestigious international locations, includ-
ing: 
• the first directly operated stores (DOS) in Australia (Mel-

bourne), Kazakhistan (Almaty) and Sweden (Stockholm);
• the consolidation of the Italian market, with the open-

ing of the flagship store in Florence and two concession 
stores in Rome at La Rinascente in via del Tritone;

• some selected openings in America and in Asia.
Moreover, during the year, some of the existing retail stores 
were relocated in new spaces with a surface area larger on av-
erage. The major projects of 2017 were related to the flagship 
stores in: Milan (Via Montenapoleone), Hong Kong (Canton 

Road) and Moscow (which reopened within GUM department 
store in Red Square, after the closure of the Stoleshnikov 
store).
Throughout the year, 17 wholesale mono-brand stores were 
also opened (net of two conversions from shop-in-shops to 
retail stores, both dedicated to the Moncler Enfant collection), 
including: 
• the opening of three stores inside international airports 

(Doha, Paris Charles De Gaulle, Taipei);
• the consolidation of the North-American market, through 

the opening of shop-in-shops in the major luxury depart-
ment stores (including Boston Saks, Vancouver Holt Ren-
frew, Toronto Harry Rosen);

• the opening of wholesale mono-brand stores in some 
tourist-intensive Asian locations (including Guam, Macau, 
Auckland, Bangkok).

Moncler’s ability to distribute its products to such a large 
number of destinations is based on the careful attention it 
pays to the way in which logistics activities are managed. In 
this sphere too Moncler is attentive to optimising processes 
and this has enabled it to contain both environmental effects 
and costs. More specifically, since 2015, Moncler has made 
changes to the packaging it uses for shipping finished goods, 
thereby reducing the total volume consumed and optimising 
the space taken up on the means of transport employed. In 
this regards, wherever possible, the Group is introducing a 
policy to incentivise shipping by sea, which offers a further 
way to reduce its environmental footprint.

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATION

“Every day brings a fresh challenge to be overcome,” says 
Remo Ruffini, Moncler Chairman and CEO. 

Freezing cold. Glaciers as big as skyscrapers. The excite-
ment of setting off and the calm of the build-up. When ad-
venture meets nature and for the challenges of everyday life. 
To face these extremes, Moncler designs clothes that strike a 
balance between two worlds, each time pushing the bound-
aries to make down jackets that respond to increasingly di-
verse global demands. 

Moncler has been at the cutting edge for more than 60 
years, strongly anchored by its unique heritage. But having 
a unique background also means that it has to be different 
in how it tells its story. It is this uniqueness that Moncler has 
always pursued. Rooted in this ethos, the Brand’s marketing 
and communications aim to reinforce its values and transfer 
their implications through a clear strategy, which has contrib-
uted to establishing Moncler as an internationally renowned 
luxury brand. All Moncler’s marketing initiatives seek to en-
sure consistency between the company’s values, the product 
and the target customers, with the aim of maintaining a high 
brand reputation. These principles guide every phase of the 
value chain: from presentation of new collections to retail and 
wholesale sales activities. All this is distilled into advertising 
communications in the specialist press, leading domestic and 
international newspapers – both print and online – and into 
social media, as well as shows, promotions, sponsorships and 
events in boutiques.

5. Including free standing stores, concessions, travel retail stores 
and outlets.
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WINDOWS DISPLAY

Window displays in boutiques form a key part of the Brand’s 
marketing strategy, enabling it to extend its ongoing explora-
tion into the infinite possible interrelationships between art 
and creativity, interpreted as a free expression of Moncler’s 
identity. The ethos is one of boundless creativity – the fruit of 
a true passion and capacity for innovation – while always re-
maining true to the company’s heritage. The window displays 
in Moncler boutiques have always been highly recognisable 
and distinctive, telling original stories each time.

ADVERTISING CAMPAIGNS

As part of its innovative approach, Moncler also seeks to make 
its advertising campaigns stand out as a hallmark of the Brand. 
During the company’s relaunch led by Remo Ruffini, early ad-
vertising campaigns were focused on the product and on Mon-
cler’s background, in an effort to establish its heritage. Since 
then they have become more and more brand-focused, shot 
by top photographers such as Bruce Weber and Annie Leibo-
vitz with each image reflecting Moncler’s intrinsic values and 
underlining the interplay between photography and nature as 
culture. Since 2014, Moncler has worked with Annie Leibovitz 
for its institutional campaigns, always using innovative and 
fresh visual styles: from the pictures about the global uses of 
Moncler’s outerwear, suited to anywhere in the world, at any 
latitude and in any season (Autumn/Winter 2014), to the to-
tally unexpected Spring/Summer 2017 advertising campaign. 
Following the fairy-tale atmosphere and literary vision of pre-
vious Moncler campaigns, the Spring/Summer 2017 campaign 
plays out along a surreal imaginary thread, which involves 
the Chinese artist Liu Bolin as the main character pictured 
by Annie Leibovitz. Liu Bolin remained the protagonist of the 
advertising campaign for Autumn/Winter 2017, also signed by 
Annie Leibovitz, portraying the famous expert of the invisible 
and impossible among the Icelandic icebergs.

DIGITAL

The digital platform is a strategic means of communication 
and sales for Moncler. 

The e-commerce site - Moncler.com - is the Group’s digital 
f lagship and fully reflects the Brand’s “physical” retail policies 
– both in terms of product range and commercial strategies. 
During 2017, the first stage of the omnichannel model was 
launched for three pilot stores, offering “Click from Store”, 
“Pick up in Store”, “Return in Store” and “Product Store Avail-
ability” services.

As for digital marketing, brand initiatives in 2017 were 
delivered across a comprehensive range of digital platforms, 
with major resources and investments dedicated to the web, 
social media and mobile channel. The use of new technologies 
continued, to analyse and monitor big data (interrelated data 
sets built from a range of different sources, including struc-
tured databases and unstructured sources such as images, 
emails, GPS data, and information extracted from social net-
works, etc.), to achieve a greater efficiency of all digital ad-
vertising investments. The average budget for planning online 
campaigns and use of tools and technologies to analyse big 

data increased in 2017 compared to the previous year, helping 
to improve the ROAS (Return on Ad Spend).

Moncler further strengthened its brand presence on glob-
al social media through initiatives such as the mobile-oriented 
Line campaign in Japan and WeChat in Asia-Pacific, achieving 
significant growth in engagement. Moncler is one of the few 
luxury brands to be present on all mobile platforms available 
on the market, and in this regard the iOS e-commerce app has 
been given a new look and enhanced usability.

EVENTS AND FASHION SHOWS

Moncler has always stood out for its unique and original ap-
proach to communications, pioneering innovative new modes 
of expression in brand events around the world. 

In 2017, various corporate events, fashion shows, custom-
er relationship management (CRM) activities and initiatives 
for the openings of new stores took place: an exclusive pro-
gramme, often directly inspired by contemporary art, always 
staged according to what has come to be known as the Mon-
cler hallmark.

The 2017 programme featured the presentation of Col-
lide - Greg Lauren & Moncler, a collaboration that cleverly 
combined Moncler and its highly experimental vocation with 
the creative world of Greg Lauren, a multi-faceted US artist 
and designer. De-constructed, intersected and reconstructed, 
reinvented with a truly free spirit, unexpected and harmoni-
ous, Moncler down jackets were merged with fragments of 
denim garments and other vintage fabrics, for a truly artistic 
collection.

Landmark events in the year were held for the openings 
of: the store in Melbourne, Australia; the flagship store in Har-
bour City on Canton Road, Hong Kong; the first boutique in 
Kazakhstan; the re-opening of the flagship store in Milan, in 
Via Montenapoleone, and in the same city, the first boutique 
entirely dedicated to the Moncler Enfant collection; the second 
boutique in Toronto, in Bloor Street; rounding off the year 
with the prominent openings of the stores in Florence and 
Stockholm. These new venues have all consolidated the net-
work of mono-brand stores, which is truly symbolic of the pro-
found transformation Moncler is experiencing, while staying 
true to itself and to its unique identity.

During 2017, Moncler was awarded as Best Performing 
Company, Large Cap by Women’s Wear Daily (WWD), while 
Remo Ruffini, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, received 
the WWD Honors in New York during the opening ceremony 
of the WWD Apparel & Retail Summit CEO.

BRAND PROTECTION

Moncler dedicates energy and resources to safeguard the val-
ue, uniqueness and authenticity of its products and to defend 
its intellectual and industrial property rights (“IP”), key ele-
ments for customer’s protection.

The “Intellectual Property & Brand Protection” internal 
department oversees administrative activities and actions 
to protect Moncler’s distinctive trademarks in countries and 
in goods’ categories of current and potential commercial in-
terest, as well as the forms and elements characterising the 
products, product and process inventions and copyright. 
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The enforcement of intellectual property rights and the fight 
against counterfeit include activities such as training, liaising 
with customs’ authorities and applying for relative customs’ 
intervention in numerous countries, monitoring and investi-
gating the physical and online market, taking down counter-
feit content online, coordinating the organisation of raids and 
seizures with local authorities in numerous countries world-
wide and taking civil, criminal and administrative actions.

The constant activity to fight against counterfeit trade re-
sulted in more than 87,400 fake products and nearly 790,000 
fake accessories being seized during 2017. Enforcement of 
Moncler’s IP rights online, which aims in particular at the re-
moval of offers for the sale of counterfeit products, shutting 
down unauthorised online sites and removing links and/or 
advertising from social networks, brought to results just as 
important as the former. Over 69,000 auctions of sale of coun-
terfeit products were shut down, 2,500 sites were obscured, 
approximately 170,000 links to selling sites of non-original 
products were delisted from main search engines and around 
15,600 posts, ads and accounts promoting fake Moncler prod-
ucts through social networks were removed. 

Willing to increase end customer protection even further, 
an anti-counterfeiting label has been adopted for all Moncler 
products since 2016, featuring the best technologies available 
on the market. The new authenticity-traceability system fea-
tures an unique alphanumeric code, a QRcode and NFC (Near 
Field Communication) tag. End-users can check their products 
on the website code.moncler.com. Where necessary, Moncler 
provides expertise to customers who are want to recover 
sums paid for the purchase of a counterfeit item from the on-
line payment service providers.

The Group’s commitment to industry associations saw 
Moncler involved in numerous activities in 2017, organised by 
leading national and international organisations involved in 
the fight against counterfeit and protecting IP, in particular 
INDICAM, INTA, BASCAP, UNIFAB and QBPC.
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HUMAN  
CAPITAL

Moncler has always invested considerable energy  
in selecting the best talent, in encouraging professional 
growth and promoting welfare within the company.
It provides a healthy, safe working environment, which  
is stimulating and rewards merit, where diversity is valued 
and people are given the chance to flourish  
and express all their potential and talent.

Moncler seeks to attract and identify talented resources, who 
stand out not only for their excellent technical, professional 
and managerial skills, but also for their vision, business spirit 
and focus on innovation - all qualities we need to support our 
growth in an ever-evolving environment. 

Driven by growth and expansion, the recruitment process 
focuses on profiles with an increasingly international and var-
ied dimension, with a diverse training and business culture 
background, as well as expertise and experience to tackle the 
Group’s future challenges.

Identifying, engaging with and retaining the best talent 
is a strategic issue. With a view to people empowerment and 
development, Moncler has been using a performance review 
system for several years, evaluating competencies levered to 
achieve objectives. The system evaluates to what extent em-
ployees perform their role, shaping possible training, develop-
ment and internal growth programmes.  

Underlying Moncler’s appraisal model are values which 
all members of staff must endorse and promote: integrity, 
passion, being a part of company culture, interpersonal skills 
built on trust, a global vision, excellent results, innovation 
and talent empowerment. The annual performance review, 
which aims to improve business performance and focuses on 
the medium/long term, is a key process for people manage-
ment and development. Its integration with the model for 
evaluating potential means that people can be positioned 
within a development framework, promoting the definition of 
succession plans and retention of the best talent. The annual 
performance review is key to the salary review process.

Moncler’s remuneration system is designed to attract, 
motivates and retain people with the professional qualities 

necessary for the Group’s business growth. It is based on 
principles of fairness, equal opportunities, merit and a com-
petitive edge.

Employee remuneration is defined considering specific 
criteria, including a comparison with the external market and 
fairness within the company, characteristics of the role and 
relative responsibilities, as well as the specific expertise of 
people, with a view to ensuring the utmost impartiality, to 
avoid any type of discrimination. The annual salary review is 
also based on merit, considering business results and the indi-
vidual performance review, with a focus on talent.

The remuneration policy includes remuneration and in-
centive mechanisms rewarding short and long-term results, 
based on the organisational category and activity carried out. 
These mechanisms include:
• annual MBO (Management By Objectives) systems for Ex-

ecutives, Managers and Professionals, based on achieving 
financial targets and measurable qualitative/quantitative 
targets connected with strategic business, process and 
project performance, according to a Balanced Scorecard;

• team and individual sales commission systems that re-
ward excellence, quality and business development at a 
store level;

• long term incentive systems, such as Stock Options and 
Performance Shares for senior management and key re-
sources, regardless of the organisational level. These sys-
tems, which are related to long term performance con-
ditions, with a focus on results and their quality, are an 
important part of the pay mix, and can make up the main 
part of the total salary at senior management level. 

Employees’ salary packages include a number of benefits, such 
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as life insurance, pension schemes and healthcare schemes. 
Moncler gives its employees benefits related to their profes-
sional category.

In 2017, the Group adopted the new Moncler Corporate 
Welfare Scheme, for employees of all departments, up to man-
agerial level, at both the Italian corporate head offices, who 
have an indefinite employment contract and are on the payroll 
at 31 December of each year. This scheme was devised to en-
sure a better standard of care and well-being for people. The 
scheme covers a wide range of benefits and services, also for 
employees’ families: from the reimbursement of school fees to 
vouchers, special offers for leisure, welfare packages, sports’ 
courses and the chance to pay the welfare premium into a 
supplementary pension scheme.

Moncler has always stood out for investing in younger 
resources, with a considerable number of trainees on work 
placements becoming company employees. In Italy, which has 
the highest number of trainees, 20% of all trainee contracts 
was followed up with employment with the company in 2017.

This focus also targets training. In 2017, Moncler started 
to plan, at a corporate level, MONCampus - the company’s first 
Learning Academy. MONCampus offers a training programme 
managed by company trainers for younger talent, which aims 
to develop company awareness, and increase knowledge of 
and a focus on main company processes and activities. Mon-
cler continued its external training programmes in 2017, en-
couraging employees from its Italy Corporate head offices to 
take part in a number of intercompany courses and workshops 
on issues targeting the development of a company culture that 
supports inter-generational cooperation and engagement, in-
creases the well-being and motivation of staff, and supports 

female staff with their involvement in courses and initiatives 
promoted by Valore D.

To maintain OHSAS 18001 occupational health and safety 
certification, Moncler continued its training courses in 2017 
to consolidate a culture of occupational health and safety, cre-
ating an awareness of risks in the workplace and providing 
necessary information for the correct identification and man-
agement of these risks, as well as promoting the responsible 
behaviour of all employees. 

In the retail channel, Moncler continued to invest in train-
ing for sales staff. Training in 2017 was consistent, concerning 
products (raw materials, the production process for shoes, 
handbags and glasses) and the history of the Brand, as well as 
relational and managerial skills, with the aim of disseminating 
a sales service and style model that can make purchasing a 
unique, stand-out experience.

During 2017, the Group delivered over 69 thousand hours 
of training for approximately 2.6 thousand employees. Activi-
ties focused primarily on professional and vocational training 
(72%) and on health and safety (22%).

As part of its engagement plan, Moncler launched its first 
internal climate survey “MONVoice” during 2017. In associa-
tion with one of the sector’s leading players, a questionnaire 
was given to some 2,000 employees worldwide, with a re-
sponse rate of nearly 90%. 

The aim was to provide a snapshot of the Company’s posi-
tioning as regards two aspects: employee engagement and en-
ablement. By analysing the individual components of each of 
these two aspects, Moncler was able to identify the strengths 
and areas to work on in order to consolidate and improve its 
overall positioning. 
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2017 2016

Italy 723 665

EMEA (excl. Italy) 1,244 1,025

Asia and Rest of the World 844 771

Americas 255 239

Total 3,066 2,700

of which Direct Retail 1,444 1,315

6. Full Time Equivalent (average).

A structured communication plan was prepared for before 
and after the survey. The company Intranet “MONCamp” was 
used to raise employee awareness of the survey. Plenary ses-
sions were then organised for all employees at various sites, 
along with function and regional meetings to share the results 
in detail with each organisational area. 

The action plan defined by the Company includes train-
ing for functional and cross functional work teams in order to 
work on issues that require improvement with a bottom-up 
logic. 
Lastly, the HR system digitalisation project, which began in 
2016 and was consolidated in 2017 with a number of tools 
supporting main processes and activities, will provide con-

siderable support for management and help develop a digital 
culture at Moncler.
In 2017, Moncler employed 3,066 FTE staff6 (3,498 headcounts 
at 31/12), off whom 50% working at its directly-operated 
stores. The growth in the workforce compared to 2016 (+366 
FTE) was driven by developments in the network of direct-
ly-operated stores and by the expansion of production activ-
ities in Romania. 

In terms of distribution by geographic area, which was 
basically unchanged compared to 2016, EMEA (including Italy) 
accounted for 64% of the total FTE, followed by Asia with 28% 
and the Americas with 8%.

24%

Italy

8%

Americas

2017 FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (AVERAGE)
BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

28%

Asia and Rest
of the World

40%

EMEA (excl. Italy)
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30%

34%

35%

70%

10%

21%

Men

<30

31-40

Women

>50

41-50

EMPLOYEES BY GENDER GROUP
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

At December 31, 2017, 70% of employees were women. This percentage is in line with figures at December 31, 2016.

Moncler places special emphasis on youth employment as shown by an analysis of personnel by age, in which employees under 
30 represent 34% of the total.
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SUSTAINABILITY

Quality, responsibility, respect, traceability, transparency: 
these are the key words that guide Moncler in the day-to-
day business. The Group firmly believes that the quality of its 
products goes beyond their technical characteristics; a quality 
product is one that is made responsibly, with a focus on health 
and safety, and with respect for human rights, workers’ rights, 
the environment and animal welfare.

For the above-mentioned reasons, since 2015 Moncler 
has strengthened its commitment to integrated sustainabil-
ity management by establishing a sophisticated governance 
system, which provides for interaction between the different 
bodies.

The Sustainability Unit was created, which is responsi-
ble for identifying and, together with the relevant functions, 
managing risks related to sustainability, identifying areas and 
actions for improvement, proposing the sustainability strate-
gy and drawing up the Sustainability Plan, preparing the Con-
solidated Non-Financial Statement, and fostering a culture of 
sustainability at the company. 

The Sustainability Unit also consults with a technical Sus-
tainability Committee. This Committee, includes the mem-
bers of the Strategic Committee and the heads of the relevant 
functions of the Group, performs a consultative role, assesses 
the proposals of the Sustainability Unit, supervises sustain-
ability guidelines and objectives, and analyses the extent to 
which targets are achieved.

“Ambassadors” have been selected from each company 
department, to raise awareness of social and environmental 
issues in the areas where they operate and to promote sus-
tainability initiatives that are in keeping with the Group’s ob-
jectives. “Sustainability data owners” have also been picked, 

each responsible, in their area, for data and information pub-
lished in the Consolidated Statement on Non-Financial Disclo-
sure and for achieving the objectives in the sustainability Plan 
objectives, for areas in their responsibility.

In a further sign that the company’s top management sup-
ports and promotes sustainability, a Control, Risk and Sus-
tainability Committee is present at a Board of Directors’ level. 
The Board of Directors has given the Committee the task of 
supervising sustainability issues connected to the activities of 
the company and its interactions with stakeholders, defining 
strategic sustainability guidelines and the associated action 
plan (Sustainability Plan), as well as reviewing the Consolidat-
ed Non-Financial Statement.

In compliance with article 5, paragraph 3, letter b of Leg-
islative Decree no. 254/2017, Moncler has issued a Consoli-
dated Non-Financial Statement, which comprises a separate 
report. The 2017 Consolidated Non-Financial Statement, pre-
pared “in compliance” with Sustainability Reporting Guide-
lines (version G4) – core option, issued by Global Reporting 
Initiative (GRI) and partially audited by KPMG S.p.A., is availa-
ble on the Group’s website. 

The 2017 Consolidated Non-Financial Statement de-
scribes the most significant activities carried out in 2017 on 
an environmental, social and economic level, and publishes 
results achieved in relation to Sustainability Plan objectives. 
This annual plan is prepared by the Group as part of its com-
mitment to continuous improvement and sets out its future 
goals. It reflects Moncler’s desire to grow and develop while 
also taking into account the interest of all various stakeholder.

For Moncler, the true value of the company lies in the 
way the Group does business, in its contribution to 
society as a whole and in the determination to honour 
its commitments. The growing integration of social and 
environmental impact assessments into business decisions 
is what underpins the Group’s ability to create long-term 
value for all stakeholders.
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MONCLER  
AND THE FINANCIAL 
MARKETS

In fact, thanks to results above the expectations of the finan-
cial community, and an ongoing dialogue with investors and 
financial analysts, Moncler recorded a Total Shareholders Re-
turn (TSR) of 59% in 2017, the highest figure for the luxury 
goods’ sector after the Kering Group, outperforming the top 
40 shares listed on the Italian stock exchange (FTSE MIB), as 
indicated in the table below.

Source: FACTSET

Moncler’s market capitalisation at December 31, 2017 was 
equal to 6.6 billion euros, compared to 4.1 billion euros at 
December 31, 2016.
The number of shares at December 31, 2017 was equal to 

254,778,741; major shareholders are indicated in the chart 
below. In particular, the following significant changes in own-
ership structure took place:
• During 2017, 4,405,000 stock options relative to the 

2014-2018 “Top Management and Key people” Stock Op-
tion Plan and 159,017 stock options relative to the 2014-
2018 “Italian Corporate Structures” Plan (equal to a total 
of 4,564,017 stock options) were exercised with the rel-
ative issue of new shares, that increased the total num-
ber of Moncler shares from 250,214,724 at December 31, 
2016 to 254,778,741 at December 31, 2017;

• Between June 26 and August 7, Moncler completed a pro-
gramme to purchase 1,000,000 treasury shares (equal to 
0.4% of the share capital), in addition to the number of 
treasury shares already held (equal to 1,000,000), to be 
used for existing and future stock-based incentive plans;

• on October 26, Eurazeo, a private equity fund, sold its 
interest in Moncler, held through ECIP M S.A., decreas-
ing its investment in the company from 9.5% to 5.3%. The 
shares were mainly sold through an accelerated book-
build on international markets for a total around 210 mil-
lion euros.

During 2017, Moncler engaged with the financial community 
(investors, analysts), mainly through conferences on the lux-
ury goods sectors and roadshows in main financial cities and 
markets around the world; investment funds were also invited 
to the Milan offices and to events at the company’s f lagship 
stores.

2017

Kering SA 87.5%

Moncler SpA 59.1%

LVMH Moet Hennessy Louis Vuitton 37.9%

Brunello Cucinelli S.p.A. 33.7%

Burberry Group plc 22.6%

Hermes International SCA 15.4%

Prada S.p.A. 11.3%

TOD'S S.p.A. 1.2%

Salvatore Ferragamo S.p.A. 0.4%

Sector average 29.9%

FTSE MIB 13.6%

2017 saw further growth on financial markets  
and in the luxury goods sector worldwide.  
This performance was particularly significant for some 
international players, including Moncler.
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SHAREHOLDING

67.6%

26.3%

5.3%

0.8%

Market

Ruffini Partecipazioni 
S.r.l.

ECIP M S.A.

Treasury Shares

Source: Consob, Moncler

Last update: February 26, 2018

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 

The main events in 2018 related to the Moncler reporting timeline are provided below:

Date Event

Monday, February 26, 2018 Board of Directors: Approval of the Draft Consolidated Results for Financial Year ended December 31, 2017

Tuesday, February 27, 2018 Capital Markets Day

Monday, April 16 , 2018 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting for Approval of the Full Year Financial Statements at December 31, 2017

Friday, May 4, 2018 Board of Directors: Approval of the Interim Management Statement at March 31, 2018 (*)

Wednesday, July 25, 2018 Board of Directors: Approval of the Half-Yearly Financial Report at June 30, 2018 (*)

Wednesday, October 24, 2018 Board of Directors: Approval of the Interim Management Statement at September 30, 2018 (*) 

* A conference call with institutional investors and equity research analysts will take place following the Board of Directors’ meeting.
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SECTION  
TWO
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INTRODUCTION 

In accordance with Article 40, paragraph 2 bis  
of the Legislative Decree 127 of 09/04/91,  
the Parent Company has prepared the Directors’ 
Report as a single document for both the  
separate financial statements of Moncler S.p.A.  
and the Group consolidated financial statements.
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PERFORMANCE 
OF THE MONCLER 
GROUP 
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Following are the consolidated income statements for financial years 2017 and 2016.

EBITDA is not a recognised measure of financial performance under IFRS, but it is a measure commonly used by both manage-
ment and investors when evaluating the operating performance of the Group. EBITDA is defined as EBIT (Operating income) plus 
depreciation and amortisation and it can be calculated from the consolidated income statement data, which have been prepared 
in accordance with the IFRS, integrated with the Explanatory Notes.

(Euro/000) Fiscal Year 2017 % on Revenues Fiscal Year 2016 % on Revenues

Revenues 1,193,704 100.0% 1,040,311 100.0%

YoY growth +15% +18%

Cost of sales (276,186) (23.1%) (252,303) (24.3%)

Gross margin 917,518 76.9% 788,008 75.7%

Selling expenses (365,103) (30.6%) (312,353) (30.0%)

General & Administrative expenses (108,660) (9.1%) (94,093) (9.0%)

Advertising & Promotion (79,393) (6.7%) (68,143) (6.6%)

Stock-based Compensation (23,485) (2.0%) (15,738) (1.5%)

EBIT 340,877 28.6% 297,681 28.6%

YoY growth +15% +18%

Net financial result7 (5,182) (0.4%) (4,592) (0.4%)

EBT 335,695 28.1% 293,089 28.2%

Taxes (85,927) (7.2%) (96,767) (9.3%)

Tax Rate 25.6% 33,0%

Net Income, including Non-controlling interests 249,768 20.9% 196,322 18.9%

Non-controlling interests (80) (0.0%) (279) (0.0%)

Net Income, Group share 249,688 20.9% 196,043 18.8%

YoY growth +27% +17%

EBITDA Adjusted 411,635 34.5% 355,054 34.1%

YoY growth +16% +18%

7. Fiscal Year 2017: FX gain/(losses) (3.841) thousand euros; other financial items (1.341) thousand euros.
Fiscal Year 2016: FX gain/(losses) (1.851) thousand euros; other financial items (2.741) thousand euros.
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CONSOLIDATED REVENUES ANALYSIS

In 2017 Moncler recorded revenues of 1,193.7 million euros, compared to revenues of 1,040.3 million euros in 2016, an increase 
of 17% at constant exchange rates and an increase of 15% at current exchange rates.  

In Italy, revenues rose 4% at constant exchange rates, with balanced performances in both the retail and the wholesale distri-
bution channels. In particular, in the fourth quarter the retail channel benefited from a good organic growth and the re-opening 
of the flagship store in Milan, Via Montenapoleone.

In EMEA, Moncler’s revenues grew 19% at constant exchange rates, with double-digit growth in both the retail and the 
wholesale channels and in the main markets. The brand recorded very good performances in France, in the United Kingdom 
and in Germany. The United Kingdom has achieved, even in the last quarter of the year, a double-digit growth, notwithstanding 
a challenging comparison base, thanks to the good organic results of the Directly Operated Stores and to the development of 
important wholesale clients, included some e-tailers. Also in France, revenues continued to grow at double-digit in the fourth 
quarter, supported by the local demand and the positive travellers’ f low. Moncler achieved very good performances in Germany 
too, both in the retail and the wholesale channel.

In Asia and Rest of the World, revenues increased 20% at constant exchange rates. In the fourth quarter, the Japanese market 
recorded a double-digit growth, benefiting from good demand from local customers and travellers. Robust performances con-
tinued in China, driven by a double-digit organic growth also in the fourth quarter, and in Hong Kong, where has been opened 
the flagship store in Canton Road, as well as in the remaining markets of Asia-Pacific. In Korea, Moncler achieved very good 
performances, mainly driven by the existing store network good results. In 2017 Moncler has also reinforced its presence in 
some Asian cities, characterised by a particularly strong touristic f low (Guam, Auckland, Bangkok, Macau, Taipei), thanks to the 
opening of wholesale mono-brand stores.

In the Americas, revenues grew 14% at constant exchange rates, slightly accelerating in the last quarter, despite the tough 
comparison base. Very good results in Canada and in the United States for both the retail and the wholesale distribution chan-
nels, thanks to the solid growth of existing retail stores, showing an improved trend compared to the previous quarter, and to 
the openings of new wholesale shop-in-shops.

In 2017, revenues from the retail distribution channel increased to 892.4 million euros compared to 764.2 million euros in 2016, 
representing an increase of 19% at constant exchange rates, thanks to a robust organic growth and to a further development of 
our network of mono-brand retail stores (DOS). Furthermore, other important projects, related to the expansion and the reloca-
tion of existing stores, have been successfully completed during the year.
In 2017, the Group achieved Comparable Store Sales Growth8 of 14%. 
The wholesale channel recorded revenues of 301.3 million euros compared to 276.1 million euros in 2016, an increase of 10% at 
constant exchange rates, driven by good results, in particular, in the United Kingdom and North America markets.

ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATING AND NET RESULTS

COST OF GOODS SOLD AND GROSS MARGIN

In 2017 the consolidated gross margin was 917.5 million euros, equivalent to 76.9% of revenues compared to 75.7% in 2016. This 
improvement was mainly attributable to growth in the retail channel and higher production efficiency.

SELLING EXPENSES AND EBIT

Selling expenses were 365.1 million euros, equivalent to 30.6% of revenues compared to 30.0% in 2016. This increase was largely re-
lated to the expansion of the retail channel. General and administrative expenses were 108.6 million euros, equal to 9.1% of revenues, 

Revenues by Region

Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016 YoY growth %

(Euro/000) % (Euro/000) %
At current

exchange rates
At constant

exchange rates

Italy 149,349 12.5% 143,186 13.8% +4% +4%

EMEA (excl. Italia) 352,367 29.5% 303,344 29.2% +16% +19%

Asia and Rest of the World 495,476 41.5% 418,524 40.2% +18% +20%

Americas 196,512 16.5% 175,257 16.8% +12% +14%

Total Revenues 1,193,704 100.0% 1,040,311 100.0% +15% +17%

Revenues by Distribution Channel  

Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016 YoY growth %

(Euro/000) % (Euro/000) %
At current

exchange rates
At constant

exchange rates

Retail 892,383 74.8% 764,173 73.5% +17% +19%

Wholesale 301,321 25.2% 276,138 26.5% +9% +10%

Total Revenues 1,193,704 100.0% 1,040,311 100.0% +15% +17%
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compared to 9.0% in 2016. Advertising expenses were 79.4 million euros, representing 6.7% of revenues compared to 6.6% in 2016.
Adjusted EBITDA9 rose to 411.6 million euros, compared to 355.1 million euros in 2016, resulting in an EBITDA margin of 34.5% 
compared to 34.1% in 2016. The increase in the profitability is mainly linked to the gross margin improvement and to the strict 
control on operating costs, in particular on the retail selling costs.
Depreciation and amortisation rose to 47.2 million euros, an increase of 14% compared to 41.7 million euros, representing 4.0% 
of revenues, as in 2016. This increase is largely attributable to the retail development, both related to new openings and to re-
locations/expansions.
Stock-based compensation costs include non-cash costs related to the stock option and to the performance shares plans and 
were equal to 23.5 million euros, compared to 15.7 million euros in 2016.
EBIT was 340.9 million euros, an increase of 15% compared to 297.7 million euros in 2016, representing an EBIT margin of 28.6%, 
stable compared to 2016.

NET FINANCIAL RESULT

In 2017 the net financial result was negative and equal to 5.2 million euros, including 3.8 million euros of forex losses. In 2016 
net financial result was negative and equal to 4.6 million euros, including 1.9 million euros of forex losses. Net of these losses, 
net financial result was equal to 1.3 million euros in 2017, compared to 2.7 million euros in 2016.
In 2017 the tax rate was 25.6%, compared to 33.0% in the previous fiscal year. The decrease is mainly due to a reduction of the 
IRES corporate tax in Italy and to the fiscal benefits related to Patent Box, net of costs related to tax claims, as reported in the 
section “Significant Events Occurred During The Financial Year 2017”.
In 2017 Net Income, Group share was 249.7 million euros, equivalent to 20.9% of revenues, an increase of 27% compared to 196 
million euros in 2016.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

Following are the reclassified consolidated statements of financial position for financial years 2017 and 2016.

NET WORKING CAPITAL

Net working capital was 89.7 million euros, a decrease compared to 108.1 million euros at 31 December 2016, equivalent to 8% of 
last-twelve-months revenues, compared to 10% as of 31 December 2016. This improvement is related to a better management of 
inventories and accounts receivable, and an extraordinary increase of accounts payable largely related to costs for the openings 
of new DOS ad for relocations/expansions, occurred in the fourth quarter of 2017.

(Euro/000) 31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Intangible Assets 426,269 422,464

Tangible Assets 138,127 123,925

Other Non-current Assets/(Liabilities) 22,136 16,377

Total Non-current Assets 586,532 562,766

Net Working Capital 89,655 108,127

Other Current Assets/(Liabilities) (47,010) (55,980)

Total Current Assets 42,645 52,147

Invested Capital 629,177 614,913

Net Debt/(Net Cash) (304,952) (105,796)

Pension and Other Provisions 10,598 17,138

Shareholders' Equity 923,531 703,571

Total Sources 629,177 614,913

(Euro/000) 31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Accounts receivables 120,708 104,864

Inventory 136,159 135,849

Accounts payables (167,212) (132,586)

Net working capital 89,655 108,127

% on Last Twelve Months Revenues 8% 10%

8. Comparable Store Sales Growth is based on sales growth in DOS (excluding outlets) which have been opened for at least 52 weeks 
and in the online store; stores that have been extended and/or relocated are excluded from the calculation.
9. Before non-cash costs related to stock-based compensation.
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NET FINANCIAL POSITION

Net financial position at 31 December 2017 was positive and equal to 304.9 million euros compared to 105.8 million euros at 31 
December 2016.
Net Financial Position is broken down in the following table:

Following is the reclassified consolidated statement of cash flow for financial years 2017 and 2016:

Free cash flow in 2017 was equal to 244.3 million euros, compared to 210.6 million euros in 2016.

NET CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Net capital expenditure was 72.5 million euros in 2017, compared to 62.3 million euros in 2016. The increase is mainly due to 
investments in the retail network and to some important relocations and expansions.
The following table shows the breakdown of capex by category:

(Euro/000) 31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Cash and cash equivalents 394,144 243,389

Long-term borrowings, net (67,874) (75,835)

Short-term borrowings, net* (21,318) (61,758)

Net financial position 304,952 105,796

(*) net of Financial current assets

(Euro/000) Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016

EBITDA Adjusted 411,635 355,054

Change in NWC 18,472 2,749

Change in other curr./non-curr. assets/(liabilities) (22,231) 16,437

Capex, net (72,497) (62,290)

Operating Cash Flow 335,379 311,950

Net financial result (5,182) (4,592)

Taxes (85,927) (96,767)

Free Cash Flow 244,270 210,591

Dividends paid (45,582) (35,404)

Changes in equity and other changes 468 (19,796)

Net Cash Flow 199,156 155,391

Net Financial Position - Beginning of Period 105,796 (49,595)

Net Financial Position - End of Period 304,952 105,796

Change in Net Financial Position 199,156 155,391

(Euro/000) Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016

Retail 56,539 47,496

Wholesale 5,194 4,101

Corporate 10,765 10,693

Capex 72,498 62,290

% on Revenues 6% 6%
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PERFORMANCE 
OF THE PARENT 
COMPANY  
MONCLER S.P.A.

Following is the income statement of the Parent Company.

Moncler S.p.A. revenues rose to 200.0 million euros in 2017, an increase of 15% compared to revenues of 173.8 million euros in 
2016, mainly arising from proceeds arising out of the licensing of the Moncler brand. The revenue increase is due to the growth 
of the business linked to the development of the Brand.
General and administrative expenses were 21.4 million euros, equal to 10.7% on revenues (10.4% in 2016). Advertising and Promo-
tion expenses were 34.3 million euros 31.0 million euros in 2016.
Stock-based compensation costs include non-cash costs related to the stock option and performance shares plans and in 2017 
were equal to 6.1 million euros (4.9 million euros in 2016), mainly related to stock based incentive plans for employees, directors 
and consultants of the Parent Company.
Net financial costs decreased significantly and were equal to 39 thousand euros, compared to 575 thousand euros in 2016, 
thanks to the improvement of the net financial position, which was positive at year-end.
In 2017 taxes were equal to 4.9 million euros compared to 37.7 million euros in 2016, mainly due to a reduction of the IRES cor-
porate tax and to the fiscal benefits related to Patent Box.
Net income was 133.3 million euros, an increase of 63% compared to 81.5 million euros in 2016.

Moncler S.p.A. Income Statement
(Euro/000) Fiscal Year 2017 % on Revenues Fiscal Year 2016 % on Revenues

Revenues 199,951 100.0% 173,766 100.0%

General & Administrative expenses (21,357) (10.7%) (18,019) (10.4%)

Advertising & Promotion (34,262) (17.1%) (31,044) (17.9%)

Stock-based Compensation (6,144) (3.1%) (4,866) (2.8%)

EBIT 138,188 69.1% 119,837 69.0%

Net financial result (39) (0.0%) (575) (0.3%)

EBT 138,149 69.1% 119,262 68.6%

Taxes (4,895) (2.4%) (37,717) (21.7%)

Net Income 133,254 66.6% 81,545 46.9%
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The Parent Company’s statement of financial position is given below.

The balance sheet of Moncler S.p.A. includes shareholders’ equity of 509.9 million euros at 31 December 2017, compared to 373.7 
million euro at 31 December 2016, and a net financial position of 43.8 million euros, compared to a net debt of 32.9 million euros 
at 31 December 2016.

(Euro/000) 31/12/2017 31/12/2016

Intangible Assets 225,869 226,220

Tangible Assets 60 3

Investments 250,455 233,116

Other Non-current Assets/(Liabilities) (63,381) (62,522)

Total Non-current Assets 413,003 396,817

Net Working Capital 25,237 35,161

Other Current Assets/(Liabilities) 28,703 (24,710)

Total Current Assets 53,940 10,451

Invested Capital 466,943 407,268

Net Debt/(Net Cash) (43,786) 32,884

Pension and Other Provisions 822 658

Shareholders' Equity 509,907 373,726

Total Sources 466,943 407,268
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The most important business risks are monitored by the Con-
trol, Risks and Sustainability Committee and periodically re-
viewed by the Board of Directors, which is responsible for the 
development of the strategy.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH  
THE MARKET IN WHICH THE GROUP 
OPERATES AND WITH GENERAL 
ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Moncler operates in the luxury goods sector which is charac-
terised by a high correlation between the demand of goods 
and the wealth, economic growth and stability in the markets 
where the demand is generated. In addition, the Group’s abil-
ity to develop its business depends to a significant extent on 
the economic situation of the various countries in which it 
operates.

Although the Group operates in a significant number of 
countries around the world, thereby reducing the risk of high 
concentration of the business in specific geographical areas, 
the possible deterioration of economic conditions in one or 
more markets in which it operates may have a negative impact 
on sales and financial results of the Group.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH IMAGE 
AND BRAND RECOGNITION

The luxury goods sector in which Moncler operates is influ-
enced by changes in clients’ tastes and preferences, but also 
by different habits in the regions in which it operates. In ad-
dition, the Group’s success is significantly influenced by the 
image, perception and recognition of the Moncler brand. The 
Group strives to maintain and enhance the strength of the 
Moncler brand, paying particular attention to the quality of 
the products, the design, the innovation, the communica-
tion and the development of its own distribution model, by 
looking for selectivity, quality and sustainability, also in the 
choice of the partners. Moncler is committed to integrating 
sustainability assessments in its actions and decisions, since 
the company believes that the continue creation of value for 
its stakeholders is an essential priority for its reputation.

In case the Group will not be able in the future to main-
tain a high image and brand recognition, through its products 
and activities, sales and financial results may be affected neg-
atively.

MAIN RISKS

Moncler, through the normal business management  
and the development of its strategy, is exposed  
to different types of risks that could adversely affect  
the Group’s operating results and financial position. 
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RISK ASSOCIATED WITH  
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Moncler’s results and success depend significantly on the 
ability of its executive directors and other members of man-
agement, which have had a decisive role in the development 
of the Group and which have a significant experience in the 
luxury goods sector. 

Even though Moncler believes that it has an operational 
and managerial structure capable of ensuring the continuity 
of the business, if the existing relationship with some of these 
individuals were to be interrupted without proper and time-
ly replacement, the competitive ability of the Group and its 
growth prospects may be affected, with a resulting negative 
impact on the economic and financial position of the Group.

This risk is mitigated through the definition of a succes-
sion plan and the adoption of retention plans for key profes-
sional figures.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH 
RELATIONSHIPS WITH THIRD PARTY 
MANUFACTURERS

Moncler directly manages the development of the collections 
and the purchase of raw materials, while for the production 
of its garments it uses both independent third party manufac-
turers, who operate under the close supervision of the Group, 
and internal production. 

Although the Group does not depend to a significant ex-
tent on any given manufacturer, there is the possibility that 
any interruption or termination for any reason of the rela-
tionship with these manufacturers may materially affect the 
Group’s business with a negative impact on sales and earnings.

Moncler maintains constant and continual control over 
its group of third-party manufacturers in order to ensure 
there is full compliance, among other things, with labour laws 
and environmental laws and with the principles of Moncler’s 
Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct for Suppliers. Moncler 
performs audits at these third-party manufacturers and at 
their sub-suppliers. The risk cannot be excluded, however, 
that any one of these might not fully comply with the agree-
ments entered into with Moncler in terms of quality, timely 
delivery and compliance with applicable regulations.

RISKS RELATED TO THE COST  
AND AVAILABILITY OF HIGH 
QUALITY RAW MATERIALS,  
TO THE CONTROL OF THE SUPPLY 
CHAIN AND TO THE RELATIONSHIPS 
WITH SUPPLIERS 

Moncler’s products require raw materials of high quality, in-
cluding, but not limited to, nylon, down and cotton. The price 
of raw materials depends on a wide variety of factors largely 
beyond the control of the Group and difficult to predict. 

Although in recent years Moncler has not encountered 
any particular difficulties in the purchasing of high quality 
raw materials to the extent appropriate, it cannot be excluded 

that there could be some tension on the supply side that could 
lead to a shortage of supply resulting in an increase in costs 
that could have a negative impact on the financial results of 
the Group.

Moncler adopts a stringent policy with all its raw material 
suppliers, who are required to abide by clear commitments 
to quality and compliance with current legislation on worker 
protection, animal protection and environmental protection. 
With regards to animal welfare, Moncler created a multi-stake-
holder forum, which approved and constantly monitors and 
integrates the DIST (Down Integrity System and Traceability) 
Protocol, focused on the down. All suppliers have to scrupu-
lously comply with it, in order to guarantee the traceability of 
raw materials, animal welfare and the highest quality stand-
ards for all the supply chain.  

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH  
THE DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Moncler generates an increasing portion of its revenues 
through the retail channel, consisting of directly operated mo-
no-brand stores (DOS). The Group has over the years demon-
strated the ability to open new stores in the most prestigious 
locations in the most important cities in the world and within 
high profile department stores, despite competition among 
key players in the luxury goods sector to secure a strong po-
sition in that sector. This is the reason why the fact that the 
Group might face difficulties in opening new stores, which 
could have a negative impact on the growth of the business, 
should not be excluded.
In addition, by its nature, the retail business is characterised 
by a great incidence of fixed costs, mainly related to rental 
agreements. Although Moncler’s management showed the 
ability in the years to develop a profitable retail business, it 
cannot be excluded that a potential turnover slowdown could 
reduce the Group’s capability to generate profits.

RISKS RELATED TO BRAND  
AND PRODUCT COUNTERFEITING 
AND THE PROTECTION OF 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 

The luxury goods market is known to be prone to brand and 
product counterfeiting. 

Moncler has made considerable investments in the adop-
tion of innovative technologies which allow products to be 
tracked along the value chain, to prevent and mitigate the ef-
fects of counterfeiting of its brands and products and to pro-
tect its intellectual property rights in the territories in which 
it operates. However, it cannot be excluded that the presence 
on the market of significant quantities of counterfeit products 
may adversely affect the image of the brand, with a negative 
impact on sales and operating results.
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RISKS RELATED TO THE EVOLUTION 
OF THE REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 

Moncler operates in a complex international environment and 
is subject, in the various jurisdictions in which it operates, 
to rules and regulations which are constantly monitored, 
especially for all matters relating to the health and safety of 
workers, environmental protection, rules around manufactur-
ing of products and their composition, consumer protection, 
the protection of intellectual and industrial property rights, 
competition rules, fiscal rules, and, in general, all relevant 
regulatory provisions.

The Group operates following the legal provisions in 
force. Nevertheless, since the legislation on some matters, 
especially on tax issues, is characterised by a high degree of 
complexity and subjectivity, it cannot be excluded that a dif-
ferent interpretation to that of the Group could have a signif-
icant impact on the results.

The enactment of new legislation or amendments to ex-
isting laws which may require the adoption of more stringent 
standards could lead, by way of example, to costs of compli-
ance linked to the production process or the features of the 
products, or could even limit the Group’s operations with a 
negative impact on the financial results.

EXCHANGE RATE RISKS

Moncler operates in international markets using currencies 
other than the Euro, of which mainly Yen, U.S. Dollar, Renmin-
bi and Hong Kong Dollar.  Therefore it is exposed to the risk 
associated with fluctuations in exchange rates, equal to the 
transaction amount (mainly income) which are not covered 
by a matching transaction of the same currency. In 2014, the 
Group initiated a strategy to gradually hedge the risks asso-
ciated with exchange rates f luctuations limiting its actions to 
the so called “transactional risk”.

However, also due to the so called “translational risk”, 
arising from the translation in Euro of financial statements of 
foreign companies denominated in local currency, it cannot 
be excluded that significant changes in exchange rates could 
have an positive or negative impact on the Group’s results and 
financial position.
For more information, please refer to the specific section 9.1 
of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Net Financial Position of the Group consists of cash and 
bank loans denominated primarily in Euros and is subject to 
interest rate risk. The Group, in order to partially hedge the 
interest rate risk, has entered into some hedging transactions. 

However, any significant f luctuations in interest rates 
could lead to an increase in borrowing costs, with a negative 
impact on the Group’s financial results. 
For more information, please refer to the specific section of 
the Notes to the Financial Statements 9.1.

CREDIT RISK

Moncler operates in accordance with the credit control pol-
icies aimed at reducing the risks resulting from insolvency 
of its wholesale customers. These policies are based on pre-
liminary in-depth analysis of the reliability of the customers 
and based on eventual insurance coverage and/or guaranteed 
form of payment. In addition, the Group has no significant 
concentrations of credit. 

However, it cannot be excluded that the difficulty of 
some clients may result in losses on receivables, with a nega-
tive impact on the Group’s financial results.
For more information, please refer to the section 9.2 of the 
Notes to the Financial Statements.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group has implemented financial planning process aimed 
at reducing the liquidity risk, also taking into consideration 
the seasonality of the business. Based upon the financial re-
quirements, credit lines required to meet those needs are 
planned with the financial institutions and are classified be-
tween short-term and long-term. 

Moreover, given the risk of losing the capital, the Group 
follows strict rules to balance its deposits and cash liquidity 
in an appropriate number of highly rated bank institutions, 
avoiding the concentration and using only risk-free financial 
products.
For more information, please refer to the section 9.3 of the 
Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Moncler S.p.A. (the “Company” or “Parent Company”) has 
adopted a traditional model of governance, which is struc-
tured as follows:
• the Board of Directors is the pivotal element of the cor-

porate governance system, overseeing all company busi-
ness and providing guidelines for the Group, with the ob-
jective of maximising value for shareholders. The Board 
has established an Appointments and Remuneration 
Committee and Control, Risks and Sustainability Com-
mittee, comprising board members (Board Committees); 
these Committees have an advisory function, in line with 
recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code en-
dorsed by the Company;

• the Board of Statutory Auditors monitors: (i) compliance 
with law and with the By Laws, the application of the prin-
ciples of good business administration and the adequacy 
of the instructions provided by the Parent Company to 
subsidiaries; (ii) within the scope of its capacities, the ad-
equacy of the company’s organisational structure, the in-
ternal control system and the administrative accounting 
system, as well as the reliability of the latter in reporting 
operations accurately; (iii) the practical application of the 
corporate governance rules provided by the codes of con-
duct endorsed by the company; (iv) the effectiveness of 
the internal auditing and risk management system, the 
auditing of accounts and the independence of the audit 
firm; and (v) the financial reporting process;

• the Shareholders’ Meeting, which is convened in ordinary 
and/or extraordinary session, is responsible for decisions 
concerning: (i) the appointment and dismissal of mem-
bers of the Board of Directors and the Board of Statutory 
Auditors, and setting their fees; (ii) the approval of finan-
cial statements and the allocation of profit; (iii) amend-
ments to the By Laws; (iv) the appointment of the audit 
firm, upon reasoned proposal by the Board of Statutory 
Auditors; and (v) incentive plans;

• the audit firm is responsible for the statutory auditing of 
accounts. The audit firm is appointed by the Sharehold-
ers’ Meeting in accordance with the By Laws. The Civil 
Code requires the audit firm to conduct its activities in 
complete independence and autonomy, and as such does 
not represent the controlling shareholders or minority 
interests.

KPMG S.p.A. was appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting 
as the audit firm for the separate and consolidated financial 
statements for the years 2013 to 2021.

As part of the Internal Control and Risk Management 
System adopted by the Parent Company, a Supervisory Board 
comprising three members and directly reporting to the Board 
of Directors has also been established pursuant to Legislative 
Decree no. 231/01 as amended. This Board monitors the ade-
quacy of rules, mechanisms and internal controls within the 
Group.

For more information on corporate governance, including 
information on Board of Directors committees, the supervisory 
body and the manager in charge of financial reporting, see the 
Governance section of the website www.monclergroup.com. 
The Corporate Governance and Ownership Report and subse-
quent amendments (prepared in accordance with Article 123-
bis of Legislative Decree 58/1998) is published on the website 
together with other corporate documents.  

On March 28, 2014, the Board of Directors approved an 
“Organisation, Management and Control Model” (the “Model”) 
in accordance with Legislative Decree 231 of June 8, 2001 gov-
erning “the administrative liability of legal entities, companies 
and associations with or without legal personality, pursuant 
to Article 11 of Law 300 of September 29, 2000”. The Mod-
el identifies the principles and tools for controlling activities 
considered potentially at risk and forms an integrated part of 
the internal control system, together with the Code of Ethics 
adopted by Moncler.
The Code of Ethics represents the values the Group identifies 
with. It sets out the responsibilities and ethical commitments 
for doing business which must be observed by all people and 
organisations the Code applies to, including entities that do 
not belong to the Group but do business with it (in particular 
suppliers, contractors, consultants, outsourced staff, partners). 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT58



MONCLER — ANNUAL REPORT AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 59



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT60

RELATED-PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS
Information relating to related party transactions are provided 
in Note 10.1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 
8.1 to the Separate Financial Statements.

ATYPICAL  
AND/OR UNUSUAL 
TRANSACTIONS
There are no positions or transactions deriving from atypical 
and/or unusual transactions that could have a significant im-
pact on the results and financial position of the Group and the 
Parent Company.

TREASURE SHARES
Moncler owns 2.000.000 Company shares, equal to 0.8% of 
the current share capital.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 
OCCURRED DURING 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2017

DIVIDENDS

On April 20, 2017, Moncler Ordinary Shareholders Meeting ap-
proved the Group’s results for fiscal year 2016 and the distribu-
tion of a gross dividend of 0.18 euros per ordinary share, with 
coupon date of May 22, 2017 and payment date of May 24, 2017. 
In 2017, Moncler distributed 45.5 million euros of dividends.

SHARE PURCHASES PLAN

On June 26, 2017, Moncler launched a share buyback pro-
gramme for a maximum of 1,000,000 Moncler S.p.A. ordinary 
shares (equal to 0.4% of current share capital), in accordance 
with the resolution of the Shareholders’ Meeting of 20 April 
2017. As of that date, Moncler already held 1,000,000 Moncler 
S.p.A. ordinary shares, bought in 2016 in accordance with the 
resolution of the Shareholders’ Meeting of 23 April 2015.

In implementation of the programme, completed on 
August 7, 2017, Moncler acquired 1,000,000 ordinary shares 
(equal to 0.4% of Moncler share capital), for a total amount of 
21.3 million euros.

SIGNED AGREEMENT ON PATENT 
BOX AND TAX SETTLEMENT

In December 2017, Moncler signed an agreement with the Ital-
ian Revenue Agency to access the Patent Box’s tax relief and to 
settle the pending tax claim related to transfer pricing matters 
as reported in the 2016 Annual Report (“Significant event oc-
curred during the year”).

The legislation on Patent Box provides a tax relief regime 
for a five-year period from 2015 to 2019. The estimated tax 
benefit for Moncler for the three-year period 2015-2017 is ap-
proximately 34 million euros and has been fully reflected in 
the Group’s Fiscal Year 2017 results. The 2018 and 2019 tax 
benefit will be quantified and disclosed in the Group’s respec-
tive annual financial statements.

The tax settlement resolves some transfer pricing mat-
ters regarding transactions with foreign affiliates, all of which 
operate in countries with ordinary tax regimes. The total cost 
of this tax settlement is of 24.5 million euros, which, net of 
existing provisions, has a net impact of 14.5 million euros on 
2017 results.

The tax rate of Moncler Group in 2017 was equal to 25.6%, 
compared to 33.0% in 2016. This result is due to the fiscal 
benefits related to Patent Box (34 million euros), the net cost 
associated with the tax settlements (14.5 million euros), and 
the reduction of corporate tax rate (IRES) in Italy.

EXTENSION OF THE JOINT VENTURE 
MONCLER JAPAN

The Board of Directors S.p.A. (the “Company”) has approved 
on July 26, 2017 an amendment (the “Amendment”) to the 
Joint Venture Agreement entered into with Yagi Tsusho Lim-
ited (“Yagi”) on October 12, 2008, as subsequently amended 
(the “JV Agreement”), for the incorporation of Moncler Japan 
Corporation (“Moncler Japan”), of which the Company owns 
– through its subsidiary Industries S.p.A. – 51% of the share 
capital, while remaining 49% is owned by Yagi. 
The Amendment provides for:
• the extension of the term of the JV Agreement, upon the 

occurrence of certain conditions, for additional 5 years 
after its current expiration term of December 31, 2023;

• the amendment of the terms and conditions of the pur-
chase option recognised to the Company and of the re-
lated option to sell recognised to Yagi on its entire stake 
of 49% of the share capital of Moncler Japan, by stating 
that such options could be exercised, respectively, by and 
towards Moncler Japan, no more upon the expiration, or 
early termination, of the JV Agreement, but progressive-
ly, once per year, between 2018 and 2024, in compliance 
with the Japanese regulations governing the acquisition 
of treasure shares, at a price equal to the prorated value 
of Moncler Japan’s net equity at the end of each related 
financial year, instead of the price initially agreed, which 
was the fair market value of the stake, based on specific 
indicators provided under the JV Agreement; 

• certain changes in the corporate governance of Moncler 
Japan which, effective as of January 1, 2018, will lead to a 
reinforcement of the management and control powers of 
the Company; and 

• an adjustment of the considerations provided under the 
agreement for the distribution of the Moncler products 
in Japan, entered into on July 15, 2009 and subsequently 
renewed, in execution of the JV Agreement, between the 
Company, in its quality as holder of the Moncler brand, 
the subsidiary Industries S.p.A., in its quality as exclusive 
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importer and Moncler Japan, in its quality as distributor 
(the “Distribution Contract”);

The transactions provided for by the Amendment (the “Trans-
actions”) are to be considered as transactions with related 
parties of minor importance, pursuant to Article 2391-bis Civ-
il Code and pursuant to the Related-Party Transactions Regu-
lation adopted by CONSOB with resolution no. 17221 of March 
12, 2010, as subsequently amended (the “RPT Regulation”), 
and to the procedure governing related-party transactions 
adopted by the Company (the “RPT Procedure”), since these 
will be carried out by the Company and by and between the 
subsidiaries Industries S.p.A. and Moncler Japan.
The Transactions and the Amendment have been approved by 
the Board of Directors of the Company held on July 26, 2017, 
prior the obtainment of a positive and motivated opinion, 
issued by Related-Party Committee of the Company on July 
25, 2017, following the outcome of the related preliminary 
evaluation.

TERMINATION OF MONCLER GAMME 
BLEU AND MONCLER GAMME 
ROUGE COLLECTIONS

On November 13, 2017, Moncler announced that the collabo-
rations with Thom Browne for Moncler Gamme Bleu and with 
Giambattista Valli for Moncler Gamme Rouge will end with the 
Spring/Summer 2018 collections. Starting from Fall/Winter 
2018, Moncler will start a new creative project announced in 
February 2018 (see section “Significant Events Occurred after 
the Reporting Date” of this Annual Report): Moncler Genius.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 
OCCURRED AFTER 
THE REPORTING DATE
MONCLER GENIUS

On February 20, 2018, Moncler presented a new creative and 
communication chapter, a vision of the future. A vision beyond 
seasons able to establish a daily dialogue with the customers: 
Moncler Genius. A hub of eight exceptional minds operating in 
unison while cultivating their singularity has being able to re-
interpret the Brand; each one devoted to a singular project, all 
of them adding facets to the Moncler’s brand identity.

CAPITAL MARKETS DAY

On February 27, 2018, Moncler will host the Capital Markets 
Day in Milan, during which an update on the Group’s medi-
um-term strategy will be disclosed to the financial commu-
nity. The documents are available on the corporate website 
www.monclergroup.com.
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BUSINESS  
OUTLOOK

STRENGTHENING OF THE BRAND

Since the beginning, the positioning and the communication 
strategy of the brand Moncler have been based on two pillars: 
uniqueness and consistency in its heritage. These pillars are 
and will remain fundamental also in the future. Moncler’s 
strenght is also related to its ability to renew itself with 
continuity. Today’s consumers of luxury goods are evolving 
rapidly and faster than in the past. To take advantage of these 
changes, Moncler has decided to open a new chapter, which 
will drive the Group into its future development.

INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
AND CONSOLIDATION OF KEY 
MARKETS

Over they years, Moncler has followed a clear strategy of in-
ternational growth, while always keeping strong control of 
the business and a direct dialogue with its clients, both in the 
wholesale and in the retail channel. Moncler wants to keep 
on selectively developing the main international markets and 
consolidating its presence in the “core” markets, also thanks 
to the reinforcement of its retail mono-brand stores (DOS) 
network, the controlled expansion of its stores’ average sell-
ing surface, the development of wholesale mono-brand stores 
(SiS), the development of travel retail, and the strenghtening 
of its digital channel.

FOCUS ON CUSTOMERS

Developing a direct relationships with retail, wholesale and 
digital clients, being able to get them involved using all their 
touch points and anticipating their needs: these are the pillars 
of the relationship that Moncler wants to build across chan-
nels with its clients, especially with its local customers, in or-
der to maintain, and if possible strenghten, the Group’s future 
organic growth.

SELECTED EXPANSION  
OF PRODUCT CATEGORIES

The Group is working on a selective expansion in product 
categories that are complementary to its core business and 
where it has, or can achieve, high brand awareness and strong 
know-how.

SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT

The Brand is reinforcing its commitment to sustainable and 
responsible long-term development, which takes account of 
stakeholders’ expectations aiming at shared value creation.

The Group is forecasting a scenario of further growth  
in 2018, based on the following strategic guidelines. 
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Since the Moncler Group’s success depends in part on the look, prestige and brand recognition, and in part on the ability to 
manufacture a set of collections in line with market trends, the company conducts research and development in order to design, 
create and implement new products and new collections. Research and development costs are expensed in the income statement 
as they occur on an accrual basis.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET RESULT AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY OF 
THE PARENT COMPANY AND THE GROUP’S AMOUNTS

The reconciliation between the Group’s net result and shareholders’ equity at the end of the period and the parent Company 
Moncler’s S.p.A. net result and shareholders’ equity is detailed in the following table: 

SECONDARY OFFICES

The Company does not have any secondary offices.

(Euro/000) Result 2017 Net Equity 31/12/17 Result 2016 Net Equity 31/12/16

Parent company balances 133,254 509,907 81,544 373,726

Inter-group dividends (28,532) 0 (25,924) 0

Share of consolidated subsidiaries net of book 
value of related equity interests 143,228 375,948 150,020 277,654

Allocation of the excess cost resulting from 
the acquisition of the subsidiaries and the 
corresponding Equity 0 159,011 0 159,011

Elimination of the intercompany profit  
and losses 2,128 (70,590) (8,604) (72,718)

Translation adjustments 0 (10,969) 0 5,273

Effects of other consolidation entries (390) (39,884) (993) (39,494)

Total Group shares 249,688 923,423 196,043 703,452

Share attributable to non-controlling interests 80 108 279 119

Total 249,768 923,531 196,322 703,571

OTHER  
INFORMATION
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
ART. 2.6.2, PARAGRAPH 8 AND 9 
OF THE RULES OF THE MARKETS 
ORGANISED AND MANAGED BY THE 
ITALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE 

In relation to art. 15 of Consob Regulation adopted with res-
olution n. 20249 on December 28, 2017 as amended and inte-
grated, concerning the conditions for the listing of companies 
with subsidiaries established and regulated under the laws of 
countries outside the European Union and of significance for 
the consolidated financial statements, please note that the 
above mentioned regulation is applicable to six companies 
belonging to the Group (Moncler Japan, Moncler USA, Mon-
cler USA Retail, Moncler Asia Pacific, Moncler Shanghai and 
Moncler Shinsegae) and that adequate procedures to ensure 
full compliance with said rules have been adopted and that 
the conditions referred to in that Article 15 were met.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
ARTICLE 16, PARAGRAPH 4 OF THE 
MARKETS REGULATION ADOPTED 
BY CONSOB WITH RESOLUTION 
20249 OF DECEMBER 28, 2017

Moncler S.p.A. is indirectly controlled by Remo Ruffini 
through Ruffini Partecipazioni Holding S.r.l. (“RPH”), a com-
pany incorporated under the laws of Italy, held 100% by Remo 
Ruffini – and Ruffini Partecipazioni S.r.l., a company incorpo-
rated under the laws of Italy, indirectly controlled by Remo 
Ruffini through RPH.
Moncler S.p.A. is not managed or coordinated by RPH; for 
relative evaluations, reference is made to the Report on Cor-
porate Governance and Ownership Structure, available at 
www.monclergroup.com, “Governance / Shareholders’ Meet-
ing” section.
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MOTION  
TO APPROVE 
THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  
AND THE 
ALLOCATION  
OF THE RESULT FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED  
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Shareholders, 

We invite you to approve the Moncler Group consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 
31, 2017 and the Moncler S.p.A.’s separate financial statements.
We recommend that you approve the distribution of a gross dividend of 0.28 euros per ordinary share, payable out of 
the net income of the financial year 2017 totalling 133,253,774 euros. 

The total amount to be distributed as a dividend, having taken into consideration the number of shares that are 
presently issued as of December 31, 2017 (n. 252,778,741), net of the shares which are directly owned by the Company 
(n. 2,000,000), is equal to 70,778,047 euros. 

It must be noted that the above-mentioned amounts are subject to changes due to the potential issue of new 
shares, following the exercise of stock option rights.

Milan, 26 February 2018

For the Board of Directors

  
  REMO RUFFINI

  CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Consolidated Income Statement
(Euro/000) Notes Financial Year 2017

of which related 
parties (note 10.1) Financial Year 2016

of which related 
parties (note 10.1)

Revenue 4.1 1,193,704 884 1,040,311 590

Cost of sales 4.2 (276,186) (9,291) (252,303) (7,910)

Gross margin 917,518 788,008

Selling expenses 4.3 (365,103) (824) (312,353) (954)

General and administrative expenses 4.4 (108,660) (7,441) (94,093) (7,355)

Advertising and promotion expenses 4.5 (79,393) (68,143)

Stock based compensation 4.6 (23,485) (8,300) (15,738) (7,380)

Operating result 4.7 340,877 297,681

Financial income 4.8 558 492

Financial expenses 4.8 (5,740) (5,084)

Income before taxes 335,695 293,089

Income taxes 4.9 (85,927) (96,767)

Net Income, including Minority 249,768 196,322

Non-controlling interests (80) (279)

Net income, Group share 249,688 196,043

Earnings per share (unit of Euro) 5.16 0.99 0.79

Diluited earnings per share (unit of Euro) 5.16 0.98 0.78

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(Euro/000) Notes Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Net profit (loss) for the period 249,768 196,322

Gains/(Losses) on fair value of hedge derivatives 5.16 505 154

Gains/(Losses) on exchange differences on translating foreign operations 5.16 (16,242) 1,693

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss (15,737) 1,847

Other Gains/(Losses) 5.16 26 (309)

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss 26 (309)

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax (15,711) 1,538

Total Comprehensive income/(loss) 234,057 197,860

Attributable to:
Group
Non controlling interests

233,977
80

197,580
280
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated statement of financial position
(Euro/000) Notes 31/12/17

of which  
related parties  

(note 10.1) 31/12/16

of which  
related parties  

(note 10.1)

Brands and other intangible assets - net 5.1 270,687 266,882

Goodwill 5.1 155,582 155,582

Property, plant and equipment - net 5.3 138,127 123,925

Other non-current assets 5.9 24,064 24,691

Deferred tax assets 5.4 78,991 74,682

Non-current assets 667,451 645,762

Inventories and work in progress 5.5 136,159 135,849

Trade account receivables 5.6 120,708 10,445 104,864 7,523

Income taxes 5.12 38,417 5,560

Other current assets 5.9 19,284 13,356

Financial current assets 5.8 3,884 3,019

Cash and cash equivalent 5.7 394,144 243,389

Current assets 712,596 506,037

Total assets 1,380,047 1,151,799

Share capital 5.16 50,956 50,043

Share premium reserve 5.16 154,827 109,187

Other reserves 5.16 467,952 348,179

Net result, Group share 5.16 249,688 196,043

Equity, Group share 923,423 703,452

Non controlling interests 108 119

Equity 923,531 703,571

Long-term borrowings 5.15 67,874 75,835

Provisions non-current 5.13 4,946 11,880

Pension funds and agents leaving indemnities 5.14 5,652 5,258

Deferred tax liabilities 5.4 68,699 70,953

Other non-current liabilities 5.11 12,220 12,043

Non-current liabilities 159,391 175,969

Short-term borrowings 5.15 25,202 64,777

Trade account payables 5.10 167,212 9,842 132,586 8,131

Income taxes 5.12 36,687 24,577

Other current liabilities 5.11 68,024 3,909 50,319 3,788

Current liabilities 297,125 272,259

Total liabilities and equity 1,380,047 1,151,799
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
(Euro/000)

Other comprehensive income Other reserves

Result of the
period, Group

share
Equity, Group

share

Equity, non
controlling

interest

Total
consolidated

Net EquityNotes Share capital
Share

premium Legal reserve

Cumulative
translation
adj. reserve

Other OCI
items

IFRS 2
reserve

Retained
earnings

Group shareholders' equity at January 1, 2016 5.16 50,025 108,284 10,000 3,581 (40) 11,129 195,316 167,863 546,158 649 546,807

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 300 0 0 0 167,563 (167,863) 0 0 0

Changes in consolidation area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (289) (289)

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 (34,883) 0 (34,883) (521) (35,404)

Share capital increase 18 903 0 0 0 0 0 0 921 0 921

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 0 0 15,530 (21,854) 0 (6,324) 0 (6,324)

Other changes of comprehensive income 0 0 0 1,692 (155) 0 0 0 1,537 1 1,538

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 196,043 196,043 279 196,322

Group shareholders' equity at December 31, 2016 5.16 50,043 109,187 10,300 5,273 (195) 26,659 306,142 196,043 703,452 119 703,571

Group shareholders' equity at January 1, 2017 5.16 50,043 109,187 10,300 5,273 (195) 26,659 306,142 196,043 703,452 119 703,571

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 0 0 0 0 196,043 (196,043) 0 0 0

Changes in consolidation area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 (45,491) 0 (45,491) (91) (45,582)

Share capital increase 913 45,640 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,553 0 46,553

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 0 0 22,195 (37,263) 0 (15,068) 0 (15,068)

Other changes of comprehensive income 0 0 0 (16,242) 531 0 0 0 (15,711) 0 (15,711)

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 249,688 249,688 80 249,768

Group shareholders' equity at December 31, 2017 5.16 50,956 154,827 10,300 (10,969) 336 48,854 419,431 249,688 923,423 108 923,531
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
(Euro/000)

Other comprehensive income Other reserves

Result of the
period, Group

share
Equity, Group

share

Equity, non
controlling

interest

Total
consolidated

Net EquityNotes Share capital
Share

premium Legal reserve

Cumulative
translation
adj. reserve

Other OCI
items

IFRS 2
reserve

Retained
earnings

Group shareholders' equity at January 1, 2016 5.16 50,025 108,284 10,000 3,581 (40) 11,129 195,316 167,863 546,158 649 546,807

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 300 0 0 0 167,563 (167,863) 0 0 0

Changes in consolidation area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (289) (289)

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 (34,883) 0 (34,883) (521) (35,404)

Share capital increase 18 903 0 0 0 0 0 0 921 0 921

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 0 0 15,530 (21,854) 0 (6,324) 0 (6,324)

Other changes of comprehensive income 0 0 0 1,692 (155) 0 0 0 1,537 1 1,538

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 196,043 196,043 279 196,322

Group shareholders' equity at December 31, 2016 5.16 50,043 109,187 10,300 5,273 (195) 26,659 306,142 196,043 703,452 119 703,571

Group shareholders' equity at January 1, 2017 5.16 50,043 109,187 10,300 5,273 (195) 26,659 306,142 196,043 703,452 119 703,571

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 0 0 0 0 196,043 (196,043) 0 0 0

Changes in consolidation area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 (45,491) 0 (45,491) (91) (45,582)

Share capital increase 913 45,640 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,553 0 46,553

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 0 0 22,195 (37,263) 0 (15,068) 0 (15,068)

Other changes of comprehensive income 0 0 0 (16,242) 531 0 0 0 (15,711) 0 (15,711)

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 249,688 249,688 80 249,768

Group shareholders' equity at December 31, 2017 5.16 50,956 154,827 10,300 (10,969) 336 48,854 419,431 249,688 923,423 108 923,531
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Moncler S.p.A.

  
  REMO RUFFINI

  CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Consolidated statement of cash flows
(Euro/000)

Financial Year 
2017

of which 
related parties

Financial Year 
2016

of which  
related parties

Cash flow from operating activities

Consolidated result 249,768 196,322

Depreciation and amortization 47,273 41,635

Net financial (income)/expenses 5,182 4,592

Other non cash (income)/expenses 23,157 15,530

Income tax expenses 85,927 96,767

Changes in inventories - (Increase)/Decrease (3,026) (1,188)

Changes in trade receivables - (Increase)/Decrease (20,748) (2,922) (14,877) (510)

Changes in trade payables - Increase/(Decrease) 40,648 1,711 17,892 (415)

Changes in other current assets/liabilities 8,997 121 26,991 1,092

Cash flow generated/(absorbed) from operating activities 437,178 383,664

Interest and other bank charges paid and received (780) (1,406)

Income tax paid (124,568) (107,917)

Changes in other non-current assets/liabilities 2,282 3,110

Net cash flow from operating activities (a) 314,112 277,451

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (73,479) (63,301)

Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 981 1,011

Net cash flow from investing activities (b) (72,498) (62,290)

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (62,068) (68,592)

Proceeds from borrowings 85 0

Short term borrowings variation 0 (3)

Dividends paid to shareholders (45,491) (34,883)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (91) (521)

Share capital increase 46,553 921

Treasury Shares variation (21,329) (12,801)

Other changes in Net Equity (659) (1,901)

Net cash flow from financing activities (c) (83,000) (117,780)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a)+(b)+(c) 158,614 97,381

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 243,385 146,081

Effect of exchange rate changes (7,855) (77)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 158,614 97,381

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 394,144 243,385
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EXPLANATORY 
NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
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1.

GENERAL 
INFORMATION ABOUT 
THE GROUP

1.1. THE GROUP AND ITS CORE 
BUSINESS

The parent company Moncler S.p.A. is a company established 
and domiciled in Italy, with its registered office located at 
Via Stendhal 47 Milan, Italy, and registration number of 
04642290961.

Moreover, the parent Company Moncler S.p.A. is de facto 
indirectly controlled by Remo Ruffini through Ruffini Parte-
cipazioni Holding S.r.l. (“RPH”), a company incorporated un-
der the laws of Italy, held 100% by Remo Ruffini – and Ruffini 
Partecipazioni S.r.l., a company incorporated under the laws 
of Italy, indirectly controlled by Remo Ruffini through RPH.

The Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the 
year ended December 31, 2017 include the parent company 
and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the “Group”). 

To date, the Group’s core businesses are the creation, 
production and distribution of clothing for men, women and 
children, shoes, leather goods and other accessories under 
the Moncler brand name.

1.2. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION 
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

1.2.1. RELEVANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements have been pre-
pared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (“IASB”) and endorsed by the European Un-
ion. IFRS also includes all International Accounting Stand-
ards (“IAS”) and interpretations of the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”), previously 
known as the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”).

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the con-
solidated income statement, the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of finan-
cial position, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, 
the consolidated statement of cash flows and the explanatory 
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

1.2.2. PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Group presents its consolidated income statement by 
destination, the method that is considered most represent-
ative for the business at hand. This method is in fact con-
sistent with the internal reporting and management of the 
business. 

With reference to the consolidated statement of finan-
cial position, a basis of presentation has been chosen which 
makes a distinction between current and non-current assets 
and liabilities, in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 
60 and thereafter of IAS 1.

The consolidated statement of cash flows is prepared un-
der the indirect method.

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 24, related-party 
transactions with the Group and their impact, if significant, 
on the consolidated statement of financial position, consoli-
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dated income statement and consolidated statement of cash 
flows are reported below.

1.2.3. BASIS FOR MEASUREMENT 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 
on the historical cost basis except for the measurement of 
certain financial instruments (i.e. derivatives measured at fair 
value in accordance with IAS 39) and on a going concern basis.
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Euro 
thousand, which is the functional currency of the markets 
where the Group mainly operates.

1.2.4. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and the related explanatory notes in conformity with IFRS 
requires that management make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the report-
ing date. The estimates and related assumptions are based 
on historical experience and other relevant factors. The ac-
tual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically and any 
variations are reflected in the consolidated income statement 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or even in subsequent periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

In the event that management’s estimate and judgment 
had a significant impact on the amounts recognized in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements or in case that there is a 
risk of future adjustments on the amounts recognized for 
assets and liabilities in the period immediately after the re-
porting date, the following notes will include the relevant in-
formation. 
The estimates pertain mainly to the following captions of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements:
• impairment of non-current assets and goodwill;
• impairment of trade receivables (bad debt provision);
• impairment of inventories (obsolescence provision);
• recoverability of deferred tax assets;
• provision for losses and contingent liabilities.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets with indefinite useful life and goodwill, in-
vestments and other financial assets.

Management periodically reviews non-current assets for 
impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When a 
review for impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount 
is estimated based on the present value of future cash flows 
expect to derive from the asset or from the sale of the asset 
itself, at a suitable discount rate.

When the recoverable amount of a non-current asset is 
less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recog-
nized immediately in profit or loss and the carrying amount is 
reduced to its recoverable amount determined based on value-
in-use calculation or its sale’s value in an arm’s-length transac-
tion, with reference to the most recent Group business plan.

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

The bad debt provision represents management’s best esti-
mate of the probable loss for unrecoverable trade receivables. 
A provision for impairment is determined based on probable 
losses arising from doubtful debt taking into consideration 
the original credit terms, the economic environment and the 
company’s historical trend together with the monitoring con-
trols in place.

IMPAIRMENT OF INVENTORY

The Group manufactures and sells mainly clothing goods that 
are subject to changing consumer needs and fashion trends. 
As a result, it is necessary to consider the recoverability of 
the cost of inventories and the related required provision. In-
ventory impairment represents management’s best estimate 
for losses arising from the sales of aged products, taking into 
consideration their saleability through the Group’s distribu-
tion channels.

RECOVERABILITY OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdic-
tions. Judgment is required in determining the provision for 
income taxes in each territory. The Group recognizes deferred 
tax assets when it is expected that they will be realised within 
a period that is consistent with management estimates and 
business plans.

PROVISION FOR LOSSES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group could be subject to legal and tax litigations aris-
ing in the countries where it operates. Litigation is inevita-
bly subject to risk and uncertainties surrounding the events 
and circumstances associated with the claims and associated 
with local legislation and jurisdiction. In the normal course of 
business, management requests advice from the Group legal 
consultants and tax experts. The recognition of a provision 
is based on management’s best estimate when an outflow of 
resources is probable to settle the obligation and the amount 
can be reliably estimated. In those circumstances where the 
outflow of resources is possible or the amount of the obliga-
tion cannot be reliably measured, the contingent liabilities are 
disclosed in the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2.

SUMMARY  
OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING 
PRINCIPLES USED  
IN THE PREPARATION 
OF THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
The accounting principles 
set out below have been 
applied consistently for 
fiscal year 2017 and the 
prior year.

2.1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise those of 
the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, of which the Parent 
owns, directly or indirectly, a majority of the voting rights and 
over which it exercises control, or from which it is able to ben-
efit by virtue of its power to govern the subsidiaries’ financial 
and operating policies.

The financial results of the subsidiaries are prepared for 
the same reporting period as the parent company, using con-
sistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which 
control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consol-
idated from the date on which control is transferred out of 
the Group. Where the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the 
Consolidated Financial Statements include the results for the 
portion of the reporting period during which the parent com-
pany had control. In the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
non-controlling interests are presented separately within eq-
uity and in the statement of income. Changes in the parent’s 
ownership interest, that do not result in a loss of control or 
changes that represent acquisition of non-controlling inter-
ests after the control has been obtained, are accounted for as 
changes in equity. 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements the 
effects, the balances as well as the unrealized profit or loss 
recognized in assets resulting from intra-group transactions 
are fully eliminated.
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity 
method whereas the initial recognition is stated at acquisition 
cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change 
in the investor’s share of net assets. On acquisition of the in-
vestment any difference between the cost of the investment 
and the investor’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s 
assets and liabilities is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment. If the investor’s share of losses of the associate 
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the investor’s 
interest is reduced to zero and additional losses are provided 
for and a liability is recognized to the extent that the investor 
has incurred a legal obligation or has the intention to make 
payments on behalf of the associate.

2.2. FOREIGN CURRENCY

Items included in the financial statements of each of the 
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the pri-
mary economic environment in which the entity operates (the 
functional currency).

TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying the 
spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary 

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which 
are held at year-end, are translated into the functional curren-
cy at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement on the translation of mon-
etary transactions at a rate different from those at which they 
were translated at initial recognition are recognized in the con-
solidated income statement in the period in which they arise.

TRANSLATION OF THE RESULTS  
OF OVERSEAS BUSINESSES

Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements are translated into the 
Group’s reporting currency of Euros at the exchange rate rul-
ing at the reporting date. Income and expenses are translated 
at the average exchange rate for the reporting period, as it is 
considered to approximate at best the actual exchange rate 
at the transaction date. Differences arising on the adoption 
of this method are recognized separately in other compre-
hensive income and are presented in a separate component 
of equity as translation reserve until disposal of the foreign 
operation. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the 
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the ex-
change rate ruling at the reporting date.

The main exchange rates used to convert into Euro the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries as 
at and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 
31, 2016 are as follows:

Average rate Rate at the end of the period

Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016 As at 31 December 2017 As at 31 December 2016

AED 4.147530 4.063440 4.404400 3.869601

AUD 1.473170 1.464320 1.534600 1.459600

BRL 3.605430 3.856140 3.972900 3.430500

CAD 1.464700 1.465900 1.503900 1.418800

CHF 1.111670 1.090160 1.170200 1.073900

CNY 7.629000 7.352220 7.804400 7.320200

CZK 26.325800 27.034300 25.535000 27.021000

DKK 7.438630 7.445190 7.444900 7.434400

GBP 0.876674 0.819483 0.887230 0.856180

HKD 8.804510 8.592190 9.372000 8.175100

HUF 309.193000 311.438000 310.330000 309.830000

JPY 126.711000 120.197000 135.010000 123.400000

KRW 1,276.740000 1,284.180000 1,279.610000 1,269.360000

KZT 368.876000 n/a 397.960000 n/a

MOP 9.068830 8.851500 9.653200 8.420120

MXN 22.039500 n/a 23.661200 n/a

NOK 9.327040 n/a 9.840300 n/a

PLN 4.257000 4.363200 4.177000 4.410300

RON 4.568790 4.490430 4.658500 4.539000

RUB 65.938300 74.144600 69.392000 64.300000

SEK 9.635100 n/a 9.843800 n/a

SGD 1.558820 1.527540 1.602400 1.523400

TRY 4.120630 3.343250 4.546400 3.707200

TWD 34.363500 35.689200 35.655500 33.999500

USD 1.129680 1.106900 1.199300 1.054100
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2.3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations are accounted under the acquisition 
method.

Under this method, the identifiable assets acquired and 
the liabilities assumed are measured initially at their acquisi-
tion-date fair values. The costs incurred in a business combi-
nation are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which 
the services are rendered.

Goodwill is determined as the excess of the aggregate of 
the considerations transferred, of any non-controlling inter-
ests and, in a business combination achieved in stages, the fair 
value of previously held equity interest in the acquiree com-
pared to the net amounts of fair value of assets transferred 
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. If the fair value 
of the net assets acquired is greater than the acquisition cost, 
the difference is recognized directly in the statement of in-
come at the acquisition date. Non-controlling interests could 
be measured either at their fair value at the acquisition date 
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the 
identifiable net assets. The election of either method is done 
for each single business combination.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is 
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurred, the Group shall report in the financial 
statements provisional amounts for the items for which the 
accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, 
that shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date, the 
provisional amounts are retrospectively adjusted to reflect 
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that 
existed at the acquisition date and, if known, would have af-
fected the measurement of assets and liabilities recognized 
at that date.

2.4. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
AVAILABLE FOR SALE AND 
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Non-current assets available for sale and discontinued opera-
tions are classified as available for sale when their values are 
recoverable mainly through a probable sale transaction. In 
such conditions, they are valued at the lower of their carrying 
value or fair value, net of cost to sell if their value is mainly re-
coverable through a sale transaction instead of continued use.
Discontinued operations are operations that:
• include a separate line of business or a different geo-

graphical area;
• are part of a single coordinated plan for the disposal of 

a separate major line of business or geographical area of 
activity;

• consist of subsidiaries acquired exclusively for the pur-
pose of being sold.

In the consolidated income statement, non-current assets 
held for sale and disposal groups that meet the requirements 
of IFRS 5 to be defined as “discontinued operations”, are pre-
sented in a single caption that includes both gains and losses, 
as well as losses or gains on disposal and the related tax ef-
fect. The comparative period is subsequently restated in ac-
cordance with IFRS 5.
As far as the financial position is concerned, non-current as-

sets held for sale and disposal groups that meet the require-
ments of IFRS 5 are reclassified as current assets and liabilities 
in the period in which such requirements arise. The compara-
tive financial statements are not restated or reclassified.

2.5. PROPERTY, PLANT  
AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or 
manufacturing cost, not revalued net of accumulated depre-
ciation and impairment losses (“impairment”). Cost includes 
original purchase price and all costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated 
and recognized in the consolidated income statement on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as reported 
in the following table:

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease 
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that 
the Group will take ownership of the asset by the end of the 
lease term. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value are re-
viewed at each reporting period and adjusted if appropriate.

GAIN/LOSSES ON THE DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT 
AND EQUIPMENT

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equip-
ment represent the difference between the net proceeds and 
net book value at the date of sale. Disposals are accounted for 
when the relevant transaction becomes unconditional.

2.6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising from business combination is initially recog-
nized at the acquisition date as described in the notes related 
to “Business combinations”.

Category Depreciation period

Land No depreciation

Buildings From 25 to 33 years

Plant and equipment From 8 to 12 years

Fixtures and fittings From 5 to 10 years

Electronic machinery and 
equipment From 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Lower between lease period and useful life 
of improvements

Other fixed assets Depending on market conditions generally 
within the expected utility to the entity
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sets held for sale and disposal groups that meet the require-
ments of IFRS 5 are reclassified as current assets and liabilities 
in the period in which such requirements arise. The compara-
tive financial statements are not restated or reclassified.

2.5. PROPERTY, PLANT  
AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or 
manufacturing cost, not revalued net of accumulated depre-
ciation and impairment losses (“impairment”). Cost includes 
original purchase price and all costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated 
and recognized in the consolidated income statement on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as reported 
in the following table:

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease 
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that 
the Group will take ownership of the asset by the end of the 
lease term. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value are re-
viewed at each reporting period and adjusted if appropriate.

GAIN/LOSSES ON THE DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT 
AND EQUIPMENT

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equip-
ment represent the difference between the net proceeds and 
net book value at the date of sale. Disposals are accounted for 
when the relevant transaction becomes unconditional.

2.6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising from business combination is initially recog-
nized at the acquisition date as described in the notes related 
to “Business combinations”.

Category Depreciation period

Land No depreciation

Buildings From 25 to 33 years

Plant and equipment From 8 to 12 years

Fixtures and fittings From 5 to 10 years

Electronic machinery and 
equipment From 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Lower between lease period and useful life 
of improvements

Other fixed assets Depending on market conditions generally 
within the expected utility to the entity

Goodwill is included within intangible assets with an indef-
inite useful life, and therefore, is not amortized but subject 
to impairment test performed annually or more frequently if 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
value may not be recoverable. After the initial recognition, 
goodwill is measured at acquisition cost less accumulated im-
pairment.

As part of the IFRS first time adoption, the Group chose 
not to apply IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” retrospectively 
regarding acquisitions made prior to the transition date ( Jan-
uary 1, 2009); consequently, goodwill resulting from acqui-
sitions prior to the transition date to IFRS is still recorded 
under Italian GAAP, prior to any eventual impairment.

For further details please refer to note 2.7 “Impairment of 
non-financial assets”.

BRANDS

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost. 
Brands acquired in a business combination are recognized at 
fair value at the acquisition date.

Brands have a indefinite useful life and are carried at cost 
less accumulated impairment. Brands are not amortized but 
subject to impairment test performed annually or more fre-
quently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value may not be recoverable.
For further details please refer to note 2.7 “Impairment of 
non-financial assets”.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL  
AND BRANDS

License rights are capitalized as intangible asset and amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over their useful economic life. 
The useful economic life of license rights is determined on a 
case-by-case basis, in accordance with the terms of the under-
lying agreement.

Key money are capitalized in connection with the open-
ing of new directly operated shop (“DOS”) based on the 
amount paid. Key money in general have a definite useful life 
which is generally in line with the lease period. However, in 
certain circumstances, Key money have an indefinite use-
ful life on the basis of legal protection or common practice 
that can be found in jurisdictions or markets that state that 
a refund could be received at the end of the lease period. In 
these limited cases, that need to be adequately supported, 
Key money are not amortized but subject to impairment test 
at least annually in accordance with what set out in the note 
related to impairment of non-financial assets.

Software (including licenses and separately identifiable 
external development costs) is capitalized as intangible as-
sets at purchase price, plus any directly attributable cost of 
preparing that asset for its intended use. Software and oth-
er intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have 
definite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH  
A DEFINITE USEFUL FILE

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized on 
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as de-
scribed in the following table:

2.7. IMPAIRMENT OF  
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

On an annual basis, the Group tests for impairment property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets with a definite use-
ful life. Whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate 
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, an impair-
ment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Goodwill and assets with an indefinite useful life are 
not subject to amortization and are tested annually or more 
frequently for impairment, whenever events or changes in 
circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable.

When the recoverable amount for individual asset cannot 
be reliably estimated, the Group determines the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs to sell and value-in-use. The Group determines the 
value in use as the present value of future cash flows expect-
ed to be derived from the asset or from the cash-generating 
unit, gross of tax effects, by applying an appropriate discount 
rate that reflects market time value of money and the risks 
inherent to the asset. An impairment loss is recognized for the 
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount.

With the exception of impairment losses recognized 
on goodwill, when the circumstances that led to the loss no 
longer exist, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to its recoverable amount and cannot exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had there been no 
loss in value. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized 
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

2.8. LEASED ASSETS 

FINANCIAL LEASE

Leases for which the Group assumes substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. 
Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at the 
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present 

Category Depreciation period

License rights Based on market conditions within the licence period 
or legal limits to use the assets

Key money Based on market conditions generally within the lease 
period

Software From 3 to 5 years

Other intangible 
assets

Based on market conditions generally within the 
period of control over the asset



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS86

value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the 
accounting policy applicable to that asset.

OPERATING LEASE

Assets under a lease contracts (i.e. rent agreements) other 
than finance leases are not recognized in the Group’s con-
solidated statement of financial position. The Group lessees 
property and gross rent expenses related to these operating 
leases are recognized on a straight line basis over the period 
of the leases. Certain rental expenses are determined on the 
basis of revenue achieved in specific retail locations and are 
accrued for on that basis.

2.9. INVENTORY

Raw materials and work in progress are valued at the lower of 
purchase or manufacturing cost calculated using the weighted 
average cost method and net realizable value. The weighted 
average cost includes directly attributable expenditures for 
raw material inventories and labour cost and an appropriate 
portion of production overhead based on normal operating 
capacity. 

Provisions are recorded to reduce cost to net realizable 
value taking into consideration the age and condition of in-
ventory, the likelihood to use raw materials in the production 
cycle as well as the saleability of finished products through 
the Group’s distribution channels (outlet and stock).

2.10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value 
when the entity becomes a party to a contractual obligation 
of the financial instruments. 

The Group’s financial instruments consist primarily of 
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts pay-
able, other current and non-current assets and liabilities, in-
vestments, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term depos-
its held with banks and most liquid assets that are readily con-
vertible into cash and that have insignificant risk of change in 
value. Bank overdrafts are recorded under current liabilities 
on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

FINANCIAL ASSETS, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 
CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables generated when the Group pro-
vides money, goods or services directly to a third party are 
classified as current assets, except for items with maturity 
dates greater than twelve months after the reporting date. 

Current and non-current financial assets, other current and 
non-current assets, trade receivables, excluding derivatives, 
with fixed maturity or determinable payment terms, are rec-
ognized at amortized cost calculated using the effective in-
terest method. Notes receivable (due date greater than a year) 
with interest rate below that of the market rate are valued 
using the current market rate.

At the end of each reporting period the Group assesses 
whether there is any objective evidence that the financial as-
set or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evi-
dence exists, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in 
the current period consolidated income statement.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER 
CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT PAYABLES

Trade and other payables arise when the Group acquires mon-
ey, goods or services directly from a supplier. They are includ-
ed within current liabilities, except for items with maturity 
dates greater than twelve months after the reporting date.

Financial liabilities, excluding derivatives, are recognized 
initially at fair value which represents the amount at which 
the asset was bought in a current transaction between willing 
parties, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method. Financial liabilities that are des-
ignated as hedged items are subject to the hedge accounting 
requirements.

DERIVATIVES INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with IAS 39, derivative instruments qualify for 
hedge accounting only if at the inception there is a formal 
designation and documentation of the hedging relationship, 
the hedge is expected to be highly effective and the effec-
tiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured throughout 
the financial reporting periods for which the hedge was des-
ignated.

FAIR VALUE HEDGE

A derivative instrument is designated as fair value hedge when 
it hedges the exposure to changes in fair value of a recog-
nized asset or liability, that is attributable to a particular risk 
and could affect profit or loss. The gain or loss on the hedged 
item, attributable to the hedged risk, adjusts the carrying 
amount of the hedged item and is recognized in the consoli-
dated income statement.

CASH FLOW HEDGE

A derivative instrument is designated as cash flow hedge 
when it hedges the exposure to variability in cash flows that is 
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized 
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction 
and could affect profit or loss. The portion of gain or loss on 
the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective 
hedge is recognized in equity within other comprehensive in-
come. The cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity 
to profit or loss in the same period in which the asset acquired 
or liability assumed affects profit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
the hedging instrument that is not an effective hedge is recog-
nized immediately in the consolidated income statement. In 
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the event that the hedge expires or is terminated or no longer 
meets the criteria for hedge accounting but the forecast trans-
action has not yet occurred, the cumulative gain or loss recog-
nised in other comprehensive income from the period when 
the hedge was effective remains separately in equity and is 
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the same 
period during which the hedged forecast transaction affects 
profit or loss. 

When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to 
occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other compre-
hensive income from the period when the hedge was effective 
is reclassified immediately in the income statement.

2.11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries, social 
security contributions, paid leave and annual leave due within 
twelve months of the consolidated statement of financial po-
sition date and all other fringe benefits are recognised in the 
year in which the service is rendered by the employee. 

Benefits granted to employees which are payable on or 
after the termination of employment through defined benefit 
and contribution plans are recognised over the vesting period.

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined benefit schemes are retirement plans determined 
based on employees’ remuneration and years of service.

The Group obligation to contribute to employees’ benefit 
plans and the related current service cost is determined by us-
ing an actuarial valuation defined as the projected unit credit 
method. The cumulative net amount of all actuarial gains and 
losses are recognised in equity within other comprehensive 
income.

The amount recognised as a liability under the defined 
benefit plans is the present value of the related obligation, 
taking into consideration expenses to be recognised in future 
periods for employee service in prior periods.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

Contribution made to a defined contribution plan is recog-
nised as an expense in the income statement in the period in 
which the employees render the related service. 

Up to December 31, 2006 Italian employees were eligible 
to defined benefit schemes referred as post-employment ben-
efit (“TFR”). With the act n. 296 as of December 27, 2006 and 
subsequent decrees (“Pension Reform”) issued in early 2007, 
the rules and the treatment of TFR scheme were changed. 
Starting from contribution vested on or after January 1, 2007 
and not yet paid at the reporting date, referring to entities 
with more than 50 employees, Italian post-employment ben-
efits is recognised as a defined contribution plan. The con-
tribution vested up to December 31, 2006 is still recognised 
as a defined benefit plan and accounted for using actuarial 
assumptions.

2.12. PROVISION FOR RISKS  
AND CHARGES

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which 
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be 
required to settle the obligation and where the amount of the 
obligation can be reliably estimated.

Restructuring provision is recognised when the Group 
has a detailed formal restructuring plan and the plan has been 
implemented or the restructuring plan has been publicly an-
nounced. Identifiable future operating losses up to the date of 
a restructuring are not included in the provision.

Changes in estimates are recognised in the income state-
ment in the period in which they occur.

2.13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The fair value at grant date of the incentives granted to em-
ployees in the form of share-based payments that are equity 
settled is usually included in expenses, with a matching in-
crease in equity, over the period during which the employ-
ees obtain the incentives rights. The amount recognized as 
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of incen-
tives for which the continued service conditions are met and 
the achievement of non-market conditions, so that the final 
amount recognized as an expense is based on the number of 
incentives that fulfil these conditions at the vesting date. In 
case the incentives granted as share-based payments whose 
conditions are not to be considered to maturity, the fair val-
ue at the grant date of the share-based payment is measured 
to reflect such conditions. With reference to the non-vesting 
conditions, any differences between amounts at the grant 
date and the actual amounts will not have any impact on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees related 
to share appreciation rights, settled in cash, is recognized as 
an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the 
period during which the employees unconditionally become 
entitled to receive the payment. The liability is measured at 
year-end and the settlement date based on the fair value of the 
share appreciation rights. Any changes in the fair value of the 
liability are recognized in profit or loss for the year.

2.14. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenues are recognised when it is probable that the econom-
ic benefits associated with the transactions will f low to the 
Group and the amount can be reliably measured. Revenue, 
which is stated excluding value added tax and other sales re-
lated taxes, is the amount receivable for goods supplied less 
returns, trade discounts and allowances. 

Wholesale sales are recognised when goods are dis-
patched to trade customers, reflecting the transfer of risks 
and rewards. The provision for returns and discounts is esti-
mated and accounted for based on future expectation, taking 
into consideration historical return trends.
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Retail sales are recognised at the date of transactions with 
final customers.
Royalties received from licensee are accrued as earned on the 
basis of the terms of the relevant royalty agreement which is 
typically based on sales volumes.

2.15. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognized on an accrual basis tak-
ing into consideration interest accrued on the net carrying 
amount of financial assets and liabilities using the effective 
interest rate method.

2.16. TAXATION

Tax expense recognised in the consolidated income statement 
represents the aggregate amount related to current tax and 
deferred tax. 

Current taxes are determined in accordance with en-
forced rules established by local tax authorities. Current taxes 
are recognised in the consolidated income statement for the 
period, except to the extent that the tax arises from transac-
tions or events which are recognised directly either in equity 
or in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based 
on temporary taxable or deductible differences arising be-
tween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carry-
ing amounts in the Group Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
income taxes are levied by the same tax authority and when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined using 
tax rates that have been enacted by the reporting date and are 
expected to be enforced when the related deferred income 
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. De-
ferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets recognised on tax losses and on de-
ductible differences are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

2.17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group presents the basic and diluted earnings per share. 
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the prof-
it or loss attributable to holders of the Company shares by 
the weighted average of the number of shares for the finan-
cial year (defined as equal to the share capital), adjusted to 
consider any treasury shares held. The diluted earnings per 
share is calculated by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 
to shareholders, and the weighted average of the number of 
company shares as defined above, to consider the effects of all 
potential shares with a dilution effect.

2.18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For purposes of IFRS 8 “Operating segments”, the Group’s 
business is conducted as a single operating segment known 
as the Moncler business.

2.19. FAIR VALUE

IFRS 13 is the only point of reference for the fair value meas-
urement and related disclosures when such an assessment is 
required or permitted by other standards. Specifically, the 
principle defines fair value as the consideration received for 
the sale of an asset or the amount paid to settle a liability 
in a regular transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. In addition, the new standard replaces 
and provides for additional disclosures required in relation to 
fair value measurements by other accounting standards, in-
cluding IFRS 7.
IFRS 13 establishes a hierarchy that classifies within different 
levels the inputs used in the valuation techniques necessary 
to measure fair value. The levels, presented in a hierarchical 
order, are as follows:
• level 1: Fair values measured using quoted prices (unad-

justed) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• level 2: it Fair values measured using inputs other than 

quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

• level 3: Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or 
liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. 
unobservable inputs).

2.20. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
AND RECENTLY PUBLISHED 
INTERPRETATIONS

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE FROM JANUARY 1, 2017

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 12 – INCOME TAXES

IASB published on January 19, 2016 some amendments to IAS 
12 Income taxes. The document “Recognition of Deferred Tax 
Assets on Unrealised Losses (Amendments to IAS 12) clarify 
how to account for deferred tax assets relating to debt instru-
ments measured at fair value. 

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 7 – STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

These amendments, which were issued by the IASB on January 
29, 2016, require information to be provided in the financial 
statements about changes in financial liabilities, aimed at 
improving the disclosures provided to investors in order to 
help them to better understand the changes recorded in said 
payables.
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NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET 
EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY ADOPTED BY THE GROUP

At the date when these annual financial statements were pre-
pared, the European Union›s competent authorities conclud-
ed the approval process needed for the adoption of the ac-
counting standards and amendments described below. With 
reference of the applicable principles, the Group has decided 
not to exercise the option of the early adoption, if applicable.

IFRS 15 – REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

On May 28, 2014 the IASB published a document which re-
quires an entity to recognise revenue at the time the control of 
goods or services is transferred to the customer in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for these goods or services. The new 
revenue recognition model sets out a process in five steps
1) Identifying the contract with a customer;
2) Identifying the performance obligations;
3) Determining the transaction price;
4)  Allocating the transaction price to the performance obli-

gations;
5)  Recognising revenue when the entity satisfy a performance 

obligation.
The new standard also requires additional disclosures regard-
ing the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the revenue 
and cash flows arising from these contracts with customers. 
The IASB expects to adopt it from 2018, while the European 
Union endorsed it on September 22, 2016. Furthermore, on 
April 12, 2016 the IASB published amendments to the stand-
ard: Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, which are also applicable as from January 1, 2018. 
These amendments are aimed at clarifying the procedures 
to identify an entity as a “Principal” or as an “Agent” and to 
establish whether revenues from licences must be deferred 
throughout the term thereof.

During 2017, the Group reviewed ongoing contracts for 
each type of business relation potentially affected by IFRS 15. 
The review confirmed the limited effects of IFRS 15 in rela-
tion to the type of business conducted by the Moncler Group, 
which mainly concerns retail; moreover the effects refer to 
a different presentation of a few financial statement items 
that do not have an impact on the financial position or perfor-
mance of the Group. Considering the above, the Group opted 
to adopt IFRS 15 retroactively, with a cumulative effect, as 
it believes this approach will not affect the comparability of 
2017 and 2018 financial data.

IFRS 9 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On July 24, 2014, the IASB published the final document con-
stituting the conclusion of the process, divided into three 
phases: Classification and Measurement, Impairment and 
General Hedge Accounting, entirely revising IAS 39. The doc-
ument introduces new requirements for classifying and meas-
uring financial assets and liabilities. Specifically, as regards 
financial assets, the new standard adopts a single approach 
based on how the financial instruments are managed and on 
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial as-
sets themselves in order to determine the related valuation 
method, aiming at eventually replacing the various rules laid 
down under IAS 39. As regards financial liabilities, the main 
amendment concerns the method of accounting for fair val-

ue changes in a financial liability designated as at fair value 
through profit or loss, which are due to change in the cred-
itworthiness of the financial liability itself. According to the 
new standard, these changes must be recognised in other 
comprehensive income, without affecting profit or loss. 
The new document includes a single model for the impairment 
of financial assets based on expected losses. 
The IASB expects to adopt it from 2018, while the European 
Union endorsed it on November 22, 2016.

Based on the Group›s assessment, the new classification 
criteria are not expected to have a significant effect on the 
recognition of financial instruments at 31 December 2017.

As regards expected impairment losses regarding main 
financial instruments, the Group has estimated a potential 
impact on the opening balances of consolidated shareholders› 
equity of less than 0.5%.
The Moncler Group has decided to not opt for the early adop-
tion of IFRS 9 in relation to hedge accounting.

IFRS 16 – LEASING

On January 13, 2016, the IASB published the new standard 
IFRS 16 Leases, which replaces IAS 17. This standard was en-
dorsed by the European Union, with its publication on No-
vember 9, 2017. IFRS 16 is effective for financial statements 
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The new standard 
eliminates the difference in the recognition of operating and 
finance leases, even despite elements that simplify its adop-
tion, and introduces the concept of control in the definition 
of a lease. To determine whether a contract is a lease, IFRS 16 
establishes that the contract must convey the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a given period of time. Early 
adoption is permitted for entities that also adopt IFRS 15 Rev-
enue from contracts with customers.

The Moncler Group has estimated that the adoption of 
IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 will have a material impact on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, due to activities related 
to the retail network which comprises the main part of its 
business. In view of the new standard IFRS 16, all lease agree-
ments the Group has entered into could hypothetically be 
considered as finance leases (property leases). 

According to the new standard, in the case of a new 
lease based, for example, on annual lease payments in fixed 
instalments, a financial liability will be recognised as well 
as a right of use under assets in the statement of financial 
position measured as the present value of future payments. 
The amount of the financial liability to recognise in the fi-
nancial statements will therefore depend considerably on the 
assumptions used in relation to the characteristics of each 
type of lease and any renewal or early termination options of 
the agreement if considered to be reasonably certain at the 
date when the agreements are entered into, as well as any 
discounting rate applied.

The impact this standard will have is being assessed in-
ternally based on types of agreements entered into, in order 
to have the information necessary to specifically estimate the 
relative financial effects.

In view of the above, the Group will define the method for 
transition during 2018. Commitments at December 31, 2017 
amounted to Euro 405 million (Euro 415 million in 2016) as 
referred to in note 7.1 Commitments of this document.
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The Group will comply with these new standards and amendments based on their relevant effective dates when endorsed by the 
European Union and it will evaluate their potential impacts on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Document title Issue date by IASB Effective from

Standards

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January, 2014 Note 1.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts May, 2017 January 1, 2021

Interpretations

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration December, 2016 January 1, 2018

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments June, 2017 January 1, 2019

Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution  
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

September, 2014 Deferred until the completion of IASB’s  
equity method project

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement  
of Share-based Payment Transactions

June, 2016 January 1, 2018

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards (2014-2016 Cycle) December, 2016 January 1, 2017 / January 1, 2018

Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property December, 2016 January 1, 2018

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates  
and Joint Ventures

October, 2017 January 1, 2019

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation

October, 2017 January 1, 2019

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards (2015-2017 Cycle) December, 2017 January 1, 2019

1.  IFRS 14 became effective on 1 January 2016, but the European Commission decided to stop the approval process pending 
the new accounting standard on “rate-regulated activities”.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 4 – INSURANCE CONTRACTS

These amendments were issued by the IASB on September 12, 
2016, with the effective date being expected on January 1st, 
2018. The amendments were intended to address concerns 
about the application of IFRS 9 on financial instruments be-
fore the introduction of the new insurance contract standards.

In addition, at the date of these financial statements the com-
petent bodies of the European Union had not yet complet-
ed their endorsement process for the following accounting 
standards and amendments:
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3.

SCOPE FOR 
CONSOLIDATION

As far as the scope of consolidation is concerned, the following changes occurred during fiscal year 2017 when compared to the 
prior year:
• Moncler Kazakhstan LLP was established in the first quarter of 2017 and it was included in the consolidation scope starting 

from the date of its establishment;
• Moncler Sweden AB was established in the second quarter of 2017 and it was included in the consolidation scope starting 

from the date of its establishment;
• Moncler Mexico S. De R.L. de C.V., Moncler Mexico Services S. De R.L. de C.V. and Moncler Norway AS were established in 

the fourth quarter of 2017 and they were included in the consolidation scope starting from the date of their establishment.

Investments (in associates for consolidation) Registered office Share capital Currency
% of 

ownership Parent company

Moncler S.p.A. Milan (Italy) 50,955,748 EUR

Industries S.p.A. Milan (Italy) 15,000,000 EUR 100.00% Moncler S.p.A.

Moncler Deutschland GmbH (**) Munich (Germany) 700,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler España S.L. Madrid (Spain) 50,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Asia Pacific Ltd Hong Kong (China) 300,000 HKD 99.99% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler France S.à.r.l. Paris (France) 8,000,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler USA Inc New York (USA) 1,000 USD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler UK Ltd London (United Kingdom) 2,000,000 GBP 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Japan Corporation (*) Tokyo ( Japan) 195,050,000 JPY 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Co. Ltd Shanghai (China) 82,483,914 CNY 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Suisse SA Chiasso (Switzerland) 3,000,000 CHF 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Ciolina Moncler SA Berna (Switzerland) 100,000 CHF 51.00% Moncler Suisse SA

Moncler Belgium S.p.r.l. Bruxelles (Belgium) 500,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Denmark ApS Copenhagen (Denmark) 2,465,000 DKK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Holland B.V. Amsterdam (Holland) 18,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Hungary KFT Budapest (Hungary) 150,000,000 HUF 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Istanbul Giyim ve Tekstil Ticaret Ltd. Sti. (*) Istanbul (Turkey) 50,000 TRY 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Sylt Gmbh (*) Hamm (Germany) 100,000 EUR 51.00% Moncler 
Deutschland GmbH

Moncler Rus LLC Moscow  
(Russian Federation)

220,000,000 RUB 99.99% 
0.01%

Industries S.p.A. 
Moncler Suisse SA

Moncler Brasil Comércio de moda e acessòrios Ltda. Sao Paulo (Brazil) 6,280,000 BRL 95.00% 
5.00%

Moncler USA Inc 
Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Taiwan Limited Taipei (China) 10,000,000 TWD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Canada Ltd Vancouver (Canada) 1,000 CAD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Prague s.r.o. Prague (Czech Republic) 200,000 CZK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

White Tech Sp.zo.o. Katowice (Poland) 369,000 PLN 70.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. (*) Seoul (South Korea) 5,000,000,000 KRW 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Middle East FZ-LLC Dubai  
(United Arab Emirates)

50,000 AED 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler USA Retail LLC New York (USA) 15,000,000 USD 100.00% Moncler USA Inc

Moncler Singapore PTE, Limited Singapore 650,000 SGD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Industries Yield S.r.l. Bacau (Romania) 14,310,000 RON 99.00% 
1.00%

Industries S.p.A. 
Moncler 
Deutschland GmbH

Moncler UAE LLC (*) Abu Dhabi  
(United Arab Emirates)

1,000,000 AED 49.00% Moncler Middle East 
FZ-LLC

Moncler Ireland Limited Dublin (Ireland) 350,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Australia PTY LTD Melbourne (Australia) 2,500,000 AUD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Kazakhstan LLP Almaty (Kazakhstan) 250,000,000 KZT 99.00%
1.00%

Industries S.p.A.
Moncler Rus LLC

Moncler Sweden AB Stockholm (Sweden) 1,000,000 SEK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Norway AS Oslo (Norway) 3,000,000 NOK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico City (Mexico) 100 MXN 99.00%
1.00%

Industries S.p.A.
Moncler USA Inc

Moncler Mexico Services, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico City (Mexico) 100 MXN 99.00%
1.00%

Industries S.p.A.
Moncler USA Inc

(*) Fully consolidated (without attribution of interest to third parties)
(**) Company previously named Industries Textilvertrieb GmbH

As at December 31, 2017 
the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Moncler 
Group include the parent 
company Moncler S.p.A. 
and 34 consolidated 
subsidiaries, as detailed  
in the following table:
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As far as the scope of consolidation is concerned, the following changes occurred during fiscal year 2017 when compared to the 
prior year:
• Moncler Kazakhstan LLP was established in the first quarter of 2017 and it was included in the consolidation scope starting 

from the date of its establishment;
• Moncler Sweden AB was established in the second quarter of 2017 and it was included in the consolidation scope starting 

from the date of its establishment;
• Moncler Mexico S. De R.L. de C.V., Moncler Mexico Services S. De R.L. de C.V. and Moncler Norway AS were established in 

the fourth quarter of 2017 and they were included in the consolidation scope starting from the date of their establishment.

Investments (in associates for consolidation) Registered office Share capital Currency
% of 

ownership Parent company

Moncler S.p.A. Milan (Italy) 50,955,748 EUR

Industries S.p.A. Milan (Italy) 15,000,000 EUR 100.00% Moncler S.p.A.

Moncler Deutschland GmbH (**) Munich (Germany) 700,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler España S.L. Madrid (Spain) 50,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Asia Pacific Ltd Hong Kong (China) 300,000 HKD 99.99% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler France S.à.r.l. Paris (France) 8,000,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler USA Inc New York (USA) 1,000 USD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler UK Ltd London (United Kingdom) 2,000,000 GBP 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Japan Corporation (*) Tokyo ( Japan) 195,050,000 JPY 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Co. Ltd Shanghai (China) 82,483,914 CNY 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Suisse SA Chiasso (Switzerland) 3,000,000 CHF 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Ciolina Moncler SA Berna (Switzerland) 100,000 CHF 51.00% Moncler Suisse SA

Moncler Belgium S.p.r.l. Bruxelles (Belgium) 500,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Denmark ApS Copenhagen (Denmark) 2,465,000 DKK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Holland B.V. Amsterdam (Holland) 18,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Hungary KFT Budapest (Hungary) 150,000,000 HUF 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Istanbul Giyim ve Tekstil Ticaret Ltd. Sti. (*) Istanbul (Turkey) 50,000 TRY 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Sylt Gmbh (*) Hamm (Germany) 100,000 EUR 51.00% Moncler 
Deutschland GmbH

Moncler Rus LLC Moscow  
(Russian Federation)

220,000,000 RUB 99.99% 
0.01%

Industries S.p.A. 
Moncler Suisse SA

Moncler Brasil Comércio de moda e acessòrios Ltda. Sao Paulo (Brazil) 6,280,000 BRL 95.00% 
5.00%

Moncler USA Inc 
Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Taiwan Limited Taipei (China) 10,000,000 TWD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Canada Ltd Vancouver (Canada) 1,000 CAD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Prague s.r.o. Prague (Czech Republic) 200,000 CZK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

White Tech Sp.zo.o. Katowice (Poland) 369,000 PLN 70.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. (*) Seoul (South Korea) 5,000,000,000 KRW 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Middle East FZ-LLC Dubai  
(United Arab Emirates)

50,000 AED 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler USA Retail LLC New York (USA) 15,000,000 USD 100.00% Moncler USA Inc

Moncler Singapore PTE, Limited Singapore 650,000 SGD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Industries Yield S.r.l. Bacau (Romania) 14,310,000 RON 99.00% 
1.00%

Industries S.p.A. 
Moncler 
Deutschland GmbH

Moncler UAE LLC (*) Abu Dhabi  
(United Arab Emirates)

1,000,000 AED 49.00% Moncler Middle East 
FZ-LLC

Moncler Ireland Limited Dublin (Ireland) 350,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Australia PTY LTD Melbourne (Australia) 2,500,000 AUD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Kazakhstan LLP Almaty (Kazakhstan) 250,000,000 KZT 99.00%
1.00%

Industries S.p.A.
Moncler Rus LLC

Moncler Sweden AB Stockholm (Sweden) 1,000,000 SEK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Norway AS Oslo (Norway) 3,000,000 NOK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico City (Mexico) 100 MXN 99.00%
1.00%

Industries S.p.A.
Moncler USA Inc

Moncler Mexico Services, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico City (Mexico) 100 MXN 99.00%
1.00%

Industries S.p.A.
Moncler USA Inc

(*) Fully consolidated (without attribution of interest to third parties)
(**) Company previously named Industries Textilvertrieb GmbH
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4.1. REVENUES

REVENUES BY DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL

Revenue by distribution channels are broken down as follows:

Sales are made through two main distribution channels, wholesale and retail. The retail channel pertains to stores that are 
directly managed by the Group (free-standing stores, concessions, e-commerce and outlets), while the wholesale channel per-
tains to stores managed by third parties that sell Moncler products either in single-brand spaces (i.e. shop-in-shop) or inside 
multi-brand stores.

In 2017, revenues from the retail distributional channel increased to Euro 892.4 million compared to Euro 764.2 million 
in 2016, representing an increase of 16.8%, thanks to a robust organic growth and to a further development of our network of 
mono-brand retail stores (DOS). Furthermore, other important projects, related to the expansion and the relocation of existing 
stores, have successfully completed during the year.
The wholesale channel recorded revenues of Euro 301.3 million compared to Euro 276.1 million in 2016, an increase of 9.1%, 
driven by good results, in particular, in the United Kingdom and North America markets.

REVENUES BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA

Sales are broken down by geographical area as reported in the following table:

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 % Financial Year 2016 %

Total revenues 1,193,704 100.0% 1,040,311 100.0%

of which:

- Wholesale 301,321 25.2% 276,138 26.5%

- Retail 892,383 74.8% 764,173 73.5%

(Euro/000)
Financial Year 

2017 %
Financial Year 

2016 % Variation Variation %

Italy 149,349 12.5% 143,186 13.8% 6,163 4.3%

EMEA, Italy excluded 352,367 29.5% 303,344 29.2% 49,023 16.2%

Asia and rest of world 495,476 41.5% 418,524 40.2% 76,952 18.4%

Americas 196,512 16.5% 175,257 16.8% 21,255 12.1%

Total 1,193,704 100.0% 1,040,311 100.0% 153,393 14.7%

4.

COMMENTS ON  
THE CONSOLIDATED 
INCOME  
STATEMENT
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In Italy, revenues rose 4.3%, with balanced performances in 
both the retail and the wholesale distribution channels. In 
particular, in the fourth quarter the retail channel benefited 
from a good organic growth and the re-opening of the flag-
ship store in Milano, Via Montenapoleone.

In EMEA, Moncler’s revenues grew 16.2%, with double-dig-
it growth in both the retail and the wholesale channels and in 
the main markets. The brand recorded very good performanc-
es in France, the United Kingdom and in Germany. The United 
Kingdom has achieved, even in the last quarter of the year, a 
double-digit growth, notwithstanding a challenging compar-
ison base, thanks to the good organic results of the Directly 
Operated Stores and to the development of important whole-
sale clients, included some e-tailers. Also in France, revenues 
continued to grow at double-digit in the fourth quarter, sup-
ported by the local demand and the positive travellers’ f low. 
Moncler achieved very good performances in Germany too, 
both in the retail and the wholesale channel.

In Asia and Rest of the World, revenues increased 18.4%. 
In the fourth quarter, the Japanese market recorded a dou-
ble-digit growth, benefiting from good demand from local 
customers and travellers. Robust performances continued 
in China, driven by a double-digit organic growth also in the 
fourth quarter, and in Hong Kong, where has been opened 
the flagship store in Canton Road, as well as in the remaining 
markets of Asia-Pacific. In Korea, Moncler achieved very good 
results, mainly thanks to the good results of the existing store 
network. In 2017 Moncler has also reinforced its presence in 
some Asian cities, characterised by a particularly strong tour-
istic f low (Guam, Auckland, Bangkok, Macau, Taipei), thanks 
to the opening of our wholesale mono-brand stores.

In the Americas, revenues grew 12.1%, slightly accelerat-
ing in the last quarter, despite the tough comparison base. 
Very good results in Canada and in the United States for both 
the retail and the wholesale distribution channels, thanks 
to the solid growth of existing retail stores, showing an im-
proved trend compared to the previous quarter, and to the 
openings of new wholesale shop-in-shops.

4.2. COST OF SALES

In 2017, cost of sales grew by Euro 23.9 million (+9.5%) in ab-
solute terms, going from Euro 252.3 million in 2016 to Euro 
276.2 million in 2017. This overall growth is due to increased 
sales volumes and the growth of the retail channel. Cost of 
sales as a percentage of sales has decreased, going from 24.3% 
in 2016 to 23.1% in 2017. This decrease is due to the fact that 
the retail channel has increased its importance in the total 
sales (going from 73.5% in 2016 to 74.8% in 2017, on total sales) 
and to higher production efficiency.

4.3. SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses grew both in absolute terms, with an in-
crease of Euro 52.8 million between 2016 and 2017, and as 
a percentage of turnover, going from 30.0% in 2016 to 30.6% 
in 2017, due to the development of the retail business. Sell-
ing expenses mainly include rent costs for Euro 183.7 million 
(Euro 155.5 million in 2016), personnel costs for Euro 93.1 mil-

lion (Euro 77.7 million in 2016) and costs for depreciation and 
amortization for Euro 40.9 million (Euro 36.2 million in 2016).

4.4. GENERAL AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2017, general and administrative expenses amount to Euro 
108.7 million, up Euro 14.6 million when compared to last 
year. General and administrative expenses represent 9.1% of 
turnover, in line with the previous year.

4.5. ADVERTISING EXPENSES

Also during 2017, the Group continued to invest in marketing 
and advertising in order to support and spread awareness and 
the prestige of the Moncler brand. The weight of advertising 
expenses on turnover is equal to 6.7% in 2017 (like in 2016), 
while in absolute value, advertising expenses go from Euro 
68.1 million in 2016 to Euro 79.4 million in 2017, with an abso-
lute change of Euro 11.3 million (+16.5%).

4.6. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The caption stock based compensation in 2017 is equal to Euro 
23.5 million and includes the costs related to the stock based 
compensation plans approved by the Shareholder’ Meeting of 
Moncler on February 28, 2014, on April 23, 2015 and on April 
20, 2016 (Euro 15.7 million in 2016). 
The description of the stock based compensation plans and 
the related costs is included in note 10.2.

4.7. OPERATING RESULT

In 2017, the operating results of the Moncler Group amounted 
to Euro 340.9 million (Euro 297.7 million in 2016) and as a per-
centage of revenue amounted to 28.6% (28.6% in 2016). 

Operating results, net of stock based compensation, 
amounted to Euro 364.4 million (Euro 313.4 million in 2016), 
and 30.5% as a percentage of revenue (30.1% in 2016), up in 
absolute value by Euro 50.9 million.

Management believes that EBITDA is an important indi-
cator for the valuation of the Group›s performance, insofar 
as it is not influenced by the methods for determining tax or 
amortisation/depreciation. However, EBITDA is not an indica-
tor defined by the reference accounting standards applied by 
the Group and, therefore, it may be that the methods by which 
EBITDA is calculated are not comparable with those used by 
other companies.
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EBITDA is calculated as follows:

In 2017, EBITDA increased by Euro 56.6 million (+15.9%), going from Euro 355.1 million (34.1% of revenue) in 2016 to Euro 411.6 
million (34.5% of revenue) in 2017. The increase in the profitability is mainly linked to the gross margin improvement and to the 
strict control on operating costs, in particular on the retail selling costs.

Amortisation and depreciation in 2017 amounted to Euro 47.3 million (Euro 41.6 million in 2016) and increased by Euro 5.6 
million, in line with the increase of tangible and intangible assets due to the growth of the retail channel.

4.8. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

The caption is broken down as follows:

4.9. INCOME TAX

The income tax effect on the consolidated income statement is as follows:

The reconciliation between the theoretical tax burden by applying the theoretical rate of the parent company, and the effective 
tax burden is shown in the following table:

The caption other differences mainly includes the net cost related to the agreement on the pending tax claim, the tax benefit 
associated with the Patent Box, IRAP (current) and the other taxes different from IRES.

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016 2017 vs 2016 %

Operating result 340,877 297,681 43,196 14.5%

Stock based compensation 23,485 15,738 7,747 49.2%

Operating result net of stock based compensation 364,362 313,419 50,943 16.3%

Amortization, depreciation and impairment 47,273 41,635 5,638 13.5%

EBITDA 411,635 355,054 56,581 15.9%

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Interest income and other financial income 558 492

Foreign currency differences - positive 0 0

Total financial income 558 492

Interests expenses and other financial charges (1,899) (3,233)

Foreign currency differences - negative (3,841) (1,851)

Total financial expenses (5,740) (5,084)

Total net (5,182) (4,592)

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Current income taxes (96,794) (101,797)

Deferred tax (income) expenses 10,867 5,030

Income taxes charged in the income statement (85,927) (96,767)

Reconciliation theoretic-effective tax rate
(Euro/000)

Taxable
Amount 2017

Tax Amount 
2017

Tax rate 
 2017

Taxable
Amount 2016

Tax Amount 
2016

Tax rate 
 2016

Income tax using the Company's theoretic tax rate 335,695 293,089

Temporary differences (80,567) 27.5% (80,599) 27.5%

Permanent differences (10,300) 3.1% (8,333) 2.8%

Other differences (46) 0.0% 1,914 (0.7)%

Deferred taxes recognized in the income statement (5,881) 1.8% (14,780) 5.0%

Income tax at effective tax rate 10,867 (3.2%) 5,030 (1.7)%

Imposte all'aliquota fiscale effettiva (85,927) 25.6% (96,767) 33.0%
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EBITDA is calculated as follows:

In 2017, EBITDA increased by Euro 56.6 million (+15.9%), going from Euro 355.1 million (34.1% of revenue) in 2016 to Euro 411.6 
million (34.5% of revenue) in 2017. The increase in the profitability is mainly linked to the gross margin improvement and to the 
strict control on operating costs, in particular on the retail selling costs.

Amortisation and depreciation in 2017 amounted to Euro 47.3 million (Euro 41.6 million in 2016) and increased by Euro 5.6 
million, in line with the increase of tangible and intangible assets due to the growth of the retail channel.

4.8. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

The caption is broken down as follows:

4.9. INCOME TAX

The income tax effect on the consolidated income statement is as follows:

The reconciliation between the theoretical tax burden by applying the theoretical rate of the parent company, and the effective 
tax burden is shown in the following table:

The caption other differences mainly includes the net cost related to the agreement on the pending tax claim, the tax benefit 
associated with the Patent Box, IRAP (current) and the other taxes different from IRES.

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016 2017 vs 2016 %

Operating result 340,877 297,681 43,196 14.5%

Stock based compensation 23,485 15,738 7,747 49.2%

Operating result net of stock based compensation 364,362 313,419 50,943 16.3%

Amortization, depreciation and impairment 47,273 41,635 5,638 13.5%

EBITDA 411,635 355,054 56,581 15.9%

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Interest income and other financial income 558 492

Foreign currency differences - positive 0 0

Total financial income 558 492

Interests expenses and other financial charges (1,899) (3,233)

Foreign currency differences - negative (3,841) (1,851)

Total financial expenses (5,740) (5,084)

Total net (5,182) (4,592)

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Current income taxes (96,794) (101,797)

Deferred tax (income) expenses 10,867 5,030

Income taxes charged in the income statement (85,927) (96,767)

Reconciliation theoretic-effective tax rate
(Euro/000)

Taxable
Amount 2017

Tax Amount 
2017

Tax rate 
 2017

Taxable
Amount 2016

Tax Amount 
2016

Tax rate 
 2016

Income tax using the Company's theoretic tax rate 335,695 293,089

Temporary differences (80,567) 27.5% (80,599) 27.5%

Permanent differences (10,300) 3.1% (8,333) 2.8%

Other differences (46) 0.0% 1,914 (0.7)%

Deferred taxes recognized in the income statement (5,881) 1.8% (14,780) 5.0%

Income tax at effective tax rate 10,867 (3.2%) 5,030 (1.7)%

Imposte all'aliquota fiscale effettiva (85,927) 25.6% (96,767) 33.0%

4.10. PERSONNEL EXPENSES 

The following table lists the detail of the main personnel expenses by nature, compared with those of the previous year:

Personnel expenses increased by 20.1% when compared to prior year, from Euro 116.2 million in 2016 to Euro 139.6 million in 
2017. This increase is mainly due to the growth in directly operated stores and the overall growth of the structure.
The remuneration related to the members of the Board of Directors is commented separately in the related-party section (note 
10.1).
The costs relating to the stock based compensation plans, equal to Euro 23.5 million (Euro 15.7 million in 2016) are separately 
commented in note 10.2.
The following table depicts the number of employees (full-time-equivalent) in 2017 compared to the prior year:

The actual number of employees of the Group as at December 31, 2017 is 3,498 unit (3,216 as at December 31, 2016).
The total number of employees increased principally as a result of the growth in directly operated stores and the overall growth 
of the structure.

4.11. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation and amortization are broken down as follows:

The increase in both depreciation and amortization is mainly due to investments made in connection with the retail channel 
development, both related to new openings and to relocations/expansions.
Please refer to comments made in notes 5.1 and 5.3 for additional details related to investments made during the year.

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Wages and salaries (111,627) (94,146)

Social security costs (20,334) (16,342)

Accrual for employment benefits (7,591) (5,735)

Total (139,552) (116,223)

Average FTE by area
Number Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Italy 723 665

Other European countries 1,244 1,025

Asia and Japan 844 771

Americas 255 239

Total 3,066 2,700

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (37,606) (32,756)

Amortization of intangible assets (9,667) (8,879)

Total (47,273) (41,635)
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5.

COMMENTS  
ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
STATEMENT  
OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION

5.1. GOODWILL, BRANDS AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brands and other intangible assets
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Gross value

Accumulated
amortization

and impairment Net value Net value

Brands 223,900 0 223,900 223,900

Key money 57,391 (26,449) 30,942 25,959

Software 32,139 (19,338) 12,801 10,984

Other intangible assets 8,361 (5,452) 2,909 3,612

Assets in progress 135 0 135 2,427

Goodwill 155,582 0 155,582 155,582

Total 477,508 (51,239) 426,269 422,464
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Intangible assets changes are shown in the following tables:
As at December 31, 2017

Al 31 dicembre 2016

The increase in the caption software pertains to the investments in information technology to support the business and the 
corporate functions.
The increase in the caption Key money pertains to the key money of the new stores opening located in Europe.
No indicators were identified suggesting impairment of the residual carrying amounts.
Please refer to the Directors’ report for additional information related to investments made during the year.

Gross value Brands and 
other intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands

Licence
rights Key money Software

Other intangible
assets

Assets in 
progress

and advances Goodwill Total

January 1, 2017 223,900 0 48,468 26,703 8,109 2,427 155,582 465,189

Acquisitions 0 0 8,346 5,355 568 101 0 14,370

Disposals 0 0 0 (448) (321) 0 0 (769)

Translation adjustement 0 0 (923) (252) (33) 0 0 (1,208)

Other movements, 
including transfers 0 0 1,500 781 38 (2,393) 0 (74)

December 31, 2017 223,900 0 57,391 32,139 8,361 135 155,582 477,508

Accumulated amortization 
and impairment Brands 
and other
intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands

Licence
rights Key money Software

Other intangible
assets

Assets in 
progress

and advances Goodwill Total

January 1, 2017 0 0 (22,509) (15,719) (4,497) 0 0 (42,725)

Amortization 0 0 (4,458) (3,926) (1,283) 0 0 (9,667)

Disposals 0 0 0 178 320 0 0 498

Translation adjustement 0 0 518 129 8 0 0 655

Other movements, 
including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2017 0 0 (26,449) (19,338) (5,452) 0 0 (51,239)

Gross value Brands and 
other intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands

Licence
rights Key money Software

Other intangible
assets

Assets in 
progress

and advances Goodwill Total

January 1, 2016 223,900 0 41,511 21,790 6,795 8,175 155,582 457,753

Acquisitions 0 0 0 4,868 1,569 2,427 0 8,864

Disposals 0 0 0 (50) (4) 0 0 (54)

Translation adjustement 0 0 (51) 95 (3) (1,167) 0 (1,126)

Other movements, 
including transfers 0 0 7,008 0 (248) (7,008) 0 (248)

December 31, 2016 223,900 0 48,468 26,703 8,109 2,427 155,582 465,189

Accumulated amortization 
and impairment Brands 
and other
intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands

Licence
rights Key money Software

Other intangible
assets

Assets in 
progress

and advances Goodwill Total

January 1, 2016 0 0 (18,165) (12,515) (3,477) 0 0 (34,157)

Depreciation 0 0 (4,392) (3,212) (1,275) 0 0 (8,879)

Disposals 0 0 0 37 3 0 0 40

Translation adjustement 0 0 48 (29) 4 0 0 23

Other movements, 
including transfers 0 0 0 0 248 0 0 248

December 31, 2016 0 0 (22,509) (15,719) (4,497) 0 0 (42,725)
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5.2. IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH AN INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE 
AND GOODWILL

The captions Brands, Other intangible fixed assets with an indefinite useful life and Goodwill deriving from previous acquisitions 
have not been amortised, but have been tested for impairment by management.

The impairment test on the brand was performed by comparing its carrying value with that derived from the discounted 
cash flow method applying the Royalty Relief Method, based on which the cash flows are linked to the recognition of a royalty 
percentage applied to revenues that the brand is able to generate.

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been tested based on the «asset side» approach which compares the value in use of 
the cash-generating unit with the carrying amount of its net invested capital.

For the 2017 valuation, the expected cash flows and revenues were derived from the Business Plan 2018-2020 approved by 
the Board of Directors on December 14, 2017.

The «g» rate used was 2%.
The discount rate was calculated using the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC), by weighting the expected rate of 

return on invested capital, net of hedging costs from a sample of companies within the same industry. The calculation took into 
account f luctuation in the market as compared to the previous year and the resulting impact on interest rates. The weighted 
average cost of capital (WACC) was calculated at 8.40%.

The results of the sensitivity analysis indicate that the carrying amount of the Moncler brand is in line with the benchmark 
with a “g” rate = 0% and WACC = 21.59%.

Similarly, the same sensitivity analysis applied to the entire cash-generating unit shows a full recovery considering changes 
in parameters still higher than those indicated for the brand, showing the wide recoverability of goodwill.

It also shows that the market capitalization of the company, based on the average price of Moncler share in 2017, shows a 
significant positive difference with respect to the Group net equity, confirming again the value of the goodwill.

5.3. NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The change in property, plant and equipment is included in the following tables:

Property, plant and equipments
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Gross value

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment Net value Net value

Land and buildings 2,871 (473) 2,398 2,303

Plant and Equipment 9,786 (5,133) 4,653 3,583

Fixtures and fittings 86,488 (46,446) 40,042 36,963

Leasehold improvements 154,617 (74,582) 80,035 73,096

Other fixed assets 14,800 (10,627) 4,173 4,693

Assets in progress 6,826 0 6,826 3,287

Total 275,388 (137,261) 138,127 123,925
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As at December 31, 2017

As at December 31, 2016

The change in property plant and equipment in 2017 shows an increase in the captions fixtures and fittings, leasehold improve-
ments and assets in progress and advances: all of these captions are mainly related to the development of the retail network.
During the year, no indicators were found requiring impairment testing to be performed on tangible assets.
Please refer to the Directors’ report for an analysis of investments made during the year.

Gross value Property, plant and
equipment
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2017 2,586 10,519 77,737 135,498 14,823 3,287 244,450

Acquisitions 624 2,190 16,690 31,979 1,571 6,054 59,108

Disposals (528) (2,775) (3,818) (5,899) (1,266) (5) (14,291)

Translation adjustement (15) (63) (5,144) (8,293) (280) (158) (13,953)

Other movements, including 
transfers 204 (85) 1,023 1,332 (48) (2,352) 74

December 31, 2017 2,871 9,786 86,488 154,617 14,800 6,826 275,388

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment PPE
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2017 (283) (6,936) (40,774) (62,402) (10,130) 0 (120,525)

Depreciation (312) (1,008) (12,330) (22,099) (1,857) 0 (37,606)

Disposals 120 2,736 3,726 5,772 1,227 0 13,581

Translation adjustement 2 27 2,743 4,362 155 0 7,289

Other movements, including 
transfers 0 48 189 (215) (22) 0 0

December 31, 2017 (473) (5,133) (46,446) (74,582) (10,627) 0 (137,261)

Gross value Property, plant and
equipment
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2016 5,922 8,327 62,001 101,633 12,316 8,069 198,268

Acquisitions 24 1,100 18,779 29,384 2,816 2,597 54,700

Disposals (3,358) (239) (2,729) (3,447) (310) (245) (10,328)

Translation adjustement (2) 1 324 1,543 31 (106) 1,791

Other movements, including 
transfers 0 1,330 (638) 6,385 (30) (7,028) 19

December 31, 2016 2,586 10,519 77,737 135,498 14,823 3,287 244,450

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment PPE
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2016 (2,638) (6,176) (32,767) (45,806) (8,647) 0 (96,034)

Depreciation (260) (709) (10,923) (19,143) (1,721) 0 (32,756)

Disposals 2,615 215 2,500 3,734 267 0 9,331

Translation adjustement 0 (1) (175) (595) (13) 0 (784)

Other movements, including 
transfers 0 (265) 591 (592) (16) 0 (282)

December 31, 2016 (283) (6,936) (40,774) (62,402) (10,130) 0 (120,525)
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5.4. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only when there is a law within a given tax jurisdiction that provides for 
such right to offset. The balances were as follows as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

Deferred tax liabilities resulting from temporary differences associated with intangible assets are related to fiscal year 2008 in 
connection with the allocation of the brand name Moncler resulting from the excess price paid during acquisition.

The change in deferred tax assets and liabilities, without taking into consideration the right of offset of a given tax jurisdic-
tion, is detailed in the following table:

Deferred taxation
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Deferred tax assets 78,991 74,682

Deferred tax liabilities (68,699) (70,953)

Net amount 10,292 3,729

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(Euro/000)

Opening
balance

January 1, 2017

Taxes charged
to the income

statement

Taxes
accounted for

in Equity

Effect of
currency

translation
Other

movements

Closing
balance -

December 31, 2017

Tangible and intangible assets 4,841 888 0 (178) 126 5,677

Financial assets 0 0 0 0 0 0

Inventories 56,517 6,852 0 (4,074) (94) 59,201

Trade receivables 2,739 1,334 0 (43) 185 4,215

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 1,681 837 0 (127) 0 2,391

Provisions 5,568 (453) 0 (532) (184) 4,399

Trade payables 119 94 0 (23) 224 414

Other temporary items 3,216 (280) 0 (100) (262) 2,574

Tax loss carried forward 1 122 0 (3) 0 120

Tax assets 74,682 9,394 0 (5,080) (5) 78,991

Tangible and intangible assets (68,888) 2,025 0 664 4 (66,195)

Financial assets 52 0 0 0 0 52

Inventories (610) (27) 0 3 1 (633)

Trade receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives (29) 0 (160) 0 (117) (306)

Employee benefits (117) 0 0 0 117 0

Provisions 0 0 0 0 0 0

Trade payables (2) 0 0 0 2 0

Other temporary items (1,359) (525) 267 1 (1) (1,617)

Tax liabilities (70,953) 1,473 107 668 6 (68,699)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 3,729 10,867 107 (4,412) 1 10,292
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The taxable amount on which deferred tax assets have been calculated is detailed in the following table:

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(Euro/000)

Opening
balance

January 1, 2016

Taxes charged
to the income

statement

Taxes
accounted for

in Equity

Effect of
currency

translation
Other

movements

Closing
balance -

December 31, 2016

Tangible and intangible assets 4,578 831 0 68 (636) 4,841

Financial assets 0 0 0 0 0 0

Inventories 48,666 7,171 0 572 108 56,517

Trade receivables 2,157 557 0 25 0 2,739

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 1,456 35 48 18 124 1,681

Provisions 4,579 922 0 199 (132) 5,568

Trade payables 237 (122) 0 2 2 119

Other temporary items 4,104 (885) 0 28 (31) 3,216

Tax loss carried forward 193 (37) 0 0 (155) 1

Tax assets 65,970 8,472 48 912 (720) 74,682

Tangible and intangible assets (65,898) (3,284) 0 (233) 527 (68,888)

Financial assets 0 0 0 0 52 52

Inventories (474) (138) 0 1 1 (610)

Trade receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives 0 0 (29) 0 0 (29)

Employee benefits (117) 0 0 0 0 (117)

Provisions 0 0 0 0 0 0

Trade payables 0 0 0 0 (2) (2)

Other temporary items (2,264) (20) 1,002 0 (77) (1,359)

Tax liabilities (68,753) (3,442) 973 (232) 501 (70,953)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (2,783) 5,030 1,021 680 (219) 3,729

Deferred tax assets
(Euro/000)

Taxable
Amount 2017

Closing balance
December 31, 2017

Taxable
Amount 2016

Closing balance -
December 31, 2016

Tangible and intangible assets 20,665 5,677 16,347 4,841

Financial assets 0 0 0 0

Inventories 222,702 59,201 215,251 56,517

Trade receivables 17,307 4,215 11,315 2,739

Derivatives 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 8,676 2,391 5,925 1,681

Provisions 16,010 4,399 16,491 5,568

Trade payables 1,583 414 340 119

Other temporary items 9,510 2,574 11,531 3,216

Tax loss carried forward 539 120 0 1

Tax assets 296,992 78,991 277,200 74,682

Tangible and intangible assets (242,195) (66,195) (243,508) (68,888)

Financial assets 217 52 217 52

Inventories (2,268) (633) (2,203) (610)

Trade receivables 0 0 0 0

Derivatives (1,274) (306) (610) (29)

Employee benefits 0 0 0 (117)

Provisions 0 0 0 0

Trade payables 0 0 (7) (2)

Other temporary items (6,051) (1,617) (5,175) (1,359)

Tax liabilities (251,571) (68,699) (251,286) (70,953)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 45,421 10,292 25,914 3,729
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5.5. INVENTORY

Inventory is broken down as follows:

Inventory increased overall by approximately Euro 8.4 million, equal to 4.0%, due to the increase in business.
The obsolescence provision is calculated using management’s best estimate based on the season needs and the inventory 

balance based on passed sales trends through alternative channels and future sales volumes.
The change in the obsolescence provision is summarized in the following table:

5.6. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are as follows:

Trade receivables are related to the Group’s wholesale business and they include balances with a collection time not greater 
than three months. During 2017 and 2016, there were no concentration of credit risk greater than 10% associated to individual 
customers. Please refer to note 9.1 for information regarding the exposure of trade receivables to currency risks.
The change in the allowance for doubtful debt and sales return is detailed in the following tables:

Inventory
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Raw materials 48,695 54,219

Work-in-progress 21,281 12,163

Finished products 150,293 145,498

Inventories, gross 220,269 211,880

Obsolescence provision (84,110) (76,031)

Total 136,159 135,849

Obsolescence provision movements
(Euro/000) January 1, 2017 Accrued Used          

Translation
Difference December 31, 2017

Obsolescence provision (76,031) (25,047) 14,347 2,621 (84,110)

Total (76,031) (25,047) 14,347 2,621 (84,110)

Obsolescence provision movements
(Euro/000) January 1, 2016 Accrued Used          

Translation
Difference December 31, 2016

Obsolescence provision (55,759) (30,044) 10,205 (433) (76,031)

Total (55,759) (30,044) 10,205 (433) (76,031)

Trade receivables
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Trade account receivables 132,040 113,931

Allowance for doubtful debt (6,929) (5,408)

Allowance for returns and discounts (4,403) (3,659)

Total, net value 120,708 104,864

Doubtful debt and sales returns allowance
(Euro/000) January 1, 2017 Accrued Used          

Translation
Difference December 31, 2017

Allowance for doubtful debt (5,408) (1,853) 269 63 (6,929)

Allowance for returns and discounts (3,659) (4,469) 3,608 117 (4,403)

Total (9,067) (6,322) 3,877 180 (11,332)

Doubtful debt and sales returns allowance
(Euro/000) January 1, 2016 Accrued Used          

Translation
Difference December 31, 2016

Allowance for doubtful debt (5,947) (1,495) 2,047 (13) (5,408)

Allowance for returns and discounts (2,599) (3,662) 2,627 (25) (3,659)

Total (8,546) (5,157) 4,674 (38) (9,067)
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The allowance for doubtful debt was calculated in accordance with management’s best estimate based on the ageing of accounts 
receivable as well as the solvency of the most aged accounts and also taking into consideration any balances turned over into 
collection proceedings. Trade receivables written down are related to specific balances that were past due and for which collec-
tion is uncertain.

5.7. CASH AND BANK

As at December 31, 2017 the caption cash on hand and in bank amounts to Euro 394.1 million (Euro 243.4 million as at December 
31, 2016) and includes cash and cash equivalents as well as the funds available in banks.

The amount included in the Consolidated Financial Statements represents the fair value at the date of the financial state-
ments. The credit risk is very limited since the other parties are class A financial institutions.

The consolidated statement of cash flows includes the changes in cash and cash in bank as well as the bank overdrafts. 
The following table shows the reconciliation between cash and cash in bank with those included in the consolidated statement 
of cash flows:

5.8. FINANCIAL CURRENT ASSETS

The caption financial current assets refers to the receivables arising from the market valuation of the derivatives on exchange 
rates hedges.

5.9. OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at December 31, 2017, prepayments and accrued income current amount to Euro 5.3 million (Euro 5.6 million as at December 
31, 2016) and mainly pertain to deferred expenses for rent.
Other current receivables mainly comprise the receivable due from the tax authority for value added tax. 
Prepayments and accrued income non-current amount to Euro 1.4 million (Euro 1.8 million as at December 31, 2016) and pertain 
to prepaid rents that extend over the current year.
Deposits are mostly related to the amounts paid on behalf of the lessee as a guarantee to the lease agreement. 
There are no differences between the amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and their fair values.

Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of cash flows
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Cash in hand and at banks 394,144 243,389

Bank overdraft 0 (4)

Total 394,144 243,385

Other current and non-current assets
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Prepayments and accrued income - current 5,269 5,629

Other current receivables 14,015 7,727

Other current assets 19,284 13,356

Prepayments and accrued income - non-current 1,429 1,755

Security / guarantees deposits 22,192 22,514

Other non-current receivables 443 422

Other non-current assets 24,064 24,691

Total 43,348 38,047



MONCLER — ANNUAL REPORT AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 111



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS112

5.10. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables amount to Euro 167.2 million (Euro 132.6 million as at December 31, 2016) and pertain to current amounts due 
to suppliers for goods and services. These payables pertain to amounts that are payable within the upcoming year and do not 
include amounts that will be paid after 12 months.
In 2017 and 2016 there are no outstanding positions associated to individual suppliers that exceed 10% of the total value.
There are no differences between the amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and their respective fair values.
Please refer to note 9.1 for an analysis of trade payable denominated in foreign currencies.

5.11. OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

The caption deferred income and accrued expenses current pertains mainly to accrued expenses on rents.
The caption taxes payable includes mainly value added tax (VAT) and payroll tax withholding.
The caption deferred income and accrued expenses non-current pertains to accrued expenses on rents extending over a year.

5.12. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Tax assets amounted to Euro 38.4 million as at December 31, 2017 (Euro 5.6 million as at December 31, 2016) and mainly refer 
to the recognition of a tax asset, equal to Euro 34 million, relative to the agreement signed with the Italian Revenue Agency in 
December 2017 to access the Patent Box tax relief.

Tax liabilities amounted to Euro 36.7 million as at December 31, 2017 (Euro 24.6 million as at December 31, 2016). They are 
recognized net of current tax assets, where the offsetting relates to the same tax jurisdiction and tax system. 

5.13. NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision changes are shown in the following table:

Other current and non-current liabilities
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Deferred income and accrued expenses - current 4,563 1,552

Advances and payments on account to customers 4,738 3,467

Employee and social institutions 37,661 26,414

Tax accounts payable, excluding income taxes 13,036 12,608

Other current payables 8,026 6,278

Other current liabilities 68,024 50,319

Deferred income and accrued expenses - non-current 12,220 12,043

Other non-current liabilities 12,220 12,043

Total 80,244 62,362

Provision for contingencies and losses
(Euro/000) January 1, 2017 Increase Decrease

Translation
differences

Other
movements December 31, 2017

Tax litigations (8,515) 0 8,515 0 0 0

Other non current contingencies (3,365) (2,577) 826 170 0 (4,946)

Total (11,880) (2,577) 9,341 170 0 (4,946)

Provision for contingencies and losses
(Euro/000) January 1, 2016 Increase Decrease

Translation
differences

Other
movements December 31, 2016

Tax litigations (1,015) (7,500) 0 0 0 (8,515)

Other non current contingencies (4,673) (1,252) 2,664 (104) 0 (3,365)

Total (5,688) (8,752) 2,664 (104) 0 (11,880)
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The decrease in the caption tax litigations is due to the use of the provision for the closing of the pending tax claim, related to 
transfer pricing matters.
The caption other non current contingencies includes costs for restoring stores, costs associated with ongoing disputes and 
product warranty costs.

5.14. PENSION FUNDS AND AGENTS LEAVING INDEMNITIES

The changes in the funds are depicted in the following table: 

The pension funds pertain mainly to the Italian entities of the Group. Following the recent welfare reform, beginning on January 
1, 2007, the liability has taken the form of a defined contribution plan. Therefore, the amount of pension fund (TFR) accrued 
prior to the application of the reform and not yet paid to the employees as at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
is considered as a defined benefit plan, changes in which are shown in the following table:

The actuarial valuation of employee termination benefits (TFR) is based on the Projected Unit Credit Cost method. Reported 
below are the main economic and demographic assumptions utilised for actuarial valuations.

Employees pension funds
(Euro/000) January 1, 2017 Increase Decrease

Translation
differences

Other
movements December 31, 2017

Pension funds (2,700) (588) 151 87 (44) (3,094)

Agents leaving indemnities (2,558) 0 0 0 0 (2,558)

Total (5,258) (588) 151 87 (44) (5,652)

Employees pension funds
(Euro/000) January 1, 2016 Increase Decrease

Translation
differences

Other
movements December 31, 2016

Pension funds (1,988) (456) 142 (3) (395) (2,700)

Agents leaving indemnities (2,616) (30) 88 0 0 (2,558)

Total (4,604) (486) 230 (3) (395) (5,258)

Employees pension funds - movements
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Net recognized liability - opening (2,192) (1,914)

Interest costs (49) (39)

Service costs (236) (156)

Payments 151 142

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) 38 (225)

Net recognized liability - closing (2,288) (2,192)

Assumptions

Discount rate 1.30%

Inf lation rate 1.50%

Nominal rate of wage growth 1.50%

Labour turnover rate 3.80%

Probability of request of advances of TFR 4.50%

Percentage required in case of advance 70.00%

Life Table - Male M2016 (*)

Life Table - Female F2016 (*)

(*) Table ISTAT - resident population
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The following table shows the effect of variations, within reasonable limits, in key actuarial assumptions on defined benefit plan 
obligations at year end.

5.15. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are detailed in the following table:

Short-term borrowings include the current portion of long-term bank loans and, in the caption other short-term loans, mainly 
the current portion of financial liabilities payable to non-banking third parties.
Long-term borrowings include the portion with a due date greater than a year of financial liabilities payable to non-banking third 
parties.
The following tables show the break down of the borrowing in accordance with their maturity date:

No new medium/long-term loans were taken out during 2017. The change in short and long terms borrowings reflects the nor-
mal repayment instalments as per the related agreements and the evaluation of the financial liabilities payable to non-banking 
third parties.

As at December 31, 2017, the company Moncler S.p.A. wholly reimbursed the loan outstanding at December 31, 2016 of Euro 
24 million.
At the same date, the Group had medium term unsecured loans for Euro 2.1 million (Euro 40.3 million as at December 31, 2016).
The loans do not include covenants.

Finally, the caption other short-term loans includes also the positive fair value, equal to Euro 1.3 million (negative Euro 2.7 
million as at December 31, 2016), related to the contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk. Please refer to note 9.3 for more details.
The net financial position is detailed in the following table:

Sensitivity analysis
(Euro/000) Variation

Discount rate +0,5% (127)

Discount rate -0,5% 127

Rate of payments Increases x(1+20%) (13)

Rate of payments Decreases x(1-20%) 13

Rate of Price Inf lation Increases (+0,5%) 91

Rate of Price Inf lation Decreases (-0,5%) (88)

Rate of Salary Increases (+0,5%) 25

Rate of Salary Decreases (-0,5%) (23)

Increase the retirement age (+1 year) 8

Decrease the retirement age (-1 year) (9)

Increase longevity (+1 year) 0

Decrease longevity (-1 year) (0)

Borrowings
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Bank overdraft and short-term bank loans 0 4

Short-term portion of long-term bank loans 2,098 62,053

Other short-term loans 23,104 2,720

Short-term borrowings 25,202 64,777

Long-term borrowings 67,874 75,835

Total 93,076 140,612

Ageing of the financial liabilities
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Within 2 years 26,251 63,555

From 2 to 5 years 36,182 12,280

Beyond 5 years 5,441 0

Total 67,874 75,835
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Net financial position as defined by the CESR Recommendation of February 10, 2005 (referred to by the Consob Communication of July 
28, 2006).

5.16. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Changes in shareholders› equity for 2017 and the comparative period are included in the consolidated statements of changes in 
equity.

As at December 31, 2017 the subscribed share capital constitute by 254,778,741 shares was fully paid and amounted to Euro 
50,995,748.20 with a nominal value of Euro 0.20 per share.

During 2017, Moncler S.p.A. bought 1,000,000 Company shares, equal to 0.4% of the current share capital, for a total amount 
of Euro 21.3 million. As at December 31, 2017 2,000,000 treasury shares were held, equal to 0.8% of the share capital, for a total 
value of Euro 34.1 million.
The legal reserve and premium reserve pertain to the parent company Moncler S.p.A.

In 2017 the parent company distributed dividends to the Group Shareholders for an amount of Euro 45.5 million (Euro 34.9 
million in 2016).

The increase of the share capital and the share premium reserve arises from the exercise of n. 4,564,017 vested options (for 
the same number of shares) in relation to the stock option plan approved by the shareholders meeting of Moncler S.p.A. dated 
February 28, 2014 at the exercise price of Euro 10.20 per share.
The other changes in shareholders› equity result from the accounting treatment of stock option and performance shares plans.

The change in retained earnings mainly relates to the payment of dividends to shareholders, to the treasury shares purchase 
and the adjustment to market value of the financial liabilities towards non-banking third parties.

The caption other reserves includes other comprehensive income comprising the exchange rate translation reserve of fi-
nancial statements reported in foreign currencies, the reserve for hedging interest rate risks and exchange rates risks and the 
reserve for actuarial gains/losses. The translation reserve includes the exchange differences emerging from the conversion of 
the financial statements of the foreign consolidated companies; the changes are mainly due to the differences resulting from 
the consolidation of the Japanese company and one of the American companies. The hedging reserve includes the effective 
portion of the net differences accumulated in the fair value of the derivative hedge instruments. Changes to these reserves 
were as follows:

Net financial position
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Cash and cash equivalents 394,144 243,389

Other short-term financial receivables 3,884 3,019

Debts and other current financial liabilities (25,202) (64,777)

Debts and other non-current financial liabilities (67,874) (75,835)

Total 304,952 105,796

Net financial position
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

A. Cash in hand 1,655 1,178

B. Cash at banks and cash equivalents 392,489 242,211

C. Available for sale securities 0 0

D. Liquidity (A)+(B)+(C) 394,144 243,389

E .Current financial assets 3,884 3,019

F. Payable to banks, current 0 (4)

G. Current portion of long-term debt (2,098) (62,053)

H. Other current financial debt (23,104) (2,720)

I. Current financial debt (F)+(G)+(H) (25,202) (64,777)

J. Net current financial debt (I)+(E)-(D) 372,826 181,631

K. Payable to bank, non-current 0 (2,092)

L. Bonds issued 0 0

M. Other non-current payables (67,874) (73,743)

N. Non-current financial debt (K)+(L)+(M) (67,874) (75,835)

O. Net financial debt (J)+(N) 304,952 105,796
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EARNING PER SHARE

Earning per share for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 is included in the following table and is based on 
the relationship between net income attributable to the Group and the average number of shares, net of treasury shares owned.
The diluted earnings per share is in line with the basic earnings per share as at December 31, 2017 as there are no significant 
dilutive effects arising from stock based compensation plans.
It should be noted that, for the diluted earnings per share calculation, the treasury share method has been applied, prescribed 
by IAS 33 paragraph 45 for stock-based compensation plans.

6.

SEGMENT 
INFORMATION
For the purposes of IFRS 8 «Operating Segments», the Group›s activity is part of a single operating segment referred to Moncler 
business.

Other comprehensive income
(Euro/000)

Cumulative translation adj. reserve Other OCI items

Value before
tax effect Tax effect

Value after
tax effect

Value before
tax effect Tax effect

Value after
tax effect

Reserve as at January 1, 2016 3,581 0 3,581 (25) (15) (40)

Changes in the period 1,692 0 1,692 (212) 57 (155)

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement  
of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2016 5,273 0 5,273 (237) 42 (195)

Reserve as at January 1, 2017 5,273 0 5,273 (237) 42 (195)

Changes in the period (16,242) 0 (16,242) 687 (156) 531

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement of 
the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2017 (10,969) 0 (10,969) 450 (114) 336

Earnings per share Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Net result of the period (Euro/000) 249,688 196,044

Average number of shares related to parent’s Shareholders 252,060,094 249,268,029

Earnings attributable to Shareholders (Unit of Euro) 0,99 0,79

Diluited earnings attributable to Shareholders (Unit of Euro) 0,98 0,78

7.

COMMITMENTS AND 
GUARANTEES GIVEN
7.1. COMMITMENTS

The Group’s commitments pertain mostly to lease agreements related to the location where sales are generated (stores, outlets 
and showrooms), the location where inventories are stored and the location where the administrative functions are performed.
As at December 31, 2017, the outstanding operating lease balance was as follows:

As at December 31 2016, the outstanding operating lease balance was as follows:

7.2. GUARANTEES GIVEN

As at December 31, 2017 the Group had given the following guarantees:

Guarantees pertain mainly to lease agreements for the new stores.

Operating lease commitments -
future minimum payments
(Euro/000) Less than 1 year Between 1 and 5 years Beyond 5 years Total

DOS 63,997 181,080 95,070 340,147

Outlet 5,592 19,914 14,853 40,359

Other buildings 7,551 15,082 1,686 24,319

Operating lease commitments -
future minimum payments
(Euro/000) Less than 1 year Between 1 and 5 years Beyond 5 years Total

DOS 62,773 193,111 104,639 360,523

Outlet 4,308 16,522 10,263 31,092

Other buildings 7,026 15,579 1,083 23,688

Guarantees and bails given
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Guarantees and bails given for the benefit of:

Third parties/companies 14,726 11,682

Total guarantees and bails 14,726 11,682
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8.

CONTINGENT 
LIABILITY
As the Group operates globally, it is subject to legal and tax 
risks which may arise during the performance of its ordinary 
activities. Based on information available to date, the Group 
believes that as at the date of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, the provisions in Consolidated Financial State-
ments are adequate to ensure that the Consolidated Financial 
Statements give a true and fair view of the Group›s financial 
position and results of operations.

The exposure of contingent assets and liabilities denominated in currencies is detailed in the following table (the Euro amount 
of each currency):

At the reporting date, the Group had outstanding hedges for Euro 52.5 million (Euro 43.9 million as at December 31, 2015) 
against receivables still to be collected and outstanding hedges for Euro 182.8 million (Euro 96.6 million as at December 31, 
2016) against future revenues. As far as the currency transactions are concerned, it should be noted that a + / -1% change in their 
exchange rates would have the following effects:

Details of the 
balances expressed
in foreign currency
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Euro JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan
HK 

Dollar CH Franc
GB 

Pound KR Won
CD 

Dollar Other Total

Cash and cash 
equivalent 259,847 56,658 15,895 12,378 14,099 4,623 6,953 2,627 2,382 18,682 394,144

Financial assets 3,884 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,884

Trade receivable 29,281 34,149 9,056 25,719 1,252 114 5,904 2,627 1,197 11,409 120,708

Other current assets 10,294 933 738 2,178 57 140 880 67 1 3,996 19,284

Other non-current 
assets 3,964 4,852 3,589 2,654 4,957 469 729 774 600 1,476 24,064

Total assets 307,270 96,592 29,278 42,929 20,365 5,346 14,466 6,095 4,180 35,563 562,084

Trade payables (115,042) (17,775) (8,029) (8,828) (5,563) (756) (2,968) (1,215) (801) (6,235) (167,212)

Borrowings (92,990) 0 0 0 0 (85) 0 0 0 (1) (93,076)

Other current 
payables (38,720) (5,014) (7,096) (4,970) (2,517) (807) (3,490) (1,798) (1,025) (2,587) (68,024)

Other non-current 
payables (1,513) 0 (8,658) 0 (1,116) 0 0 (577) (280) (76) (12,220)

Total liabilities (248,265) (22,789) (23,783) (13,798) (9,196) (1,648) (6,458) (3,590) (2,106) (8,899) (340,532)

Total, net foreign 
positions 59,005 73,803 5,495 29,131 11,169 3,698 8,008 2,505 2,074 26,664 221,552

Details of the 
balances expressed
in foreign currency
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Euro JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan
HK 

Dollar CH Franc
GB 

Pound KR Won
CD 

Dollar Other Total

Cash and cash 
equivalent 75,201 26,261 40,870 30,811 16,777 5,754 15,698 13,226 4,804 13,987 243,389

Financial assets 2,887 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 132 3,019

Trade receivable 26,209 32,681 8,405 20,132 908 408 3,727 8,770 601 3,023 104,864

Other current assets 7,070 980 452 795 99 52 914 273 0 2,721 13,356

Other non-current 
assets 4,113 5,270 3,221 2,523 6,114 511 493 782 633 1,031 24,691

Total assets 115,480 65,192 52,948 54,261 23,898 6,725 20,832 23,051 6,038 20,894 389,319

Trade payables (92,696) (16,161) (6,464) (3,546) (4,042) (448) (759) (1,704) (724) (6,042) (132,586)

Borrowings (140,608) 0 (3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) (140,612)

Other current 
payables (28,710) (4,085) (5,608) (2,471) (1,356) (648) (3,145) (2,171) (486) (1,639) (50,319)

Other non-current 
payables (1,257) 0 (10,199) 0 0 0 0 (462) (125) 0 (12,043)

Total liabilities (263,271) (20,246) (22,274) (6,017) (5,398) (1,096) (3,904) (4,337) (1,335) (7,682) (335,560)

Total, net foreign 
positions (147,791) 44,946 30,674 48,244 18,500 5,629 16,928 18,714 4,703 13,212 53,759

Details of the transactions expressed in foreign currency
(Euro/000) JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan HK Dollar

Korean
Wong GBP Other

Effect of an exchange rate increase amounting to +1%

Revenue 2,268 2,774 1,686 908 970 746 1,078

Operating profit 1,359 2,026 1,059 640 640 580 446

Effect of an exchange rate increase amounting to -1%

Revenue (2,314) (2,759) (1,720) (926) (990) (761) (1,099)

Operating profit (1,386) (1,996) (1,080) (653) (652) (592) (455)

9.

INFORMATION ABOUT 
FINANCIAL RISKS
The Group›s financial instruments include cash and cash 
equivalents, loans, receivables and trade payables and other 
current receivables and payables and non-current assets as 
well as derivatives.

The Group is exposed to financial risks related to its op-
erations: market risk (mainly related to exchange rates and 
interest rates), credit risk (associated with both regular cli-
ent relations and financing activities), liquidity risk (with par-
ticular reference to the availability of financial resources and 
access to the credit market and financial instruments) and 
capital risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Headquar-
ters, which ensures primarily that there are sufficient finan-
cial resources to meet the needs of business development and 
that resources are properly invested in income-generating 
activities.

The Group uses derivative instruments to hedge its expo-
sure to specific market risks, such as the risk associated with 
fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates, on the basis 
of the policies established by the Board of Directors.

9.1. MARKET RISK

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign 
exchange rate risk primarily related to the U.S. Dollar, the Jap-
anese Yen and the Chinese Renminbi and to a lesser extent to 
the Hong Kong Dollar, the British Pound, Korean Won, Canadi-
an Dollars and the Swiss Franc.

The Group regularly assesses its exposure to financial 
market risks and manages these risks through the use of de-
rivative financial instruments, in accordance with its estab-
lished risk management policies.

The Group’s policy permits derivatives to be used only for 
managing the exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates con-
nected with future cash flows and not for speculative purposes.

During 2017, the Group put in place a policy to hedge the 
exchange rates risk on transactions with reference to the ma-
jor currencies to which it is exposed: USD, JPY, CNY, HKD, GBP, 
KRW and CHF.

The instruments used for these hedges are mainly Cur-
rency Forward Contracts and Currency Option Contracts.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments as cash 
flow hedges for the purpose of redetermining the exchange 
rate at which forecasted transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies will be accounted for.

Counterparties to these agreements are major and di-
verse financial institutions.
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The exposure of contingent assets and liabilities denominated in currencies is detailed in the following table (the Euro amount 
of each currency):

At the reporting date, the Group had outstanding hedges for Euro 52.5 million (Euro 43.9 million as at December 31, 2015) 
against receivables still to be collected and outstanding hedges for Euro 182.8 million (Euro 96.6 million as at December 31, 
2016) against future revenues. As far as the currency transactions are concerned, it should be noted that a + / -1% change in their 
exchange rates would have the following effects:

Details of the 
balances expressed
in foreign currency
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Euro JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan
HK 

Dollar CH Franc
GB 

Pound KR Won
CD 

Dollar Other Total

Cash and cash 
equivalent 259,847 56,658 15,895 12,378 14,099 4,623 6,953 2,627 2,382 18,682 394,144

Financial assets 3,884 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,884

Trade receivable 29,281 34,149 9,056 25,719 1,252 114 5,904 2,627 1,197 11,409 120,708

Other current assets 10,294 933 738 2,178 57 140 880 67 1 3,996 19,284

Other non-current 
assets 3,964 4,852 3,589 2,654 4,957 469 729 774 600 1,476 24,064

Total assets 307,270 96,592 29,278 42,929 20,365 5,346 14,466 6,095 4,180 35,563 562,084

Trade payables (115,042) (17,775) (8,029) (8,828) (5,563) (756) (2,968) (1,215) (801) (6,235) (167,212)

Borrowings (92,990) 0 0 0 0 (85) 0 0 0 (1) (93,076)

Other current 
payables (38,720) (5,014) (7,096) (4,970) (2,517) (807) (3,490) (1,798) (1,025) (2,587) (68,024)

Other non-current 
payables (1,513) 0 (8,658) 0 (1,116) 0 0 (577) (280) (76) (12,220)

Total liabilities (248,265) (22,789) (23,783) (13,798) (9,196) (1,648) (6,458) (3,590) (2,106) (8,899) (340,532)

Total, net foreign 
positions 59,005 73,803 5,495 29,131 11,169 3,698 8,008 2,505 2,074 26,664 221,552

Details of the 
balances expressed
in foreign currency
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Euro JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan
HK 

Dollar CH Franc
GB 

Pound KR Won
CD 

Dollar Other Total

Cash and cash 
equivalent 75,201 26,261 40,870 30,811 16,777 5,754 15,698 13,226 4,804 13,987 243,389

Financial assets 2,887 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 132 3,019

Trade receivable 26,209 32,681 8,405 20,132 908 408 3,727 8,770 601 3,023 104,864

Other current assets 7,070 980 452 795 99 52 914 273 0 2,721 13,356

Other non-current 
assets 4,113 5,270 3,221 2,523 6,114 511 493 782 633 1,031 24,691

Total assets 115,480 65,192 52,948 54,261 23,898 6,725 20,832 23,051 6,038 20,894 389,319

Trade payables (92,696) (16,161) (6,464) (3,546) (4,042) (448) (759) (1,704) (724) (6,042) (132,586)

Borrowings (140,608) 0 (3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) (140,612)

Other current 
payables (28,710) (4,085) (5,608) (2,471) (1,356) (648) (3,145) (2,171) (486) (1,639) (50,319)

Other non-current 
payables (1,257) 0 (10,199) 0 0 0 0 (462) (125) 0 (12,043)

Total liabilities (263,271) (20,246) (22,274) (6,017) (5,398) (1,096) (3,904) (4,337) (1,335) (7,682) (335,560)

Total, net foreign 
positions (147,791) 44,946 30,674 48,244 18,500 5,629 16,928 18,714 4,703 13,212 53,759

Details of the transactions expressed in foreign currency
(Euro/000) JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan HK Dollar

Korean
Wong GBP Other

Effect of an exchange rate increase amounting to +1%

Revenue 2,268 2,774 1,686 908 970 746 1,078

Operating profit 1,359 2,026 1,059 640 640 580 446

Effect of an exchange rate increase amounting to -1%

Revenue (2,314) (2,759) (1,720) (926) (990) (761) (1,099)

Operating profit (1,386) (1,996) (1,080) (653) (652) (592) (455)
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With reference to the provisions of IFRS 13, it should be point-
ed out that the category of financial instruments measured at 
fair value are mainly attributable to the hedging of exchange 
rates risk. The valuation of these instruments is based on the 
discounting of future cash flows considering the exchange 
rates at the reporting date (level 2 as explained in the section 
related to principles).

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group›s exposure to interest-rate risk is mainly related 
to cash, cash equivalents and bank loans and it is centrally 
managed by the Headquarter.

At 31 December 2017, Moncler S.p.A. wholly reimbursed 
the loan outstanding as at December 31, 2016 for Euro 24 mil-
lion (original amount Euro 60 million). 

Furthermore, at the same date, the Group had unsecured 
loans for Euro 2.1 million (Euro 40.3 million as at December 
31, 2016).

As at 31 December 2017, there was no hedging on interest 
rates, given the limited exposure to financial institutions.

As far as financial debts are concerned, a f luctuation of 
+/- 0.25% in the interest rate would have led to a worsening of 
Euro 108 thousand in financial charges and an improvement 
of Euro 108 thousand.

9.2. CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant concentrations of financial as-
sets (trade receivables and other current assets) with a high 
credit risk. The Group›s policies related to the management of 
financial assets are intended to reduce the risks arising from 
non solvency of wholesale customers. Sales in the retail chan-
nel are made   through cash and credit cards. In addition, the 
amount of loans outstanding is constantly monitored, so that 
the Group›s exposure to bad debts is not significant and the 
percentage of writeoffs remain low. The maximum exposure 
to credit risk for the Group at December 31, 2017 is represent-
ed by the carrying amount of trade receivables reported in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As far as the credit risk arising from other financial as-
sets other than trade receivables (including cash and short-
term bank deposits) is concerned, the theoretical credit risk 
for the Group arises from default of the counterparty with a 
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of financial 
assets recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements, as 
well as the nominal value of guarantees given for third parties 
debts or commitments indicated in note 8 of the Explanatory 
Notes. The Group’s policies limit the amount of credit expo-
sure in different banks.

9.3. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk arises from the ability to obtain financial re-
sources at a sustainable cost in order for the Group to con-
duct its daily business operations. The factors that influence 
this risk are related to the resources generated/absorbed by 
operating activities, by investing and financing activities and 
by availability of funds in the financial market.
Following the dynamic nature of the business, the Group has 
centralized its treasury functions in order to maintain the 
flexibility in finding financial sources and maintain the avail-
ability of credit lines. The procedures in place to mitigate the 
liquidity risk are as follows:
• centralized treasury management and financial planning. 

Use of a centralized control system to manage the net 
financial position of the Group and its subsidiaries; 

• obtaining adequate credit lines to create an adequate 
debt structure to better use the liquidity provided by the 
credit system;

• continuous monitoring of future cash flows based on the 
Group budget.

Management believes that the financial resources available 
today, along with those that are generated by the current op-
erations will enable the Group to achieve its objectives and to 
meet its investment needs and the repayment of its debt at 
the agreed upon maturity date.

It should also be noted, with reference to the provisions 
of IFRS 13, financial liabilities relating to commitment to pur-
chase minority interests are accounted for at fair value based 
on valuation models primarily attributable to level 3, as ex-
plained in the section related to principles.

It is reported in the following table an analysis of the contractual maturities (including interests), for financial liabilities.

Non derivative financial
liabilities
(Euro/000)

Total book
value

Contractual cash flows

Total
6 months 

or less
6-12

months 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years
more than  

5 years

Bank overdraft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Self-liquidating loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Financial debt to third parties 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unsecured loans 2,097 2,113 2,113 0 0 0 0 0 0

Derivative financial liabilities
(Euro/000)

Total book
value

Contractual cash flows

Total
6 months 

or less
6-12

months 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years
more than  

5 years

Interest rate swap hedging 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forward contracts on exchange
rate hedging (2,634) (2,634) (1,742) (890) (2) 0 0 0 0

- Outf lows 1,250 1,250 526 134 590 0 0 0 0

- Inf lowsw (3,884) (3,884) (2,267) (1,025) (592) 0 0 0 0
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It is reported in the following table an analysis of the contractual maturities (including interests), for financial liabilities.

9.4. OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
MANAGEMENT RISKS

In the management of operating risk, the Group›s main objec-
tive is to manage the risks associated with the development 
of business in foreign markets that are subject to specific laws 
and regulations. The Group has implemented guidelines in the 
following areas:
• appropriate level of segregation of duties;
• reconciliation and constant monitoring of significant 

transactions;
• documentation of controls and procedures;
• technical and professional training of employees;
• periodic assessment of corporate risks and identification 

of corrective actions.
As far as the capital management risk is concerned, the 
Group›s objectives are aimed at the going concern issue in 
order to ensure a fair economic return to shareholders and 
other stakeholders while maintaining a good rating in the cap-
ital debt market. The Group manages its capital structure and 
makes adjustments in line with changes in general economic 
conditions and with the strategic objectives.

Non derivative financial
liabilities
(Euro/000)

Total book
value

Contractual cash flows

Total
6 months 

or less
6-12

months 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years
more than  

5 years

Bank overdraft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Self-liquidating loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Financial debt to third parties 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unsecured loans 2,097 2,113 2,113 0 0 0 0 0 0

Derivative financial liabilities
(Euro/000)

Total book
value

Contractual cash flows

Total
6 months 

or less
6-12

months 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years
more than  

5 years

Interest rate swap hedging 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forward contracts on exchange
rate hedging (2,634) (2,634) (1,742) (890) (2) 0 0 0 0

- Outf lows 1,250 1,250 526 134 590 0 0 0 0

- Inf lowsw (3,884) (3,884) (2,267) (1,025) (592) 0 0 0 0
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10.

OTHER  
INFORMATION

10.1. RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS 

Set out below are the transactions with related parties 
deemed relevant for the purposes of the “Related-party pro-
cedure” adopted by the Group. 

The “Related-party procedure” is available on the Com-
pany’s website (www.monclergroup.com, under “Governance/
Corporate documents”).

Transactions and balances with consolidated companies 
have been eliminated during consolidation and are therefore 
not commented here.
During 2017, related-party transactions mainly relate to trad-
ing transactions carried out on an arm›s length basis with the 
following parties:
• Yagi Tsusho Ltd, counterparty to the transaction which 

led to the establishment of Moncler Japan Ltd., acquires 
finished products from Moncler Group companies (Euro 
65.3 million in 2017 and Euro 59.4 million in 2016) and 
then sells them to Moncler Japan Ltd. (Euro 74.6 million 
in 2017 and Euro 67.4 million in 2016) pursuant to the 
contract agreed upon the companys› establishment.

• Gokse Tekstil Kozmetik Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret limited sir-
keti, company held by the minority share holder of Mon-
cler Istanbul Giyim ve Tekstil Ticaret Ltd. Sti, provides 
services to that company by virtue of the contract signed 
at the time of incorporation of the company. Total costs 
recognized for 2017 amount to Euro 0.2 million (Euro 0.2 
million in 2016).

• The company La Rotonda S.r.l., owned by a manager of 
the Moncler Group, acquires finished products from In-
dustries S.p.A. and provides services to the same. Total 
revenues recognized for 2017 amount to Euro 0.9 million 
(Euro 0.6 million in 2016) and total costs recognized for 
2016 amount to Euro 0.2 million (Euro 0.2 in 2016).

• Shinsegae International Inc., counterparty to the transac-
tion which led to the establishment of Moncler Shinsegae 
Inc., provides services to the latter pursuant to a contract 
agreed upon its establishment. Total costs recognized for 
2017 amount to Euro 0.005 (Euro 0.4 in 2016).

The company Industries S.p.A. adhere to the Parent Company 
Moncler S.p.A. fiscal consolidation.

COMPENSATION PAID TO DIRECTORS,  
BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS AND EXECUTIVES 
WITH STRATEGIC RESPONSIBILITIES

Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors 
in 2017 amounted to Euro 4,868 thousand (Euro 4,641 thou-
sand in 2016).
Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Auditors 
in 2017 amounted to Euro 179 thousand (Euro 185 thousand 
in 2016).

In 2017 total compensation paid to executives with stra-
tegic responsibilities amounted to Euro 2,818 thousand (Euro 
2,656 thousand in 2016).

In 2017 the costs relating to stock option plans (described 
in note 10.2) referring to members of the Board of Directors 
and Key management personnel amount to Euro 8,300 thou-
sand (Euro 7,380 thousand in 2016).

The following tables summarize the afore-mentioned re-
lated-party transactions that took place during 2017 and the 
prior year.
  

The following tables summarize the weight of related-party trasactions on the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for 
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December

31, 2017 %
December

31, 2016 %

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Distribution agreement a 65,289 (23.6)% 59,446 (23.6)%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Distribution agreement a (74,580) 27.0% (67,356) 26.7%

GokseTekstil Kozmetik Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret 
limited sirketi

 
Service agreement

 
b (238) 0.2% (223) 0.2%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade transactions c 884 0.1% 590 0.1%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade transactions d (157) 0.0% (160) 0.1%

Shinsegae International Inc. Trade transactions b (5) 0.0% (282) 0.3%

Shinsegae International Inc. Trade transactions d 0 0.0% (163) 0.1%

Directors, board of statutory auditors and
executives with strategic responsibilities

 
Labour services

 
b (7,198) 6.6% (6,850) 7.3%

Executives with strategic responsibilities Labour services d (667) 0.2% (631) 0.2%

Directors and executives with strategic
responsibilities

 
Labour services

 
e (8,300) 35.3% (7,380) 46.9%

Total (24,972) (23,009)

a. effect in % based on cost of sales
b. effect in % based on general and administrative expenses
c. effect in % based on revenues
d. effect in % based on selling expenses
e. effect in % based on non recurring expenses

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December

31, 2017 %
December

31, 2016 %

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Trade payables a (9,676) 5.8% (8,049) 6.1%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Trade receivables b 9,674 8.0% 7,111 6.8%

Gokse Tekstil Kozmetik Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret 
limited sirketi

 
Trade payables

 
a (46) 0.0% 0 0.0%

Shinsegae International Inc. Trade payables a 0 0.0% (1) 0.0%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade receivables b 771 0.6% 412 0.4%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade payables a (120) 0.1% (81) 0.1%

Directors, board of statutory auditors and
executives with strategic responsibilities

 
Other current liabilities

 
c (3,909) 5.7% (3,788) 7.5%

Total (3,306) (4,396)

a. effect in % based on trade payables
b. effect in % based on trade receivables
c. effect in % based on other current liabilities

(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Revenue
Cost of 

sales
Selling

expenses

General and
administrative

expenses
Stock based

compensation
Trade

receivables
Trade 

Payables
Other current

liabilities

Total related parties 884 (9,291) (824) (7,441) (8,300) 10,445 (9,842) (3,909)

Total Consolidated Financial 
Statement 1,193,704 (276,186) (365,103) (108,660) (23,485) 120,708 (167,212) (68,024)

weight % 0.1% 3.4% 0.2% 6.8% 35.3% 8.7% 5.9% 5.7%

(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Revenue
Cost of 

sales
Selling

expenses

General and
administrative

expenses
Stock based

compensation
Trade

receivables
Trade 

Payables
Other current

liabilities

Total related parties 590 (7,910) (954) (7,355) (7,380) 7,523 (8,131) (3,788)

Total Consolidated Financial 
Statement 1,040,311 (252,303) (312,353) (94,093) (15,738) 104,864 (132,586) (50,319)

weight % 0.1% 3.1% 0.3% 7.8% 46.9% 7.2% 6.1% 7.5%
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The following tables summarize the weight of related-party trasactions on the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for 
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December

31, 2017 %
December

31, 2016 %

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Distribution agreement a 65,289 (23.6)% 59,446 (23.6)%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Distribution agreement a (74,580) 27.0% (67,356) 26.7%

GokseTekstil Kozmetik Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret 
limited sirketi

 
Service agreement

 
b (238) 0.2% (223) 0.2%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade transactions c 884 0.1% 590 0.1%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade transactions d (157) 0.0% (160) 0.1%

Shinsegae International Inc. Trade transactions b (5) 0.0% (282) 0.3%

Shinsegae International Inc. Trade transactions d 0 0.0% (163) 0.1%

Directors, board of statutory auditors and
executives with strategic responsibilities

 
Labour services

 
b (7,198) 6.6% (6,850) 7.3%

Executives with strategic responsibilities Labour services d (667) 0.2% (631) 0.2%

Directors and executives with strategic
responsibilities

 
Labour services

 
e (8,300) 35.3% (7,380) 46.9%

Total (24,972) (23,009)

a. effect in % based on cost of sales
b. effect in % based on general and administrative expenses
c. effect in % based on revenues
d. effect in % based on selling expenses
e. effect in % based on non recurring expenses

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December

31, 2017 %
December

31, 2016 %

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Trade payables a (9,676) 5.8% (8,049) 6.1%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Trade receivables b 9,674 8.0% 7,111 6.8%

Gokse Tekstil Kozmetik Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret 
limited sirketi

 
Trade payables

 
a (46) 0.0% 0 0.0%

Shinsegae International Inc. Trade payables a 0 0.0% (1) 0.0%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade receivables b 771 0.6% 412 0.4%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade payables a (120) 0.1% (81) 0.1%

Directors, board of statutory auditors and
executives with strategic responsibilities

 
Other current liabilities

 
c (3,909) 5.7% (3,788) 7.5%

Total (3,306) (4,396)

a. effect in % based on trade payables
b. effect in % based on trade receivables
c. effect in % based on other current liabilities

(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Revenue
Cost of 

sales
Selling

expenses

General and
administrative

expenses
Stock based

compensation
Trade

receivables
Trade 

Payables
Other current

liabilities

Total related parties 884 (9,291) (824) (7,441) (8,300) 10,445 (9,842) (3,909)

Total Consolidated Financial 
Statement 1,193,704 (276,186) (365,103) (108,660) (23,485) 120,708 (167,212) (68,024)

weight % 0.1% 3.4% 0.2% 6.8% 35.3% 8.7% 5.9% 5.7%

(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Revenue
Cost of 

sales
Selling

expenses

General and
administrative

expenses
Stock based

compensation
Trade

receivables
Trade 

Payables
Other current

liabilities

Total related parties 590 (7,910) (954) (7,355) (7,380) 7,523 (8,131) (3,788)

Total Consolidated Financial 
Statement 1,040,311 (252,303) (312,353) (94,093) (15,738) 104,864 (132,586) (50,319)

weight % 0.1% 3.1% 0.3% 7.8% 46.9% 7.2% 6.1% 7.5%
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10.2. STOCK OPTION PLANS

The Consolidated Financial Statements at December 31, 2017 
reflects the values of the Stock Option Plans approved in 2014 
and 2015 and of the new Performance Share Plan approved in 
2016.
With regard to stock option plans approved in 2014, please 
note that:
• The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Top Management and 

Key people” provides for a vesting period ended with the 
approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 
December 31, 2016. Each beneficiary may exercise the 
options granted on condition that the specific perfor-
mance goals related to Group’s consolidated EBITDA are 
achieved. Please note that these performance goals have 
been achieved. The exercise price of the options is equal 
to Euro 10.20 and allows for the subscription of shares in 
the ratio of one ordinary share for every option exercised;

• The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Italian Corporate 
Structures” provides for three separate tranches with a 
vesting period starting from the grant date of the plan 
until the approval date by the Board of Directors of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements respectively as at De-
cember 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016. Each beneficiary may 
exercise the options granted on condition that the spe-
cific performance goals related to Group’s consolidated 
EBITDA are achieved. Please note that these performance 
goals have been achieved. The exercise price of the op-
tions is equal to Euro 10.20 and allows for the subscrip-
tion of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for every 
option exercised;

• The fair value of stock options was estimated at the grant 
date using the Black-Scholes method, based on the fol-
lowing assumptions:
• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 13.27;
• estimated life of the options equal to the period 

from the grant date to the following estimated ex-
ercise dates: 
o Stock Option Plan for “Top Management and 

Key People”: March 1, 2018;
o Stock Option Plan Structures corporate: I 

tranche March 1, 2017, II tranche August 31, 
2017, III tranche March, 1 2018;

• dividend yield 1%;
• fair value per tranche from Euro 3.8819 to Euro 

4.1597.
• The effect of the two plans on the 2017 income state-

ment amounted to Euro 2.3 million, while the net eq-
uity increase following the exercise of the vested op-
tions in respect of the first, the second and the third 
tranche of the plan “Corporate Structure” and the “Top 
Management and Key People” Plan amounts to Euro 
46.6 million.

As at December 31, 2017 6,683 options for the “Corporate 
Structure” plan are still in circulation, after that, during 2017, 
159,017 options related to the “Corporate Structures” plan 
and 4,405,000 options related to the “Top Management and 
Key People” plan were exercised. 
With regard to stock option plans approved in 2015, please 
note that:
• The 2015 Plan is intended for executive directors and/

or Key-managers with strategic responsibilities employ-

ees and external consultants and other collaborators of 
Moncler S.p.A. and its subsidiaries which are considered 
as having a strategic importance or are otherwise able 
to make a significant contribution to achieving Group’s 
strategic objectives;

• The 2015 Plan provides for the assignment of maximum 
2,548,225 options through 3 cycles of allocation, free of 
charge. The options allow, under the conditions estab-
lished, to subscribe ordinary shares of Moncler S.p.A. The 
first grant cycle was completed on May 12, 2015, with the 
allocation of 1,385,000 options;

• The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 16.34 
and allows for the subscription of shares in the ratio of 
one ordinary share for every option exercised;

• The 2015 Plan provides for a vesting period of three years 
between the allocation date and the initial exercise date. 
The option can be exercised within June 30, 2020 max-
imum, for the first attribution cycle and June 30, 2021 
or June 30, 2022, respectively, for the second and third 
attribution cycle;

• Each beneficiary may exercise the options granted on 
condition that the specific performance goals related to 
Group’s consolidated EBITDA are achieved;

• The fair value of 2015 Plan was estimated at the grant 
date using the Black-Scholes method, based on the fol-
lowing assumptions:
• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 

16.34;
• estimated life of options equal to the period from 

the grant date to the following estimated exercise: 
May 31, 2019;

• dividend yield 1%;
• fair value per tranche Euro 3.2877.

• The effect on the income statement of 2017 of the 
2015 Plan amounts to Euro 1.5 million, which mainly 
includes the costs accrued during the period, calcu-
lation of which is based on the fair value of the plans, 
which takes into account the value of the share at the 
grant date, the volatility, the flow of the expected divi-
dends, the option term and the risk-free rate.

• As at December 31, 2017 the following options are still 
in circulation: 1,155,000 options.

On April 20, 2016, the shareholders meeting of Moncler ap-
proved the adoption of a stock grant plan entitled “2016-2018 
Performance Shares Plan” (“2016 Plan”) addressed to Execu-
tive Directors and/or Key Managers, and/or employees, and/or 
collaborators, and/or external consultants of Moncler S.p.A. 
and of its subsidiaries, which have strategically relevant roles 
or are otherwise capable of making a significant contribution, 
with a view to pursuing the Group’s strategic objectives.

The object of the Plan is the free granting of the Moncler 
shares in case certain Performance Targets are achieved at the 
end of the vesting period of 3 years.

The Performance Targets are expressed base on the earn-
ing per share index (“EPS”) of the Group in the Vesting Period, 
adjusted by the conditions of over\under performance.

The proposed maximum number of shares serving the 
Plan is equal to No. 3,800,000 resulting from a Capital In-
crease and/or from the allocation of treasury shares.

The Plan provides for a maximum of 3 cycles of attribu-
tion. The first attribution cycle, approved during 2016, ended 
with the assignment of 2,856,000 Moncler Rights; the second 

10.3. SUBSIDIARIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

Following are the financial information of the subsidiaries that have significant minority interests.

Profit/(Loss) attributable to minority differs from consolidated Profit/(Loss) attributable to minority since the data are presented 
gross of intercompany eliminations.

Summary of subsidiary's
financial information
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/ (Loss)

Profit/ (Loss)
attributable
to minority

Ciolina Moncler SA 3,123 2,847 276 1,858 75 37

White Tech Sp.zo.o. 228 26 202 145 42 13

Summary of subsidiary's
financial information
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/ (Loss)

Profit/ (Loss)
attributable
to minority

Ciolina Moncler SA 1,137 728 409 1,522 203 99

White Tech Sp.zo.o. 164 14 150 150 49 15

Cash Flow 2017 (*)
(Euro/000) Ciolina Moncler SA White Tech Sp.zo.o.

Operating Cash Flow 149 70

Free Cash Flow 115 56

Net Cash Flow (92) 65

Cash Flow 2016 (*)
(Euro/000) Ciolina Moncler SA White Tech Sp.zo.o.

Operating Cash Flow 327 77

Free Cash Flow 273 64

Net Cash Flow 185 62

(*) Amounts showed according to the Cash Flow Statements included in the Directors' Report
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attribution cycle approved on June 29, 2017 assigned 365,500 
Moncler Rights.
As at December 31, 2017 there are still in circulation 
2,636,000 rights related to the first cycle of attribution 
(the effect on the 2017 income statement amounts to Euro 
17.1 million) and 350,500 rights related to the second cy-

cle of attribution (the effect on the 2017 income statement 
amounts to Euro 1.2 million).
As stated by IFRS 2, these plans are defined as Equity Settled.
For information regarding the plan, please see the com-
pany’s website, www.monclergroup.com, in the “Govern-
ance/Shareholders’ Meeting” section.

10.3. SUBSIDIARIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

Following are the financial information of the subsidiaries that have significant minority interests.

Profit/(Loss) attributable to minority differs from consolidated Profit/(Loss) attributable to minority since the data are presented 
gross of intercompany eliminations.

10.4. SIGNIFICANT NON-RECURRING 
EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS 

On 29 June 2017, with the favourable opinion of the Nomina-
tion and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of 
Moncler S.p.A. began the second cycle of allocating Moncler 
ordinary shares under the “Performance Shares Plan 2016-
2018”, approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 20 April 
2016, resolving to allot 365,500 shares to 18 new beneficiar-
ies.
The description of the incentive loyalty plans and the related 
costs are included in note 10.2.

10.5. ATYPICAL AND/OR UNUSUAL 
TRANSACTIONS 

It should be noted that during 2017 the Group did not enter 
into any atypical and/or unusual transactions.

Summary of subsidiary's
financial information
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/ (Loss)

Profit/ (Loss)
attributable
to minority

Ciolina Moncler SA 3,123 2,847 276 1,858 75 37

White Tech Sp.zo.o. 228 26 202 145 42 13

Summary of subsidiary's
financial information
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/ (Loss)

Profit/ (Loss)
attributable
to minority

Ciolina Moncler SA 1,137 728 409 1,522 203 99

White Tech Sp.zo.o. 164 14 150 150 49 15

Cash Flow 2017 (*)
(Euro/000) Ciolina Moncler SA White Tech Sp.zo.o.

Operating Cash Flow 149 70

Free Cash Flow 115 56

Net Cash Flow (92) 65

Cash Flow 2016 (*)
(Euro/000) Ciolina Moncler SA White Tech Sp.zo.o.

Operating Cash Flow 327 77

Free Cash Flow 273 64

Net Cash Flow 185 62

(*) Amounts showed according to the Cash Flow Statements included in the Directors' Report
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10.6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels 
in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value information for financial 
assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

December 31, 2017
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 3,884 - 3,884 2 

Sub-total 3,884 - 3,884

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 120,708 22,192

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 394,144 -

Sub-total 514,852 22,192 -

Total 518,736 22,192 3,884 

December 31, 2016
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 2,887 - 2,887 2

Sub-total 2,887 - 2,887

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 104,864 22,514

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 243,389 -

Sub-total 348,253 22,514 -

Total 351,140 22,514 2,887
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(*) Such items refer to short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying value is a reasonable approximation of fair 
value, which was therefore not disclosed.

10.7. FEES PAID TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Fees paid to independent auditors are summarized below:

December 31, 2017
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging (1,250) - (1,250) 2 

Other financial liabilities (21,854) (67,874) (89,728) 3 

Sub-total (23,104) (67,874) (90,978)

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (179,976) -

Bank overdrafts (*) - -

Short-term bank loans (*) - -

Bank loans (2,098) - (2,098) 3 

Sub-total (182,074) - (2,098)

Total (205,178) (67,874) (93,076)

December 31, 2016
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging (2,720) - (2,720) 2 

Other financial liabilities - (73,743) (73,743) 3 

Sub-total (2,720) (73,743) (76,463)

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (142,331) -

Bank overdrafts (*) (4) -

Short-term bank loans (*) - -

Bank loans (62,053) (2,092) (64,145) 3 

Sub-total (204,388) (2,092) (64,145)

Total (207,108) (75,835) (140,608)

Audit and attestation services
(Euro unit)

Entity that has
provided the service Fees 2017

Audit KPMG S.p.A. 341,784

Network KPMG S.p.A. 165,148

Attestation services KPMG S.p.A. 38,340

Network KPMG S.p.A. 8,670

Other services KPMG S.p.A. 54,990

Network KPMG S.p.A. 113,132

Total 722,064
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11.

SIGNIFICANT  
EVENTS AFTER  
THE REPORTING DATE 

MONCLER GENIUS

On 20 February 2018, Moncler presented a new creative and 
communication chapter, a vision of the future, available now. 
A vision beyond seasons able to establish a daily dialogue with 
the customers: Moncler Genius. A hub of eight exceptional 
minds operating in unison while cultivating their singularity 
has being able to reinterpret the Brand; each one devoted to 
a singular project, all of them adding facets to the Moncler’s 
brand identity.

CAPITAL MARKETS DAY

On 27 February 2018, Moncler hosted the Capital Markets 
Day in Milan, during which an update on the Group’s medi-
um-term strategy has been disclosed to the financial commu-
nity. The documents are available on the corporate website 
www.monclergroup.com.

The Consolidated Financial Statements, comprised of the 
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial 
position, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consol-
idated statement of cash flows and explanatory notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of 
the financial position and the results of operations and cash 
flows and corresponds to the accounting records of the Parent 
Company and the companies included in the consolidation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Moncler S.p.A.

  
  REMO RUFFINI

  CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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INCOME STATEMENT

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Income statement
(Euro) Notes Financial Year 2017

of which related
parties (note 8.1) Financial Year 2016

of which related
parties (note 8.1)

Revenue 3.1 199,951,147 199,217,263 173,765,849 173,660,396

General and administrative expenses 3.2 (21,357,141) (4,399,324) (18,018,601) (3,646,955)

Advertising and promotion expenses 3.3 (34,261,506) (46,094) (31,045,053) (64,938)

Stock based compensation 3.4 (6,144,043) (4,115,884) (4,865,769) (3,543,838)

Operating result 138,188,457 119,836,426

Financial income 3.6 199,210 34,757 91,724

Financial expenses 3.6 (238,590) (666,946) (160,370)

Result before taxes 138,149,077 119,261,204

Income taxes 3.7 (4,895,303) (37,716,715)

Net result 133,253,774 81,544,489

Statement of comprehensive income
(Euro) Notes Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Net profit (loss) for the period 133,253,774 81,544,489

Gains/(Losses) on fair value of hedge derivatives 4.14 0 0

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss 0 0

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on pension funds 4.14 36,514 (97,462)

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss 36,514 (97,462)

Other comprehensive income/ (loss), net of tax 36,514 (97,462)

Total Comprehensive income/ (loss) 133,290,288 81,447,027
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Statement of financial position
(Euro) Notes December 31, 2017

of which
related parties

(note 8.1) December 31, 2016

of which
related parties

(note 8.1)

Brands and other intangible assets - net 4.1 225,869,157 226,219,938

Property, plant and equipment - net 4.3 60,346 2,714

Investments in subsidiaries 4.4 250,455,026 233,115,832

Other non-current assets 4.9 17,400 0

Deferred tax assets 4.5 1,182,515 1,587,848

Non-current assets 477,584,444 460,926,332

Trade accounts receivable 4.6 661,732 223,485

Intra-group accounts receivable 4.6 45,451,862 45,451,862 53,943,476 53,943,476

Income taxes 4.14 35,225,920 0

Other current assets 4.9 2,738,930 3,306,874

Intra-group financial receivables 4.8 42,456,202 42,456,202 0 0

Cash and cash equivalent 4.7 1,330,225 1,486,546

Current assets 127,864,871 58,960,381

Total assets 605,449,315 519,886,713

Share capital 4.15 50,955,748 50,042,945

Premium reserve 4.15 154,827,093 109,186,923

Other reserve 4.15 170,870,380 132,952,057

Net result 4.15 133,253,774 81,544,489

Equity 509,906,995 373,726,414

Employees pension fund 4.12 822,218 658,089

Deferred tax liabilities 4.5 64,580,989 64,109,707

Non-current liabilities 65,403,207 64,767,796

Short-term borrowings 4.13 0 23,972,007

Intra-group short-term borrowings 4.13 0 0 10,398,723 10,398,723

Trade accounts payable 4.10 20,528,578 18,643,123

Intra-group accounts payable 4.10 348,044 348,044 362,727 362,727

Income taxes 4.13 1,260,022 1,875,111

Other current liabilities 4.11 5,473,249 2,219,456 4,126,676 2,280,956

Other current liabilities intra-group 4.11 2,529,220 2,529,220 22,014,136 22,014,136

Current liabilities 30,139,113 81,392,503

Total liabilities and equity 605,449,315 519,886,713
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CHANGES IN EQUITY

Statement of changes in equity
(Euro) Notes Share capital

Premium
reserve Legal reserve

 Other comprehensive  
income

Other reserves
IFRS 2 reserve Retained earnings Result of the period Net Equity

Shareholders' equity at January 1, 2016  4.14 50,024,892 108,284,263 10,000,000 (47,650) 11,129,481 67,218,694 76,902,100 323,511,780

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 300,000 0 0 76,602,100 (76,902,100) 0

Share capital and reserves increase 18,053 902,660 0 0 0 0 0 920,713

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 (34,882,539) 0 (34,882,539)

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 (97,462) 15,530,151 (12,800,718) 0 2,631,971

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 81,544,489 81,544,489

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2016  4.14 50,042,945 109,186,923 10,300,000 (145,112) 26,659,632 96,137,537 81,544,489 373,726,414

Shareholders' equity at January 1, 2017  4.14 50,042,945 109,186,923 10,300,000 (145,112) 26,659,632 96,137,537 81,544,489 373,726,414

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 0 0 0 81,544,489 (81,544,489) 0

Share capital and reserves increase 912,803 45,640,170 0 0 0 0 0 46,552,973

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 (45,490,615) 0 (45,490,615)

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 36,514 23,157,125 (21,329,190) 0 1,864,449

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 133,253,774 133,253,774

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2017  4.14 50,955,748 154,827,093 10,300,000 (108,598) 49,816,757 110,862,221 133,253,774 509,906,995
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Statement of changes in equity
(Euro) Notes Share capital

Premium
reserve Legal reserve

 Other comprehensive  
income

Other reserves
IFRS 2 reserve Retained earnings Result of the period Net Equity

Shareholders' equity at January 1, 2016  4.14 50,024,892 108,284,263 10,000,000 (47,650) 11,129,481 67,218,694 76,902,100 323,511,780

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 300,000 0 0 76,602,100 (76,902,100) 0

Share capital and reserves increase 18,053 902,660 0 0 0 0 0 920,713

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 (34,882,539) 0 (34,882,539)

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 (97,462) 15,530,151 (12,800,718) 0 2,631,971

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 81,544,489 81,544,489

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2016  4.14 50,042,945 109,186,923 10,300,000 (145,112) 26,659,632 96,137,537 81,544,489 373,726,414

Shareholders' equity at January 1, 2017  4.14 50,042,945 109,186,923 10,300,000 (145,112) 26,659,632 96,137,537 81,544,489 373,726,414

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 0 0 0 81,544,489 (81,544,489) 0

Share capital and reserves increase 912,803 45,640,170 0 0 0 0 0 46,552,973

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 (45,490,615) 0 (45,490,615)

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 36,514 23,157,125 (21,329,190) 0 1,864,449

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 133,253,774 133,253,774

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2017  4.14 50,955,748 154,827,093 10,300,000 (108,598) 49,816,757 110,862,221 133,253,774 509,906,995
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CASH FLOWS

On behalf of the Board of Directors

  
  REMO RUFFINI

  CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Statement of cash flow
(Euro) Financial Year 2017

of which
related parties

(note 8.1) Financial Year 2016

of which
related parties

(note 8.1)

Cash flow from operating activities

Net result of the period 133,253,774 81,544,489

Depreciation and amortization 936,926 1,008,794

Impairment of investments 0 (85,182)

Net financial (income)/expenses 39,381 660,405

Other non cash (income)/expenses 5,817,931 4,658,429

Income tax expenses 4,895,303 37,716,715

Changes in trade receivables - (Increase)/Decrease 8,053,367 8,491,614 (5,566,726) (5,409,997)

Changes in trade payables - Increase/(Decrease) 1,870,772 (14,683) 3,876,792 (48,117)

Changes in other current assets/liabilities 2,075,150 (61,500) (459,635) 373,811

Cash flow generated/(absorbed) from operating activities 156,942,604 123,354,081

Interest paid (181,408) (606,176)

Interest received 54,850 1,927

Income tax paid (59,344,613) (39,158,784)

Changes in other non-current assets/liabilities 137,779 129,276

Net cash flow from operating activities (a) 97,609,212 83,720,324

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (643,777) (599,649)

Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 0 743,558

Net cash flow from investing activities (b) (643,777) 143,909

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (24,000,000) (24,000,000)

Changes in intercompany short term borrowings (52,854,924) (52,854,924) (12,403,384) (12,403,384)

Transaction related to equity (21,329,191) (12,800,718)

Dividends paid to shareholders (45,490,615) (34,882,539)

Share Capital and reserves increase 46,552,974 920,713

Net cash flow from financing activities (c) (97,121,756) (83,165,928)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a)+(b)+(c) (156,321) 698,305

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,486,546 788,241

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (156,321) 698,305

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,330,225 1,486,546
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1.

GENERAL 
INFORMATION

1.1. MONCLER S.P.A.

Moncler S.p.A. (the “Company” or “Moncler”) is a company 
established and domiciled in Italy, with its registered office 
located at Via Stendhal 47 Milan, Italy, and registration num-
ber of 04642290961.

Moreover, the parent Company Moncler S.p.A. is de facto 
indirectly controlled by Remo Ruffini through Ruffini Parte-
cipazioni Holding S.r.l. (“RPH”), a company incorporated un-
der the laws of Italy, held 100% by Remo Ruffini – and Ruffini 
Partecipazioni S.r.l., a company incorporated under the laws 
of Italy, indirectly controlled by Remo Ruffini through RPH.

It is the parent company for the Moncler Group (herein-
after referred to as the “Group”) comprising Industries S.p.A., 
the Italian subsidiary, and 35 other subsidiaries.

The Company’s principal activities are the study, design, 
production and distribution of clothing for men, women and 
children and related accessories under the Moncler brand 
name.

The Moncler Group companies run their businesses in 
accordance with the guidelines and the strategies set up by 
Moncler’s Board of Directors.

The Company also prepares the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and the Management Report in a single document 
as permitted by. 40/2 bis, letter. B Legislative Decree 127/91.
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1.2. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION 
OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

1.2.1. RELEVANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

The 2017 Separate Financial Statements (“financial state-
ments”) have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the Inter-
national Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and endorsed 
by the European Union. IFRS also includes all International 
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and interpretations of the In-
ternational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 
(“IFRIC”), previously known as the Standing Interpretations 
Committee (“SIC”).

The financial statements include the statement of finan-
cial position, the income statement, the statement of com-
prehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the 
statement of cash flows and the explanatory notes to the fi-
nancial statements.

1.2.2. PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company presents its income statement by destination, 
the method that is considered most representative for the 
business at hand. This method is in fact consistent with the 
internal reporting and management of the business.

With reference to the statement of financial position, a 
basis of presentation has been chosen which makes a distinc-
tion between current and non-current assets and liabilities, in 
accordance with the provisions of paragraph 60 and thereaf-
ter of IAS 1.

The statement of cash flows is prepared under the indi-
rect method.

1.2.3. BASIS FOR MEASUREMENT 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis except for the measurement of certain financial in-
struments (i.e. derivative measured at fair value in accordance 
with IAS 39) and on a going concern basis.

The financial statements are presented in Euro thousand, 
which is the functional currency of the markets where the 
Company mainly operates.

The explanatory notes have been prepared in thousands 
of Euros unless stated otherwise.

1.2.4. USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of the financial statements and the related 
explanatory notes in conformity with IFRS requires that man-
agement make estimates and assumptions that affect the re-
ported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of con-
tingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date. The actual 
results could differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
periodically and any variations are reflected in the income 
statement in the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period or even in subsequent 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
In the event that management’s estimate and judgment had a 

significant impact on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements or in case that there is a risk of future adjustments 
on the amounts recognized for assets and liabilities in the pe-
riod immediately after the reporting date, the following notes 
will include the relevant information. 

The estimates pertain mainly to the impairment of 
non-current assets (brand and investments) and the recover-
ability of deferred tax assets. Following is a brief description 
of these captions.

RECOVERABLE AMOUNT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND INVESTMENTS  

(“IMPAIRMENT”)

Management periodically reviews non-current assets, assets 
held for sale and investments in subsidiaries for impairment 
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the car-
rying amount may not be recoverable. When a review for im-
pairment is conducted, the recoverable amount is estimated 
based on the present value of future cash flows expected to 
derive from the asset or from the sale of the asset itself, at a 
suitable discount rate.

When the recoverable amount of a non-current asset is 
less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recog-
nized immediately in the income statement and the carrying 
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount determined 
based on value-in-use calculation or its sale’s value in an arm’s 
length transaction, with reference to the most recent Group 
business plan.

RECOVERABILITY OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

The Company is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdic-
tions. Judgment is required in determining the provision for 
income taxes in each territory. The Company recognizes de-
ferred tax assets when it is expected that they will be realised 
within a period that is consistent with management estimate 
and business plans.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH A DEFINITE USEFUL LIFE

Software (including licenses and separately identifiable ex-
ternal development costs) is capitalized as intangible asset at 
purchase price, plus any directly attributable cost of preparing 
that asset for its intended use. Software and other intangible 
assets that are acquired by the Group and have definite useful 
lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.

AMMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH  
A DEFINITE USEFUL LIFE 

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized on 
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as de-
scribed in the following table:

2.3. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
AVAILABLE FOR SALE  
AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Non-current assets available for sale and discontinued opera-
tions are classified as available for sale when their values are 
recoverable mainly through a probable sale transaction. In 
such conditions, they are valued at the lower of their carrying 
value or fair value, net of cost to sell if their value is mainly re-
coverable through a sale transaction instead of continued use.
Discontinued operations are operations that:
• include a separate line of business or a different geo-

graphical area;
• are part of a single coordinated plan for the disposal of 

a separate major line of business or geographical area of 
activity;

• consist of subsidiaries acquired exclusively for the pur-
pose of being sold.

In the income statement, non-current assets held for sale 
and disposal groups that meet the requirements of IFRS 5 
to be defined as “discontinued operations”, are presented in 
a single caption that includes both gains and losses, as well 
as losses or gains on disposal and the related tax effect. The 
comparative period is subsequently restated in accordance 
with IFRS 5.

As far as the financial position is concerned, non-current 
assets held for sale and disposal groups that meet the require-
ments of IFRS 5 are reclassified as current assets and liabilities 
in the period in which such requirements arise. The compar-
ative financial statements are not restated nor reclassified.

Category Depreciation period

License rights Based on market conditions within the licence 
period or legal limits to use the assets

Software From 3 to 5 years

Other intangible 
assets

Based on market conditions generally within the 
period of control over the asset

2.1. PROPERTY, PLANT  
AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or 
manufacturing cost, not revalued net of accumulated depre-
ciation and impairment losses (“impairment”). Cost includes 
original purchase price and all costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated 
and recognized in the income statement on a straight-line ba-
sis over the estimated useful lives as reported in the following 
table:

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term 
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group 
will take ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value are re-
viewed at each reporting period and adjusted if appropriate.

GAIN/LOSSES ON THE DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT 
AND EQUIPMENT

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equip-
ment represent the difference between the net proceeds and 
net book value at the date of sale. Disposals are accounted for 
when the relevant transaction becomes unconditional.

2.2. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BRANDS 

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost. 
Brands acquired in a business combination are recognized at 
fair value at the acquisition date.
Brands have a indefinite useful life and are carried at cost 
less accumulated impairment. Brands are not amortized but 
subject to impairment test performed annually or more fre-
quently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value may not be recoverable.
For further details please refer to note 2.5 “Impairment of 
non-financial assets”.

Category Depreciation period

Land No depreciation

Buildings From 25 to 33 years

Plant and equipment From 8 to 12 years

Fixtures and fittings From 5 to 10 years

Electronic machinery and 
equipment

From 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Lower between lease period and useful life  
of improvements

Other fixed assets Depending on market conditions generally 
within the expected utility to the entity

2.

SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING 
PRINCIPLES

The accounting principles set out below have been applied 
consistently for fiscal year 2017 and the prior year.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH A DEFINITE USEFUL LIFE

Software (including licenses and separately identifiable ex-
ternal development costs) is capitalized as intangible asset at 
purchase price, plus any directly attributable cost of preparing 
that asset for its intended use. Software and other intangible 
assets that are acquired by the Group and have definite useful 
lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.

AMMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH  
A DEFINITE USEFUL LIFE 

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized on 
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as de-
scribed in the following table:

2.3. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
AVAILABLE FOR SALE  
AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Non-current assets available for sale and discontinued opera-
tions are classified as available for sale when their values are 
recoverable mainly through a probable sale transaction. In 
such conditions, they are valued at the lower of their carrying 
value or fair value, net of cost to sell if their value is mainly re-
coverable through a sale transaction instead of continued use.
Discontinued operations are operations that:
• include a separate line of business or a different geo-

graphical area;
• are part of a single coordinated plan for the disposal of 

a separate major line of business or geographical area of 
activity;

• consist of subsidiaries acquired exclusively for the pur-
pose of being sold.

In the income statement, non-current assets held for sale 
and disposal groups that meet the requirements of IFRS 5 
to be defined as “discontinued operations”, are presented in 
a single caption that includes both gains and losses, as well 
as losses or gains on disposal and the related tax effect. The 
comparative period is subsequently restated in accordance 
with IFRS 5.

As far as the financial position is concerned, non-current 
assets held for sale and disposal groups that meet the require-
ments of IFRS 5 are reclassified as current assets and liabilities 
in the period in which such requirements arise. The compar-
ative financial statements are not restated nor reclassified.

2.4. INVESTMENTS 

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and others are ac-
counted for as follows: 
• at cost; or 
• in accordance with IAS 39. 
The Company recognizes dividends from subsidiaries, asso-
ciates and others in its income statement when the right to 
receive such dividends has materialized.

2.5. IMPAIRMENT  
OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

On an annual basis, the Company tests for impairment prop-
erty, plant and equipment and intangible assets with a defi-
nite useful life. Whenever events or changes in circumstance 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, an 
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Assets with an indefinite useful life are not subject to 
amortization and are tested annually or more frequently for 
impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstance in-
dicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

When the recoverable amount for individual asset cannot 
be reliably estimated, the Company determines the recover-
able amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. The Group deter-
mines the value in use as the present value of future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the asset or from the cash-gen-
erating unit, gross of tax effects, by applying an appropriate 
discount rate that reflects market time value of money and 
the risks inherent to the asset. An impairment loss is recog-
nized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount.

With the exception of impairment losses recognized 
on goodwill, when the circumstances that led to the loss no 
longer exist, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to its recoverable amount and cannot exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had there been no 
loss in value. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized 
immediately in the income statement.

2.6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value 
when the entity becomes a party to a contractual obligation 
of the financial instrument. A financial instrument is no longer 
recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows has 
expired or when the Company is no longer exposed to that 
risk. A financial liability is no longer recognized when the obli-
gation specified in the contract is canceled, expired or voided.

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of 
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts pay-
able, other current and non-current assets and liabilities, in-
vestments, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Category Depreciation period

License rights Based on market conditions within the licence 
period or legal limits to use the assets

Software From 3 to 5 years

Other intangible 
assets

Based on market conditions generally within the 
period of control over the asset
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term depos-
its held with banks and most liquid assets that are readily con-
vertible into cash and that have insignificant risk of change in 
value. Bank overdrafts are recorded under current liabilities 
on the Company’s statement of financial position.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT  
AND NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables generated when the Company 
provides money, goods or services directly to a third party 
are classified as current assets, except for items with maturity 
dates greater than twelve months after the reporting date.

Receivables are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method less the allowance for doubtful ac-
counts. A provision for doubtful account is recorded when 
there is objective evidence that the value of the claim will not 
be recovered. The amount of the provision is recognized in 
the income statement.

TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT  
AND NON-CURRENT PAYABLES 

Trade and other payables arise when the Company acquires 
money, goods or services directly from a supplier. They are 
included in current liabilities, except for items with maturity 
dates greater than twelve months after the reporting date.

Payables are stated, at initial recognition, at fair value, 
which usually comprises the cost of the transaction, inclusive 
of transaction costs. Subsequently, they are stated at amor-
tized cost using the effective interest method.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities, excluding derivatives, are recognized ini-
tially at fair value which represents the amount at which the 
asset was bought in a current transaction between willing par-
ties, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. Financial liabilities are classified as 
non-current if the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
payments of at least twelve months from the reporting date.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses derivative instruments to hedge against 
exchange rate and interest rate risks.

In order to reduce interest rate risk, the Company hedg-
es part of the fixed-rate financial liabilities through an Interest 
Rate Swap (IRS). In accordance with IAS 39, derivative instru-
ments qualify for hedge accounting only if at the inception 
there is a formal designation and documentation of the hedg-
ing relationship, the hedge is expected to be highly effective 
and the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured 
throughout the financial reporting periods for which the hedge 
was designated. The company documents the hedging relation-
ship between the derivative and the financial instrument. 

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair 
value at acquisition date and are subsequently remeasured at 
their fair value. The subsequent gain or loss recognition de-
pends on whether the instrument itself is defined as a hedges 
and the nature of the hedged item.

FAIR VALUE HEDGE

A derivative instrument is designated as fair value hedge when 
it hedges the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognized 
asset or liability, that is attributable to a particular risk and 
could affect profit or loss. The gain or loss on the hedged item, 
attributable to the hedged risk, adjusts the carrying amount of 
the hedged item and is recognized in the income statement.

CASH FLOW HEDGE

A derivative instrument is designated as cash f low hedge 
when it hedges the exposure to variability in cash f lows that 
is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recog-
nized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast trans-
action and could affect profit or loss. The portion of gain or 
loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an 
effective hedge is recognized in equity within other compre-
hensive income. The cumulative gain or loss is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss in the same period in which the 
asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss. Any 
gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is not an effective 
hedge is recognized immediately in the income statement. 
In the event that the hedge expires or is terminated or no 
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting but the fore-
cast transaction has not yet occurred, the cumulative gain 
or loss recognized in other comprehensive income from the 
period when the hedge was effective remains separately in 
equity and is recognized in the income statement in the same 
period during which the hedged forecast transaction affects 
profit or loss. 

When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to 
occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other compre-
hensive income from the period when the hedge was effective 
is reclassified immediately in the income statement.

2.7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries, social 
security contributions, paid leave and annual leave due within 
twelve months of the statement of financial position date and 
all other fringe benefits are recognised in the year in which 
the service is rendered by the employee. 

Benefits granted to employees which are payable on or 
after the termination of employment through defined benefit 
and contribution plans are recognised over the vesting period.

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES 

Defined benefit schemes are retirement plans determined 
based on employees’ remuneration and years of service.

The Company’s obligation to contribute to employees’ 
benefit plans and the related current service cost is deter-
mined by using an actuarial valuation defined as the projected 
unit credit method. The cumulative net amount of all actuarial 
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gains and losses are recognised in equity within other com-
prehensive income.

With reference to defined benefit plans, the increase in 
present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee 
service in prior periods (past service cost) is accounted as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until 
the benefits become vested.

The amount recognised as a liability under the defined 
benefit plans is the present value of the related obligation, 
taking into consideration expenses to be recognised in future 
periods for employee service in prior periods.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES 

Contribution made to a defined contribution plan is recog-
nised as an expense in the income statement in the period in 
which the employees render the related service. 

Up to December 31, 2006 Italian employees were eligible 
to defined benefit schemes referred as post-employment ben-
efit (“TFR”). With the act n. 296 as of December 27, 2006 and 
subsequent decrees (“Pension Reform”) issued in early 2007, 
the rules and the treatment of TFR scheme were changed. 
Starting from contribution vested on or after January 1, 2007 
and not yet paid at the reporting date, referring to entities 
with more than 50 employees, Italian post-employment ben-
efits is recognised as a defined contribution plan. The con-
tribution vested up to December 31, 2006 is still recognised 
as a defined benefit plan and accounted for using actuarial 
assumptions.

2.8. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The fair value at grant date of the incentives granted to em-
ployees in the form of share-based payments that are equity 
settled is usually included in expenses, with a matching in-
crease in equity, over the period during which the employ-
ees obtain the incentives rights. The amount recognized as 
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of incen-
tives for which the continued service conditions are met and 
the achievement of non-market conditions, so that the final 
amount recognized as an expense is based on the number of 
incentives that fulfill these conditions at the vesting date. In 
case the incentives granted as share-based payments whose 
conditions are not to be considered to maturity, the fair val-
ue at the grant date of the share-based payment is measured 
to reflect such conditions. With reference to the non-vesting 
conditions, any differences between amounts at the grant 
date and the actual amounts will not have any impact on the 
financial statements.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees related 
to share appreciation rights, settled in cash, is recognized as 
an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the 
period during which the employees unconditionally become 
entitled to receive the payment. The liability is measured at 
year-end and the settlement date based on the fair value of the 
share appreciation rights. Any changes in the fair value of the 
liability are recognized in profit or loss for the year.

2.9. PROVISIONS FOR RISKS  
AND CHARGES 

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised when the Com-
pany has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of re-
sources will be required to settle the obligation and where the 
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Changes in estimates are recognised in the income statement 
in the period in which they occur.

2.10. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenues are recognised when it is probable that the econom-
ic benefits associated with the transactions will f low to the 
Company and the amount can be measured reliably. Revenue, 
which is stated excluding value added tax and other sales re-
lated taxes, is the amount receivable for goods supplied less 
returns, trade discounts and allowances. Royalties received 
from licensee are accrued as earned on the basis of the terms 
of the relevant royalty agreement which is typically based on 
sales volumes.

2.11. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognized on an accrual basis tak-
ing into consideration interest accrued on the net carrying 
amount of financial assets and liabilities using the effective 
interest rate method.

2.12. TAXATION 

Tax expense recognised in the consolidated income statement 
represents the aggregate amount related to current tax and 
deferred tax. 

Current tax is determined in accordance with enforced 
rules established by local tax authorities. Current taxes are 
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the peri-
od, except to the extent that the tax arises from transactions 
or events which are recognised directly either in equity or in 
other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based 
on temporary taxable or deductible differences arising be-
tween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts in the Company’s financial statements. Current and 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when income tax-
es are levied by the same tax authority and when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the amounts.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined using 
tax rates that have been enacted by the reporting date and are 
expected to be enforced when the related deferred income 
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. De-
ferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Deferred tax assets recognised on tax losses and on deducti-
ble differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilised.

2.13. FOREIGN CURRENCY

The amounts included in the financial statements of each 
Group company are prepared using the currency of the coun-
try in which the company conducts its business.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange 
rate in effect at the transaction date. The assets and liabili-
ties denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date 
are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Ex-
change differences arising from the conversion or settlement 
of these items due to different rates used from the time of 
initial recognition are recorded in the income statement.

2.14. FAIR VALUE

IFRS 13 is the only point of reference for the fair value meas-
urement and related disclosures when such an assessment is 
required or permitted by other standards. Specifically, the prin-
ciple defines fair value as the consideration received for the sale 
of an asset or the amount paid to settle a liability in a regular 
transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. In addition, the new standard replaces and provides for 
additional disclosures required in relation to fair value meas-
urements by other accounting standards, including IFRS 7.
IFRS 13 establishes a hierarchy that classifies within different 
levels the inputs used in the valuation techniques necessary 
to measure fair value. The levels, presented in a hierarchical 
order, are as follows:
• level 1: Fair values measured using quoted prices (unad-

justed) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• level 2: it Fair values measured using inputs other than 

quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

• level 3: Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or 
liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. 
unobservable inputs).

2.15. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
AND RECENTLY PUBLISHED 
INTERPRETATIONS

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE FROM JANUARY 1, 2017

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 12 – INCOME TAXES 

IASB published on January 19, 2016 some amendments to IAS 
12 Income taxes. The document “Recognition of Deferred Tax 
Assets on Unrealised Losses (Amendments to IAS 12) clarify 
how to account for deferred tax assets relating to debt instru-
ments measured at fair value. 

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 7 – STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

These amendments, which were issued by the IASB on January 
29, 2016, require information to be provided in the financial 
statements about changes in financial liabilities, aimed at 
improving the disclosures provided to investors in order to 
help them to better understand the changes recorded in said 
payables.

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET 
EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY

At the date when these annual financial statements were pre-
pared, the European Union›s competent authorities concluded 
the approval process needed for the adoption of the account-
ing standards and amendments described below. With refer-
ence of the applicable principles, the Company has decided 
not to exercise the option of the early adoption, if applicable.

IFRS 15 – REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

On May 28, 2014 the IASB published a document which re-
quires an entity to recognise revenue at the time the control of 
goods or services is transferred to the customer in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for these goods or services. The new 
revenue recognition model sets out a process in five steps
1) Identifying the contract with a customer;
2) Identifying the performance obligations;
3) Determining the transaction price;
4) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obli-

gations;
5) Recognising revenue when the entity satisfy a performance 

obligation.
The new standard also requires additional disclosures regard-
ing the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the revenue 
and cash flows arising from these contracts with customers. 
The IASB expects to adopt it from 2018, while the European 
Union endorsed it on September 22, 2016. Furthermore, on 
April 12, 2016 the IASB published amendments to the stand-
ard: Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, which are also applicable as from January 1, 2018. 
These amendments are aimed at clarifying the procedures 
to identify an entity as a “Principal” or as an “Agent” and to 
establish whether revenues from licences must be deferred 
throughout the term thereof.
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During 2017, the Company reviewed ongoing contracts for 
each type of business relation potentially affected by IFRS 
15. The review confirmed the limited effects of IFRS 15 in 
relation to the type of business conducted by the Company 
(the management and dissemination of the image of Moncler 
brands, through communication and marketing campaigns); 
moreover the effects refer to a different presentation of a few 
financial statement items that do not have an impact on the fi-
nancial position or performance of the Company. Considering 
the above, the Company opted to adopt IFRS 15 retroactively, 
with a cumulative effect, as it believes this approach will not 
affect the comparability of 2017 and 2018 financial data.

IFRS 9 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On July 24, 2014, the IASB published the final document con-
stituting the conclusion of the process, divided into three 
phases: Classification and Measurement, Impairment and 
General Hedge Accounting, entirely revising IAS 39. The doc-
ument introduces new requirements for classifying and meas-
uring financial assets and liabilities. Specifically, as regards 
financial assets, the new standard adopts a single approach 
based on how the financial instruments are managed and on 
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial as-
sets themselves in order to determine the related valuation 
method, aiming at eventually replacing the various rules laid 
down under IAS 39. As regards financial liabilities, the main 
amendment concerns the method of accounting for fair val-
ue changes in a financial liability designated as at fair value 
through profit or loss, which are due to change in the cred-
itworthiness of the financial liability itself. According to the 
new standard, these changes must be recognised in other 
comprehensive income, without affecting profit or loss. 
The new document includes a single model for the impairment 
of financial assets based on expected losses. 
The IASB expects to adopt it from 2018, while the European 
Union endorsed it on November 22, 2016.

Based on the Company›s assessment, the new classifica-
tion criteria are not considered to have a significant effect on 
the recognition of financial instruments at 31 December 2017.

As regards expected impairment losses regarding main 
financial instruments, the Company has estimated a potential 
impact on the opening balances of shareholders› equity of less 
than 0.5%.
The Company has decided to not opt for the early adoption of 
IFRS 9 in relation to hedge accounting.

IFRS 16 – LEASING

On January 13, 2016, the IASB published the new standard 
IFRS 16 Leases, which replaces IAS 17. This standard was en-
dorsed by the European Union, with its publication on No-
vember 9, 2017. IFRS 16 is effective for financial statements 
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The new standard 
eliminates the difference in the recognition of operating and 
finance leases, even despite elements that simplify its adop-
tion, and introduces the concept of control in the definition 
of a lease. To determine whether a contract is a lease, IFRS 16 
establishes that the contract must convey the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a given period of time. Early 
adoption is permitted for entities that also adopt IFRS 15 Rev-
enue from contracts with customers.

The Company has estimated that the adoption of IFRS 16 
on 1 January 2019 will not have a significant impact on the fi-

nancial statements, as the Company does not have significant 
commitments arising from lease agreements, as referred to in 
note 5.1 “Commitments” of this document. 
The impact this standard will have is being assessed internally 
based on types of agreements entered into, in order to have 
the information necessary to specifically estimate the relative 
financial effects.

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 4 – INSURANCE CONTRACTS

These amendments were issued by the IASB on September 
12th, 2016, with the effective date being expected on January 
1st, 2018. The amendments were intended to address concerns 
about the application of IFRS 9 on financial instruments before 
the introduction of the new insurance contract standards.

In addition, at the date of these financial statements the 
competent bodies of the European Union had not yet complet-
ed their endorsement process for the following accounting 
standards and amendments
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1.  IFRS 14 became effective on 1 January 2016, but the European Commission decided to stop the approval process pending the new accounting standard on 
“rate-regulated activities”.

The Company will comply with these new standards and amendments based on their relevant effective dates when endorsed by 
the European Union and it will evaluate their potential impacts on the financial statements.

Document title Issue date by IASB Effective from

Standards

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January, 2014 Note 1.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts May, 2017 January 1, 2021

Interpretations

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration December, 2016 January 1, 2018

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments June, 2017 January 1, 2019

Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

September, 2014 Deferred until the completion of IASB’s  
equity method project

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement  
of Share-based Payment Transactions

June, 2016 January 1, 2018

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards (2014-2016 Cycle) December, 2016 January 1, 2017 / January 1, 2018

Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property December, 2016 January 1, 2018

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates  
and Joint Ventures

October, 2017 January 1, 2019

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation

October, 2017 January 1, 2019

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards (2015-2017 Cycle) December, 2017 January 1, 2019
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3.

COMMENTS ON THE 
INCOME STATEMENT

3.1. REVENUE

The company›s revenues mainly include royalty income from 
the use of trademarks, management fees and contributions 
for the provision of marketing services performed on behalf 
of Group companies. 

The increase of Euro 26,185 thousand when compared to 
the prior year is due to greater business volume.

3.2. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses primarily include design-
ing and product development expenses in the amount of Euro 
5,635 thousand (Euro 5,882 thousand in 2016), the personnel 
expenses of other functions in the amount of Euro 5,423 thou-
sand (Euro 3,990 thousand in 2016), legal, financial and ad-
ministrative expenses in the amount of Euro 1,791 thousand 
(Euro 1,734 thousand in 2016), directors› fees in the amount of 
Euro 4,254 thousand (Euro 4,056 thousand in 2016), auditing 
and attestation service, statutory auditors expenses, costs for 
supervisory body and internal audit in the amount of Euro 423 
thousand (Euro 416 thousand in 2016).

3.3. ADVERTISING EXPENSES

Advertising expenses amount to Euro 34,262 thousand (Euro 
31,045 thousand in 2016) and are mostly made up of expenses 
related to media-plan and events.

3.4. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The caption stock based compensation in 2017 (Euro 6.144 
thousand) includes the costs incurred for the stock option 
and performance shares plans approved by the Shareholders’ 
Meeting of Moncler on February 28, 2014, on April 23, 2015 
and on April 20, 2016 (Euro 4,866 thousand in 2016).
The description of the incentive loyalty schemes and the relat-
ed costs are included in note 8.2.

3.5. PERSONNEL EXPENSES, 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

The total personnel expenses, included under general and 
administrative expenses, amounted to Euro 6,352 thousand 
(Euro 4,982 thousand in 2016) including social security contri-
bution of Euro 1,476 thousand (Euro 1,014 thousand in 2016) 
and leaving indemnity expenses of Euro 315 thousand (Euro 
177 thousand in 2016). 
The average number of FTE (“full-time-equivalent”) in 2017 is 
56 (45 in 2016). 
In 2017 depreciation and amortization amount to Euro 937 
thousand (Euro 1,009 thousand in 2016).
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3.6. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES 

The caption is broken down as follows:

The caption interest expenses and bank charges decreased compared to the previous year by Euro 428 due to the normal amor-
tization plan.
In 2017 and 2016 the company has not received dividends.
The caption gain from investments in 2016 refers to the liquidation of the company Moncler Lunettes S.r.l.
Please see note 4.12 for additional information.

3.7. INCOME TAX

The tax impact on the income statement is detailed as follows:

The decrease of the current income is due to the recognition of a tax asset, equal to Euro 34 million, relative to the agreement 
signed with the Italian Revenue Agency in December 2017 to access the Patent Box tax relief and to a reduction in the corporate 
income tax rate 
The reconciliation between the theoretical tax burden by applying the theoretical rate of the parent company, and the effective 
tax burden is shown in the following table:

The caption other differences in 2017 mainly refers to the recognition of the above mentioned tax asset relative to the Patent 
Box tax relief and to the current IRAP.

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Interest income and other financial income 55 2

Dividends 0 0

Foreign currency differences - positive 145 5

Gain from investments 0 85

Total financial income 200 92

Interests expenses and bank charges (239) (667)

Foreign currency differences - negative 0 0

Total financial expenses (239) (667)

Total net (39) (575)

(Euro/000) Financial Year 2017 Financial Year 2016

Current income taxes (4,015) (36,845)

Deferred tax (income) expenses (880) (872)

Income statement (4,895) (37,717)

Reconciliation theoretic-effective tax rate
(Euro/000)

Taxable
Amount 2017

Tax Amount  
2017

Tax rate  
2017

Taxable
Amount 2016

Tax Amount  
2016

Tax rate  
2016

Profit before tax 138,149 119,261

Income tax using the Company's theoretic tax rate (33,156) 24.0% (32,797) 27.5%

Temporary differences (76) (0.1)% (5) 0.0%

Permanent differences 97 0.1% 32 (0.0)%

Other differences 28,240 20.4% (4,947) 4.1%

Income tax at effective tax rate (4,895) 3.5% (37,717) 31.6%
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4.

COMMENTS  
ON THE STATEMENT 
OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION

4.1. BRANDS AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets changes for the years 2017 and 2016 are shown in the following tables:
As at December 31, 2017

Brands and other intangible assets
(Euro/000)

2017 2016

Gross value
Accumulated depreciation 

and impairment Net value Net value

Brands 223,900 0 223,900 223,900

Software 433 (391) 42 37

Other intangible assets 5,256 (3,329) 1,927 2,245

Assets in progress 0 0 0 38

Total 229,589 (3,720) 225,869 226,220

Gross value Brands and other intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands Software

Other  
intangible

assets

Assets in
progress and

advances Total

January 1, 2017 223,900 496 4,650 38 229,084

Acquisitions 0 16 568 0 584

Disposals 0 (79) 0 0 (79)

Impairment 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 38 (38) 0

December 31, 2017 223,900 433 5,256 0 229,589

Accumulated amortization Brands  
and other intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands Software

Other  
intangible

assets

Assets in
progress and

advances Total

January 1, 2017 0 (459) (2,405) 0 (2,864)

Depreciation 0 (11) (924) 0 (935)

Disposals 0 79 0 0 79

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2017 0 (391) (3,329) 0 (3,720)
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As at December 31, 2016

The increase in the caption other intangible assets mainly refer to the brand registration expenses.

4.2. IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH AN INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE

The Moncler brand, which has an indefinite useful life, has not been amortized, but has been tested for impairment by manage-
ment. 

The impairment test on the brand was performed by comparing its carrying value with that derived from the discounted 
cash flow method applying the Royalty Relief Method, based on which the cash flows are linked to the recognition of a royalty 
percentage applied to the revenues that the brand is able to generate.

For the 2017 valuation, the expected cash flows and revenues were derived from the Business Plan 2018-2020 approved by 
the Board of Directors on December 14, 2017.

The «g» rate used was 2%.
The discount rate was calculated using the weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”), by weighting the expected rate of 

return on invested capital, net of hedging costs from a sample of companies within the same industry. The calculation took into 
account f luctuation in the market as compared to the previous year and the resulting impact on interest rates. The cost of capital 
(WACC) was calculated at 8.40%.

The results of the sensitivity analysis indicate that the carrying amount of the Moncler brand is in line with the benchmark 
with a “g” rate = 0% and WACC = 21.59%.

4.3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Gross value Brands and other intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands Software

Other  
intangible

assets

Assets in
progress and

advances Total

January 1, 2016 223,900 496 4,091 0 228,487

Acquisitions 0 0 559 38 597

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0

Impairment 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 223,900 496 4,650 38 229,084

Accumulated amortization Brands  
and other intangible assets
(Euro/000) Brands Software

Other  
intangible

assets

Assets in
progress and

advances Total

January 1, 2016 0 (403) (1,539) 0 (1,942)

Depreciation 0 (56) (866) 0 (922)

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 (459) (2,405) 0 (2,864)

Property, plant and equipment
(Euro/000)

2017 2016

Gross value

Accumulated
depreciation and 

impairment Net value Net value

Land and buildings 0 0 0 0

Plant and Equipment 5 (5) 0 0

Fixtures and fittings 0 0 0 0

Leasehold improvements 0 0 0 0

Other fixed assets 108 (105) 3 3

Assets in progress 57 0 57 0

Total 170 (110) 60 3
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The changes in property, plant and equipment from for 2017 and 2016 is included in the following tables:
As at December 31, 2017

As at December 31, 2016

4.4. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries are detailed in the following table:

Gross value Property, plant and equipment
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2017 0 5 0 7 138 0 150

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 2 57 59

Disposals 0 0 0 (7) (32) 0 (39)

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2017 0 5 0 0 108 57 170

Accumulated depreciation
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2017 0 (5) 0 (7) (135) 0 (147)

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation 0 0 0 0 (2) 0 (2)

Disposals 0 0 0 7 32 0 39

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2017 0 (5) 0 0 (105) 0 (110)

Gross value Property, plant and equipment
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2016 3,358 175 1,142 7 145 0 4,827

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 3 0 3

Disposals (3,358) (170) (1,142) 0 (10) 0 (4,680)

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 5 0 7 138 0 150

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment PPE
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2016 (2,528) (175) (1,142) (7) (144) 0 (3,996)

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation (86) 0 0 0 (1) 0 (87)

Disposals 2,614 170 1,142 0 10 0 3,936

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 (5) 0 (7) (135) 0 (147)

Investments in subsidiaries
(Euro/000) Country

 % ownership Carrying amount

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Industries S.p.A. Italy 100% 100% 250,455 233,116

Total 250,455 233,116
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The changes in property, plant and equipment from for 2017 and 2016 is included in the following tables:
As at December 31, 2017

As at December 31, 2016

4.4. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries are detailed in the following table:

Gross value Property, plant and equipment
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2017 0 5 0 7 138 0 150

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 2 57 59

Disposals 0 0 0 (7) (32) 0 (39)

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2017 0 5 0 0 108 57 170

Accumulated depreciation
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2017 0 (5) 0 (7) (135) 0 (147)

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation 0 0 0 0 (2) 0 (2)

Disposals 0 0 0 7 32 0 39

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2017 0 (5) 0 0 (105) 0 (110)

Gross value Property, plant and equipment
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2016 3,358 175 1,142 7 145 0 4,827

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 3 0 3

Disposals (3,358) (170) (1,142) 0 (10) 0 (4,680)

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 5 0 7 138 0 150

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment PPE
(Euro/000)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
Equipment

Fixtures and
fittings

Leasehold
improvements

Other fixed
assets

Assets in progress 
and advances Total

January 1, 2016 (2,528) (175) (1,142) (7) (144) 0 (3,996)

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation (86) 0 0 0 (1) 0 (87)

Disposals 2,614 170 1,142 0 10 0 3,936

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 (5) 0 (7) (135) 0 (147)

Investments in subsidiaries
(Euro/000) Country

 % ownership Carrying amount

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Industries S.p.A. Italy 100% 100% 250,455 233,116

Total 250,455 233,116

Financial information related to the subsidiaries are detailed in the following table:

With reference to Industries S.p.A., it should be noted that the investment carrying value includes also the higher value rec-
ognized during its acquisition and attributable to the goodwill entirely allocated to Moncler business. At the reporting date, 
management found that there was no risk of impairment of the carrying amount, however lower than the net equity of the sub-
sidiary, is fully recoverable given the positive performance of Moncler business and the current outlook; these assumptions are 
also supported by the impairment test performed on the consolidated cash generating unit of the Moncler business described 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Moncler Group. The increase of the carrying value of the investment arises from 
the accounting treatment of the stock option plans and performance shares adopted by the Company and described in note 8.2.

Furthermore, the market capitalization of the Company, based on the average price of Moncler share in 2016, shows a 
positive difference with respect to the net equity, indirectly confirming the value of the goodwill attributable to the Moncler 
business.
Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a complete list of the Group companies directly and indirectly con-
trolled by the Company.

4.5. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only when there is a law within a given tax jurisdiction which provides 
for such right to offset. The balances were as follows as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

Changes in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are detailed in the following table: 

Summary of subsidiary's financial
information
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/(Loss)

Industries S.p.A. 664,445 258,295 406,150 724,735 75,389

Total 664,445 258,295 406,150 724,735 75,389

Summary of subsidiary's financial
information
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/(Loss)

Industries S.p.A. 552,066 235,879 316,187 648,312 78,082

Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. 0 0 0 128 358

Total 552,066 235,879 316,187 648,440 78,440

Deferred taxation
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Deferred tax assets 1,183 1,588

Deferred tax liabilities (64,581) (64,110)

Net amount (63,398) (62,522)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(Euro/000)

Opening balance  
January 1, 2017

Taxes charged to the 
income statement

Taxes accounted  
for in Equity

Other
movements

Closing balance  
December 31, 2017

Intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 24 0 2 0 26

Provisions 0 0 0 0 0

Other temporary items 1,564 (409) 0 2 1,157

Tax assets 1,588 (409) 2 2 1,183

Intangible assets (61,696) (471) 0 0 (62,167)

Financial assets (2,414) 0 0 0 (2,414)

Tax liabilities (64,110) (471) 0 0 (64,581)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (62,522) (880) 2 2 (63,398)
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The taxable amount on which deferred tax have been calculated is detailed in the following table:

The caption other temporary items mainly refers to the costs incurred for the listing process and to the Directors’ remunerations.

4.6. TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Trade receivables are originated from the marketing and communication operations of the Company related to the brand devel-
opment and Group operations and are mostly considered intercompany transactions. 

There are no trade receivables with a due date greater than five years. There is no difference between the book value and 
the fair value of trade receivables.

Trade receivables from Group companies mainly related to the receivable from the subsidiary Industries S.p.A. resulting 
from the royalties for the use of the Moncler trademark, management fees and fees for marketing services.

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(Euro/000)

Opening balance  
January 1, 2016

Taxes charged to the 
income statement

Taxes accounted  
for in Equity

Other
movements

Closing balance  
December 31, 2016

Intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 4 0 20 0 24

Provisions 0 0 0 0 0

Other temporary items 1,964 (400) 0 0 1,564

Tax assets 1,968 (400) 20 0 1,588

Intangible assets (61,224) (472) 0 0 (61,696)

Financial assets (2,414) 0 0 0 (2,414)

Tax liabilities (63,638) (472) 0 0 (64,110)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (61,670) (872) 20 0 (62,522)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(Euro/000)

Taxable
Amount 2017

Closing balance
December 31, 2017

Taxable
Amount 2016

Closing balance
December 31, 2016

Employee benefits 111 26 102 24

Other temporary items 4,428 1,157 6,126 1,564

Tax assets 4,539 1,183 6,228 1,588

Intangible assets (222,816) (62,167) (221,127) (61,696)

Financial assets (10,064) (2,414) (10,064) (2,414)

Tax liabilities (232,880) (64,581) (231,191) (64,110)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (228,341) (63,398) (224,963) (62,522)

Trade receivables
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Trade receivables, third parties 669 230

Trade receivables, intra-group 45,452 53,943

Provision for impairment (7) (7)

Total, net value 46,114 54,166
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4.7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at December 31, 2017, the caption cash on hand and in bank amounts to Euro 1,330 thousand (Euro 1,487 thousand as at 
December 31, 2016) and includes funds available in banks. Please refer to the statement of cash flows for further information 
related to cash fluctuation.

4.8. INTRA-GROUP FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES

The item intra-group financial receivables, equal to Euro 42,456 thousand, refers to the correspondent account with the subsid-
iary Industries S.p.A.

4.9. OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

The caption other current taxes consists mainly of the receivable due from the tax authority related to IRES receivable for per-
sonnel expenses not deducted for IRAP purposes as well as the VAT receivable.
Deposits are mostly related to the amounts paid on behalf of the lessee as a guarantee to the lease agreement.
There are no differences between the amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and their fair values.

4.10. TRADE PAYABLES

As at December 31, 2017, the caption trade payables pertains mostly to marketing and communication services.

Details of the transactions with subsidiaries are provided in the note 9.1 on related parties.

Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of cash flow
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Cash in hand and at the bank 1,330 1,487

Total 1,330 1,487

Other current assets
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Advances on account to vendors 1,231 1,314

Prepaid expenses 237 720

Tax receivables excluding income taxes 1,266 1,261

Other current assets 5 12

Total other current assets 2,739 3,307

Security / guarantees deposits 17 0

Other non-current assets 17 0

Total 2,756 3,307

Trade payables
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Trade payables, third parties 20,529 18,643

Trade payables, intra-group 348 363

Total 20,877 19,006
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4.11. OTHER CURRENT PAYABLES 

As at December 31, 2017, the caption other current payables included the following:

As at December 31, 2017, similar to the prior year, the caption other current liabilities, intra-group includes mainly amounts 
related to the fiscal consolidation. For additional information please see note 8.1.

4.12. PENSION FUND (TFR)

As at December 31, 2017, the caption includes the employee pension fund as detailed in the following table:

The actuarial valuation of employee termination benefits (TFR) is based on the Projected Unit Credit Cost method. Reported 
below are the main economic and demographic assumptions utilised for actuarial valuations.

Other current liabilities
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Directors and audit related payables 2,219 2,281

Amounts payable to employees and consultants 1,834 1,036

Employees taxation payables 1,000 477

Other current liabilities 420 333

Other current liabilities, intra-group 2,529 22,014

Total 8,002 26,141

Employees pension funds - movements
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Net recognized liability - opening 658 442

Interest costs 29 10

Service costs 236 156

Payments (67) (68)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (34) 118

Net recognized liability - closing 822 658

Assumptions

Discount rate 1.30%

Inf lation rate 1.50%

Nominal rate of wage growth 1.50%

Labour turnover rate 3.80%

Probability of request of advances of TFR 4.50%

Percentage required in case of advance 70.00%

Life Table - Male M2016 (*)

Life Table - Female F2016 (*)

(*) Table ISTAT - resident population
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The following table shows the effect of variations, within reasonable limits, in key actuarial assumptions on defined benefit plan 
obligations at year end.

4.13. DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL DEBT

As at December 31, 2017, the company Moncler S.p.A. wholly reimbursed the loan outstanding at December 31, 2016 of Euro 24 
million. 

4.14. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Tax liabilities amounted to Euro 1,260 thousand as at December 31, 2017, net of current tax assets (Euro 1,875 as at December 
31, 2016). The balance pertains to IRES and IRAP payable.

Tax assets amounted to Euro 35,226 thousand as at December 31, 2017 (Euro 0 thousand at December 31, 2016) and mainly 
refer to the recognition of a tax asset, equal to Euo 34 million, relative to the agreement signed with the Italian Revenue Agency 
in December 2017 to access the Patent Box tax relief.

4.15. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

As at December 31, 2017 the subscribed share capital constitute by 254,778,741 shares was fully paid and amounted to Euro 
50,955,748.20 with a nominal value of Euro 0.20 per share.
Changes in shareholders› equity for 2017 and the comparative period are included in the consolidated statements of changes in 
equity.

During 2017, the Company purchased a total of 1,000,000 treasury shares, equal to 0.4% of the share capital, for a total value 
of Euro 21,329 thousand. As at December 31, 2017, 2,000,000 treasury shares were held, equal to 0.8% of the share capital, for a 
total value of Euro 34,130 thousand.

The increase of the share capital and the share premium reserve arises from the exercise of n. 4,564,017 vested options (for 
the same number of shares) in relation to the stock option plan approved by the shareholders meeting of Moncler S.p.A. dated 
February 28, 2014 at the exercise price of Euro 10.20 per share.
The other changes in shareholders› equity result from the accounting treatment of stock option and performance share plans.
The change in retained earnings mainly relates to the payment of dividends to shareholders and to the treasury shares purchase.

Sensitivity analysis
(Euro/000) Variation

Discount rate +0,5% (52)

Discount rate -0,5% 57

Rate of payments Increases x(1+20%) (0)

Rate of payments Decreases x(1-20%) (1)

Rate of Price Inf lation Increases (+0,5%) 44

Rate of Price Inf lation Decreases (-0,5%) (41)

Rate of Salary Increases (+0,5%) 25

Rate of Salary Decreases (-0,5%) (23)

Increase the retirement age (+1 year) 4

Decrease the retirement age (-1 year) (5)

Increase longevity (+1 year) 0

Decrease longevity (-1 year) (0)

Borrowings
(Euro/000) December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Short-term portion of long-term bank loans 0 23,972

Intra-group short-term borrowings 0 10,399

Short-term borrowings 0 34,371

Long-term borrowings 0 0

Total 0 34,371
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In 2017 the Company distributed dividends to the shareholders for an amount of Euro 45,491 thousand (Euro 34,882 thousand 
in 2016).
The following table includes details about how the shareholders reserve should be used:

The caption OCI (“Other Comprehensive Income”) reserve includes the actuarial risks related to the employee pension fund. 
Changes in that reserve is as follows:

Information on reserves 
(Euro) Amount Possible use Available amount

Non-available
amount

Amounts used
in the previous

3 years to
hedge losses

Amounts used
in the previous

3 years for
other reason

Share capital 50,955,748 -  - 50,955,748  -  - 

Reserves:

   Legal reserve 10,300,000 B  - 10,300,000  -  - 

   Share premium 154,827,093 A, B, C  154,827,093* -  -  - 

   OCI Reserve (108,598) -  - (108,598)  -  - 

   IFRS 2 Reserve 49,816,757 A, B, C 4 9,816,757 -  -  - 

   Retained earnings 110,862,221 A, B, C 1 10,753,623 108,598  - 89,896,184

Total share capital and reserves 376,653,221 315,397,473 61,255,748  - 89,896,184

Non distributable amount 188,200

Distributable remaining amount 315,209,273

Explanation: A share capital increase - B hedge of losses - C distribution to the shareholders
(*) Share premium reserve entirely available after allocating to legal reserve up to 20% of the share capital

Other comprehensive income
(Euro/000)

Employees pension fund - actuarial valuation Fair value IRS

Value before
tax effect Tax effect

Value after
tax effect

Value before
tax effect Tax effect

Value after
tax effect

Reserve as at January 1, 2016 (55) 7 (48) 0 0 0

Reclassification to Other reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Changes in the period (117) 20 (97) 0 0 0

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement  
of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2016 (172) 27 (145) 0 0 0

Reserve as at January 1, 2017 (172) 27 (145) 0 0 0

Reclassification to Other reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Changes in the period 34 2 36 0 0 0

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement  
of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2017 (138) 29 (109) 0 0 0
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5.

COMMITMENTS  
AND GUARANTEES 
GIVEN
5.1. COMMITMENTS

The Company does not have any significant operating lease 
commitments.

5.2. GUARANTEES GIVEN 

As at the date of the financial statements, the Company had 
no guarantees toward the Group companies nor third parties.

6.

CONTINGENT 
LIABILITY
The Company is subject to risks which may arise during the 
performance of its ordinary activities. Based on information 
available to date, management believes that there currently 
are no contingent liability that need to be accrued in the fi-
nancial statements.
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7.

INFORMATION  
ABOUT FINANCIAL 
RISKS
The Company›s financial instruments include cash and cash 
equivalents, loans, receivables and trade payables and other 
current receivables and payables and non-current assets as 
well as derivatives.
The Company is mostly exposed to interest rate risk, liquidity 
risk and capital risk. 

7.1. MARKET RISK

EXCHANGE RATE RISK 

The Company operated mostly with companies in Euro and, as 
such, the exposure to exchange rate risk was limited. As at De-
cember 31, 2017, a small portion of the Company’s assets and 
liabilities (i.e. trade receivables and payables) denominated in 
a currency different from its functional currency.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is connected 
mostly to changes in interest rates relate to outstanding loans.

At December 31, 2017, Moncler S.p.A. wholly reimbursed 
the loan outstanding as at December 31, 2016 for Euro 24 mil-
lion (original amount Euro 60 million). The interest rate ap-
plied was the Euribor increased by a market spread.

As at December 31, 2017, there was no hedging on inter-
est rates, given the limited exposure to financial institutions.

As far as financial debts are concerned, a f luctuation of 
+/- 0.25% in the interest rate would have led on the net results 
for the year ended December 31, 2017 to a worsening of Euro 
52 thousand in financial charges and an improvement of Euro 
52 thousand.
The Company is not exposed to changes in currency interest 
rates.

7.2. CREDIT RISK

The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk 
with companies that are not part of the Group. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is represented by the amount reported 
in the financial statements.

As far as the credit risk arising from other financial assets 
other than trade receivables (including cash and short-term 

bank deposits) is concerned, the credit risk for the Company 
arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum expo-
sure equal to the carrying amount of financial assets recorded 
in the financial statements.

7.3. LIQUIDITY RISK 

Liquidity risk arises from the ability to obtain financial re-
sources at a sustainable cost in order for the Group to con-
duct its daily business operations. The factors that influence 
this risk are related to the resources generated/absorbed by 
operating activities, by investing and financing activities and 
by availability of funds in the financial market.

Management believes that the financial resources availa-
ble today, along with those that are generated by the current 
operations will enable the Company to achieve its objectives 
and to meet its investment needs and the repayment of its 
debt at the agreed upon maturity date.
As at December 31, 2017 there are no financial liabilities. 

7.4. OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
MANAGEMENT RISKS 

In the management of operating risk, the Company’s main 
objective is to manage the risks associated with the develop-
ment of business in foreign markets that are subject to specif-
ic laws and regulations. 
The Group has implemented guidelines in the following areas:
• appropriate level of segregation of duties;
• reconciliation and constant monitoring of significant 

transactions;
• documentation of controls and procedures;
• technical and professional training of employees;
• periodic assessment of corporate risks and identification 

of corrective actions.
As far as the capital management risk is concerned, the Com-
pany›s objectives are aimed at the going concern issue in or-
der to ensure a fair economic return to shareholders and other 
stakeholders while maintaining a good rating in the capital 
debt market. The Company manages its capital structure and 
makes adjustments in line with changes in general economic 
conditions and with the strategic objectives.
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8.

OTHER  
INFORMATION

8.1. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
Set out below are the transactions with related parties deemed relevant for the purposes of the “Related-party procedure” 
adopted by the Group. 

The “Related-party procedure” is available on the Company’s website (www.monclergroup.com, under “Governance/Corpo-
rate documents”).
Transactions with subsidiaries are of a commercial nature and are conducted at market conditions similar to those conducted 
with third parties and are detailed as follows:

Moncler S.p.A. granted to the subsidiary Industries S.p.A. a license to use the Moncler brand. Based on the license agreement, 
the Company is remunerated through payments of royalties and advertising contributions. 
The total amount of royalties, advertising contributions and consulting fees for fiscal year 2017 amounted to Euro 199.2 million 
(Euro 173.7 million in 2016).
In addition, the Company has entered into a legal, fiscal and administrative consulting agreement with Industries S.p.A.
Please note that Moncler S.p.A. is part of the Group’s fiscal consolidation and is responsible for taxes payable and the related 
interests associated with taxable income of Industries S.p.A.
Compensation paid of the members of the Board of Directors in 2017 are Euro 4,215 thousand (Euro 4,083 thousand in 2016).
Compensation paid of the members of the Board of Auditors in 2017 are Euro 142 thousand (same amount in 2016).
In 2017 the costs relating to stock option plans and performance shares (described in note 8.2) referring to members of the Board 
of Directors amount to Euro 4,116 thousand (Euro 3,544 thousand in 2016).
There are no other related-party transaction.

Intercompany balances
(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Receivables Payables Net value

Industries S.p.A. 87,292 (2,619) 84,673

Moncler Suisse Sa 1 0 1

Moncler France S.a.r.l. 0 (6) (6)

Moncler USA Inc. 6 (95) (89)

Moncler USA Retail Llc 602 0 602

Industries Yield S.r.l. 5 0 5

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. 0 (157) (157)

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Ltd 2 0 2

Total 87,908 (2,877) 85,031

Intercompany transactions
(Euro/000)

2017

Revenues
Expenses/Other

revenues net Net value

Industries S.p.A. 199,217 (25) 199,192

Moncler Suisse Sa 0 0 0

Moncler France S.a.r.l. 0 (1) (1)

Moncler USA Inc. 0 (4) (4)

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Ltd 0 (2) (2)

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. 0 (21) (21)

Total 199,217 (53) 199,164
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The following tables summarize the afore-mentioned related-party transactions that took place during 2017 and the prior year:

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December

31, 2017 %
December

31, 2016 %

Industries S.p.A. Trade transactions c 199,217 99.6% 173,660 99.9%

Industries S.p.A. Trade transactions b (60) 0.0% (81) 0.2%

Industries S.p.A. Interest income on 
correspondence current account

d
35 17.6% 0 0.0%

Industries S.p.A. Interest expense on financing 
agreement

a
0 0.0% (160) 24.0%

Moncler France S.a.r.l. Trade transactions b (1) 0.0% (5) 0.0%

Moncler USA Inc. Trade transactions b (4) 0.0% (59) 0.1%

Moncler USA Retail Llc Trade transactions b 0 0.0% 657 (1.2)%

Moncler Suisse Sa Trade transactions b 0 0.0% 1 0.0%

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. Trade transactions b (21) 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Ltd Trade transactions b (2) 0.0% 0 0.0%

Directors and board of statutory
auditors

Labour services b
(4,357) 7.1% (4,225) 7.8%

Directors and board of statutory
auditors

Labour services b
(4,116) 6.7% (3,544) 6.6%

Total 190,691 166,244

a. % calculated based on total financial costs
b. % calculated on operating costs
c. % calculated on revenues
d. % calculated based on total financial income

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December

31, 2017 %
December

31, 2016 %

Industries S.p.A. Trade payables b (90) 0.4% (114) 0.6%

Industries S.p.A. Financial debt a 0 0.0% (10,399) 30.3%

Industries S.p.A. Financial receivables f 42,456 100.0% 0 0.0%

Industries S.p.A. Debt from fiscal consolidation d (2,529) 31.6% (22,014) 84.2%

Industries S.p.A. Trade receivables c 44,836 97.2% 53,278 98.4%

Moncler USA Retail Llc Trade receivables c 602 1.3% 656 1.2%

Industries Yield S.r.l. Trade receivables c 5 0.0% 5 0.0%

Moncler Suisse Sa Trade receivables c 1 0.0% 1 0.0%

Moncler France S.a.r.l. Trade payables b (6) 0.0% (5) 0.0%

Moncler USA Inc. Trade receivables c 6 0.0% 3 0.0%

Moncler USA Inc. Trade payables b (95) 0.5% (108) 0.6%

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. Trade payables b (157) 0.8% (136) 0.7%

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Ltd Trade receivables c 2 0.0% 0 0.0%

Directors and board of statutory auditors Other current liabilities d (2,219) 27.7% (2,281) 8.7%

Total 82,812 18,886

a. effect in % based on total financial debt
b. effect in % based on trade payables
c. effect in % based on trade receivables
d. effect in % based on other current liabilities
e. effect in % based on other current assets
f. effect in % based on total financial receivables
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The following tables summarize the weight of related-party transactions on the financial statements as at and for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016:

8.2. STOCK OPTION PLANS

The Financial Statements as at December 31, 2017 reflect the 
values of the stock option plans approved in 2014 and 2015 and 
the value of the new Performance Share Plan approved in 2016. 
With regard to stock option plans approved in 2014, please 
note that:
• The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Top Management and 

Key people” provides for a vesting period ending with the 
approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 
December 31, 2016. Each beneficiary may exercise the 
options granted on condition that the specific perfor-
mance goals related to Group’s consolidated EBITDA are 
achieved. Please note that these performance goals have 
been achieved. The exercise price of the options is equal 
to Euro 10.20 and allows for the subscription of shares in 
the ratio of one ordinary share for every option exercised;

• The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Italian Corporate 
Structures” provides for three separate tranches with a 
vesting period starting from the grant date of the plan 
until the approval date by the Board of Directors of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements respectively as at De-
cember 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016. Each beneficiary may 
exercise the options granted on condition that the spe-
cific performance goals related to Group’s consolidated 
EBITDA are achieved. Please note that these performance 
goals have been achieved. The exercise price of the op-
tions is equal to Euro 10.20 and allows for the subscrip-
tion of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for every 
option exercised;

• The fair value of stock options was estimated at the grant 
date using the Black-Scholes method, based on the fol-
lowing assumptions:
• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 

13.27;
• estimated life of options equal to the period from 

the grant date to the following estimated exercise 
dates: 
o Stock Option Plan for “Top Management and 

Key People”: March 1, 2018;

o Stock Option Plan for “Italian Corporate 
Structures”: I tranche March 1, 2017, II tranche 
August 31, 2017, III tranche March 1, 2018;

• dividend yield 1%;
• fair value per tranche from Euro 3.8819 to Euro 

4.1597.
• The effect of the two plans on the 2017 income state-

ment amounted to Euro 819 thousand, while the net 
equity increase following the exercise of the vested 
options in respect of the first, the second and the third 
tranche of the plan “Corporate Structure” and the “Top 
Management and Key People” Plan amounts to Euro 
46,553 thousand.

• As at December 31, 2017 6,683 options for the “Corpo-
rate Structure” plan are still in circulation, after that, 
during 2017, 159,017 options related to the “Corporate 
Structures” plan and 4,405,000 options related to the 
“Top Management and Key People” plan were exer-
cised. With reference to Moncler S.p.A., as at Decem-
ber 31, 2017 there are no options still in circulation.

With regard to stock option plans approved in 2015, please 
note that:
• The 2015 Plan is intended for executive directors and/

or Key-managers with strategic responsibilities employ-
ees and external consultants and other collaborators of 
Moncler S.p.A. and its subsidiaries which are considered 
as having a strategic importance or are otherwise able 
to make a significant contribution to achieving Group›s 
strategic objectives;

• The 2015 Plan provides for the assignment of maximum 
2,548,225 options through 3 cycles of allocation, free of 
charge. The options allow, under the conditions estab-
lished, to subscribe ordinary shares of Moncler S.p.A. The 
first grant cycle was completed on May 12, 2015, with the 
allocation of 1,385,000 options;

• The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 16.34 
and allows for the subscription of shares in the ratio of 
one ordinary share for every option exercised;

• The 2015 Plan provides for a vesting period of three years 

(Euro/000)

December 31, 2017

Revenues
Operating
expenses

Financial
expenses

Financial
income

Trade
receivables

Other 
current

assets
Trade

payables

Other
payables,

current

Total
financial 

debt

Total
financial

receivables

Total related parties 199,217 (8,561) 0 35 45,452 0 (348) (4,748) 0 42,456

Total financial statement 199,951 (61,763) (238) 199 46,114 2,739 (20,529) (8,002) 0 42,456

weight % 99.6% 13.9% 0.0% 17.6% 98.6% 0.0% 1.7% 59.3% 0.0% 100.0%

(Euro/000)

December 31, 2016

Revenues
Operating
expenses

Financial
expenses

Financial
income

Trade
receivables

Other 
current

assets
Trade

payables

Other
payables,

current

Total
financial 

debt

Total
financial

receivables

Total related parties 173,660 (7,256) (160) 0 53,943 0 (363) (24,295) (10,399) 0

Total financial statement 173,766 (53,929) (667) 92 54,167 3,307 (19,006) (26,141) (34,371) 0

weight % 99.9% 13.5% 24.0% 0.0% 99.6% 0.0% 1.9% 92.9% 30.3% 0.0%
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between the allocation date and the initial exercise date. 
The option can be exercised within June 30, 2020 max-
imum, for the first attribution cycle and June 30, 2021 
or June 30, 2022, respectively, for the second and third 
attribution cycle;

• Each beneficiary may exercise the options granted on 
condition that the specific performance goals related to 
Group’s consolidated EBITDA are achieved;

• The fair value of 2015 Plan was estimated at the grant 
date using the Black-Scholes method, based on the fol-
lowing assumptions:
• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 

16.34;
• estimated life of options equal to the period from 

the grant date to the following estimated exercise: 
May 31, 2019;

• dividend yield 1%;
• fair value per tranche Euro 3.2877.

• The effect on the income statement of 2017 of the 2015 
Plan amounts to Euro 20 thousand, which mainly includes 
the costs accrued during the period, calculation of which 
is based on the fair value of the plans, which takes into 
account the value of the share at the grant date, the vola-
tility, the flow of the expected dividends, the option term 
and the risk-free rate.

• As at December 31, 2017 there are still in circulation 
1,155,000 options. With reference to Moncler S.p.A., as 
at December 31, 2017 there are still in circulation 20,000 
options.

On April 20, 2016, the shareholders meeting of Moncler ap-
proved the adoption of a stock grant plan entitled «2016-2018 
Performance Shares Plan” (“2016 Plan”) addressed to Execu-
tive Directors and/or Key Managers, and/or employees, and/or 
collaborators, and/or external consultants of Moncler S.p.A. 
and of its subsidiaries, which have strategically relevant roles 
or are otherwise capable of making a significant contribution, 
with a view to pursuing the Group’s strategic objectives.

The object of the Plan is the free granting of the Moncler 
shares in case certain Performance Targets are achieved at the 
end of the vesting period of 3 years.

The Performance Targets are expressed base on the earn-
ing per share index (“EPS”) of the Group in the Vesting Period, 
adjusted by the conditions of over\under performance.

The proposed maximum number of shares serving the 
Plan is equal to No. 3,800,000 resulting from a Capital In-
crease and/or from the allocation of treasury shares.

The Plan provides for a maximum of 3 cycles of attribu-
tion. The first attribution cycle, approved during 2016, ended 
with the assignment of 2,856,000 Moncler Rights; the second 
attribution cycle approved on June 29, 2017 assigned 365,500 
Moncler Rights.

As at December 31, 2017 there are still in circulation 
2,636,000 rights related to the first cycle of attribution and 
350,500 rights related to the second cycle of attribution. With 
reference to Moncler S.p.A., as at December 31, 2017 there are 
still in circulation 716,500 rights related to the first cycle of 
attribution and 76,000 rights related to the second cycle of 
attribution.
The effect on the 2017 income statement amounts to Euro 
4,979 thousand.
As stated by IFRS 2, these plans are defined as Equity Settled.
For information regarding the plan, please see the company›s 

website, www.monclergroup.com, in the «Governance/Share-
holders’ Meeting» section.

8.3. SIGNIFICANT NON-RECURRING 
EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS 

On 29 June 2017, with the favourable opinion of the Nom-
ination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Direc-
tors of Moncler S.p.A. began the second cycle of allocating 
Moncler ordinary shares under the “Performance Shares 
Plan 2016-2018”, approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 
20 April 2016, resolving to allot 365,500 shares to 18 new 
beneficiaries.
The description of the incentive loyalty plans and the relat-
ed costs are included in note 8.2.

8.4. ATYPICAL AND/OR UNUSUAL 
TRANSACTIONS 

It should be noted that during 2017 the Company did not 
enter into any atypical and/or unusual transactions.

8.5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair val-
ues of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy 
for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not 
include fair value information for financial assets and fi-
nancial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying 
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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(*) Such items refer to short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying value is a reasonable approximation of fair 

value, which was therefore not disclosed.

December 31, 2017
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - - 2 

Sub-total - - -

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 661,737 -

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 1,330,225 -

Sub-total 1,991,962 - -

Total 1,991,962 - -

December 31, 2016
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - -

Sub-total - - -

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 223,497 -

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 1,486,546 -

Sub-total 1,710,043 - -

Total 1,710,043 - -

December 31, 2017
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - - 2 

Other financial liabilities - - - 3 

Sub-total - - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (20,949) -

Bank overdrafts (*) - -

Short-term bank loans (*) - -

Bank loans - - - 3 

Sub-total (20,949) - -

Total (20,949) - -

December 31, 2016
(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - - 2 

Other financial liabilities - - - 3 

Sub-total - - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (18,976) -

Bank overdrafts (*) - -

Short-term bank loans (*) - -

Bank loans (23,972) - (23,972) 3 

Sub-total (42,948) - (23,972)

Total (42,948) - (23,972)
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8.6. FEES PAID TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Fees paid to independent auditors are summarized below:

9.

SIGNIFICANT 
EVENTS AFTER THE 
REPORTING DATE
MONCLER GENIUS

On 20 February 2018, Moncler presented a new creative and 
communication chapter, a vision of the future, available now. 
A vision beyond seasons able to establish a daily dialogue with 
the customers: Moncler Genius. A hub of eight exceptional 
minds operating in unison while cultivating their singularity 
has being able to reinterpret the Brand; each one devoted to 
a singular project, all of them adding facets to the Moncler’s 
brand identity.

CAPITAL MARKETS DAY

On 27 February 2018, Moncler hosted the Capital Markets 
Day in Milan, during which an update on the Group’s medi-
um-term strategy has been disclosed to the financial commu-
nity. The documents are available on the corporate website 
www.monclergroup.com.

Audit and attestation services
(Euro)

Entity that has provided
the service Fees 2017

Audit KPMG S.p.A. 155,519

Network KPMG S.p.A. -

Attestation services KPMG S.p.A. 38,750

Network KPMG S.p.A. -

Other services KPMG S.p.A. 44,990

Network KPMG S.p.A. 6,826

Total 246,085
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10.

MOTION TO APPROVE 
THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND 
THE ALLOCATION 
OF THE RESULT FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 2017

In conclusion to these explanatory notes, we invite you to approve the Moncler S.p.A.’s stand alone financial statements 
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017.
We recommend that you approve the distribution of a gross dividend of Euro 0.28 per ordinary share, payable out of the 
net income of the 2017 fiscal year totalling Euro 133,253,774.
The total amount to distribute as dividends, having taken into consideration the number of shares issued as at December 
31, 2017 (n. 252,778,741) net of the shares which are directly owned by the Company (No. 2,000,000) is equal to Euro 
70,778,047.
It must be noted that the above-mentioned amounts are subject to changes due to the potential issue of new shares, fol-
lowing the exercise of stock option rights.

The financial statements, comprised of the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial 
position, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and explanatory notes to the financial statements give a 
true and fair view of the financial position and the results of operations and cash flows and corresponds to the Company’s 
accounting records.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

  
  REMO RUFFINI

  CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Attestation of the Consolidated Financial Statements pursuant 
to art. 154 Bis of Legislative Decree no. 58/98

1. The undersigned, Remo Ruffini, in his capacity as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and 
Luciano Santel, as the executive officer responsible for the preparation of Moncler S.p.A.’s financial 
statements, pursuant to the provisions of Article 154-bis, clauses 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree no. 58 
of 1998, hereby attest:

• the adequacy with respect to the Company structure
• and the effective application

of the administrative and accounting procedures applied in the preparation of the Company’s Consoli-
dated Financial Statements at 31 December 2017.

2. The assessment of the adequacy of the administrative and accounting procedures used for the prepa-
ration of the Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2017 was based on a process defined 
by Moncler S.p.A. in accordance with the Internal Control – Integrated Framework model issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, an internationally-accepted ref-
erence framework.

3. The undersigned moreover attest that:

3.1 the Consolidated Financial Statements:

a.  have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as endorsed by 
the European Union through Regulation (EC) 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council, 
dated 19 July 2002

b. correspond to the amounts shown in the Company’s accounts, books and records; and
c.  provide a fair and correct representation of the financial conditions, results of operations and cash 

flows of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of 31 December 2017 and for the year 
then ended.

3.2 the director’s report includes a reliable operating and financial review of the Company and of the 
Group as well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties to which they are exposed.

February 26, 2018

  EXECUTIVE OFFICER RESPONSIBLE

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Remo Ruffini Luciano Santel
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Attestation of the Separate Financial Statements pursuant to  
art. 154 Bis of Legislative Decree no. 58/98

1. The undersigned, Remo Ruffini, in his capacity as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and 
Luciano Santel, as the executive officer responsible for the preparation of Moncler S.p.A.’s financial 
statements, pursuant to the provisions of Article 154-bis, clauses 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree no. 58 
of 1998, hereby attest:

• the adequacy with respect to the Company structure
• and the effective application

of the administrative and accounting procedures applied in the preparation of the Company’s Separate 
Financial Statements at 31 December 2017.

2. The assessment of the adequacy of the administrative and accounting procedures used for the prepa-
ration of the Separate Financial Statements at 31 December 2017 was based on a process defined by 
Moncler S.p.A. in accordance with the Internal Control – Integrated Framework model issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, an internationally-accepted ref-
erence framework.

3. The undersigned moreover attest that:

3.1 the Separate Financial Statements:

a.  have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as endorsed by 
the European Union through Regulation (EC) 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council, 
dated 19 July 2002

b. correspond to the amounts shown in the Company’s accounts, books and records; and
c.  provide a fair and correct representation of the financial conditions, results of operations and cash 

flows of the Company as of 31 December 2017 and for the year then ended.

3.2 the director’s report includes a reliable operating and financial review of the Company, as well as a 
description of the main risks and uncertainties to which they are exposed.

February 26, 2018

  EXECUTIVE OFFICER RESPONSIBLE

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Remo Ruffini Luciano Santel
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204 GLOSSARY

GLOSSARY

BRAND AWARENESS

The extent to which consumers are familiar with the qualities 
or image of a particular brand.

BRAND EQUITY

The commercial value that derives from consumer perception 
of the brand name of a particular product or service, rather 
than from the product or service itself.

CAGR

Coumpound Annual Growth Rate.

COMPARABLE STORES SALES GROWTH (CSSG)

Sales growth in DOS (excluding outlets) that have been open 
for at least 52 weeks and online store; the calculation also ex-
cludes stores that have been extended and/or relocated.

CONCESSION

Directly managed mono-brand retail space located on the 
premises of a department store.

CORPORATE OFFICES

Central organisational units tasked with setting strategy and 
guidelines for the coordination and control of all operations 
on behalf of Group subsidiaries and branches.

DEPARTMENT STORE

Large retail establishment with an extensive assortment in 
variety and range of goods, organized into separate depart-
ments

DOS

Directly Operated Store, including free standing stores, travel 
retail stores, concessions and outlets.

DOORS

Multi-brand and mono-brand wholesale stores.

E-COMMERCE

Electronic commerce.

EBIT

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (Operating result).

EBITDA

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisa-
tion.

EMEA

Europe, Middle East and Africa.

FAÇON MANUFACTURER

Third party supplier carrying out the “cut-make-trim” phase 
(façon) of the production cycle according to the so-called in-
dustrialised method.

FASHION WEEK

Fashion industry event lasting approximately one week, when 
stylists, brands and fashion houses show their new collec-
tions, allowing buyers and media to observe the latest trends.

FLAGSHIP STORE

A mono-brand retail store which by its size and/or location 
conveys the philosophy and image of the brand.

FREE STANDING STORE

A retail store that is located directly on a street, i.e. not in a 
mall or shopping centre.

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE)

Average annual number of employees equivalent to full-time 
workers.
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KEY MONEY

An amount of money paid by the assignee to the assignor of 
lease agreements in retail properties, representing the good-
will connected to the prestige of a specific location.

KNOW-HOW

Practical knowledge of how to do something, information 
in the form of unpatented inventions, formulae, models, de-
signs, methods and procedures, along with accumulated skills 
and experience held by qualified company personnel.

MONO-BRAND STORE

A shop that exclusively sells clothing, accessories and prod-
ucts of a specific brand.

MULTI-BRAND STORE

A shop that sells different brands of clothing, accessories and 
other products.

NET DEBT

The sum of cash and cash equivalents (-) and net long-term 
and short-term borrowings (+).

NET WORKING CAPITAL

The sum of accounting receivables (+) inventory (+) and ac-
counts payable (-).

OUTLET

A shop that sells products and collections from previous years 
and seasons at discount prices.

PAYOUT RATIO

Ratio between total amount of dividends paid and net income, 
including non-controlling interests.

RETAIL

Distribution channel for the sale of products or goods man-
aged directly by the Group through Directly Operated Stores 
(DOS) or its own e-commerce website (www.moncler.com).

SHOP-IN-SHOP

Mono-brand wholesale space located on the premises of a de-
partment store.

SHOWROOM

A space used to display a company’s products, particularly to 
wholesale customers.

STAKEHOLDER

Every entity that has a legitimate interest in the activity of an 
organization and influences or is influenced by the organiza-
tion’s decisions. 

SUPPLY CHAIN

Distribution processes that begin with the supply of materials 
or components and end with the consumer, encompassing all 
phases of production, wholesale and retail.

TRAVEL RETAIL STORE

Point of sale located in places where there is a high flow of 
travellers, such as airports and train stations.

VISUAL MERCHANDISING

Promotional activity throughout windows and displays in 
stores.

WHOLESALE

Distribution channel consisting in mono-brand and multi-brand 
stores, which buy products from the company and resell then 
to the final clients.
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